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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

MONDAY, MARCH 15, 1993
(M

[Text)

The Legislative Committee on Bill C-109, An Acttoamend the
Criminal Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act and the
Radiocommunication Act, met at 3.5] o’clock p.m. this day, in
Room 308, West Block, for the purpose of organization.

Members of the Committee preseni. lain Angus, Sheila Fine-
stone, Len Gustafson, Jacques Tétreault and Blaine Thacker

In attendance: From the Legislative Counsel Office: Diane
McMurray, Legislative Counsel. Fromthe Research Branchofthe
Library of Parliament: Eric Legresley, Research Officer. From
Public Bills Office: Marc Bosc, Committee Clerk.

Derek Blackburn announced his appointment as Chairman of
the Committee pursuant to Standing Order 113(2).

The Order of Reference dated March 8, 1993, being read as
follows:

ORDERED,— That BillC-109, An Acttoamend the Criminal
Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act and the Radio-
communication Act be now read a second time and referred to a
Legislative Committee in the Departmental envelope.

Onmotion of lain Angus, it wasagreed, — Thatthe Cqmmittee
print 750 copies of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence as
established by the Board of Internal Economy.

On motion of lain Angus, it was agreed, — That the Chairman
be authorized to hold meetings in order to receive evidence and
authorize its printing when a quorum is not prcsenl.pro‘\'lded that
3 Members are present, including the Chairman or in his absence
the person designated to be Chairman of the Committee, provided
a member of the Opposition is present.

On motion of Blaine Thacker, it was agreed, — That during the
questioning of witnesses, the first spokesperson of each Party be
allotted 10 minutes and thereafter S minutes for other members of
the Committee.

On motion of Tain Angus, it was agreed, — That the Clerk of
Committee, in consultation with the Deputy Principal Clerk,
Public Bills Office and the Chairman, be authorized to engage the
services of temporary secretarial staff as required, foraperiod not
to exceed 30 working days after the Committee has presented its
Report to the House.

Onmotion of Iain Angus, it was agreed, — That all documents
received by the Committee bedistributedin th.e language re.cenved
with translations of the brief to follow as quickly as possible.

On motion of lain Angus, it was agreed,—That the
officials of the Department of Justice and the' Dlepﬂf"“e'"t of
Communications followed by Bruce Phillips, Pr?vacy
Commissioner of the Offices of the Information and Privacy

PROCES-VERBAUX

LE LUNDI 15 MARS 1993
)

[Traduction)

Le Comité législatif chargé du projet de loi C-109, Loi
modifiant le Code criminel, la Loi sur la responsabilité civile de
I’Etatetle contentieux administratifetlaLoisurlaradiocommuni-
cation, tient sa séance d’organisationa 15 h 51, dans la salle 308
de I’édifice de I’Ouest.

Membres du Comité présents: lain Angus, Sheila Finestone,
Len Gustafson, Jacques Tétreault et Blaine Thacker.

Ausst présents: Du Bureau des conseillers législatifs: Diane
McMurray, conseillére 1égislative. Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Eric Legresley, attaché de recherche.
DuBureaudesprojets de loi d'intérét public: Marc Bosc. greffier
de comité.

Derek Blackburn annonce qu’il a été nommé président du
Comité en application du paragraphe 113(2) du Réglement.

Lecture est donnée de I’ordre de renvoi du 8 mars 1993:

IL EST ORDONNE,—Que le projet de loi C- 109, Loi modi-
fiant le Code criminel, la Loi sur la responsabilité civile de |’ Etat
etlecontentieux administratifetlaLoisurlaradiocommunication,
soit maintenant lu une deuxi¢me fois et renvoyé & un comité
législatif du secteur ministériel.

Sur motion de Iain Angus, il est convenu,—Que le Comité
fasse imprimer 750 exemplaires de ses Procés—verbaux et 1émoi-
gnages, suivant les directives du Bureau de régie internc.

Sur motion de lain Angus, il est convenu,— Que le président
soitautorisé a tenir des séances, aentendre des témoignages eten
permettre I'impression en I’absence de quorum, pourvu que trois
membres du Comité soient présents, dont le président ou, en son
absence, la personne désignée pour le remplacer, ainsi qu’un
membre de I’opposition.

Sur motion de Blaine Thacker, il est convenu,—Que lors de
Pinterrogation des témoins, dix minutes soient accordées au
premier intervenant de chaque parti, et cing minutes par la suite, a
chaque autre intervenant.

Sur motion de lain Angus, il est convenu, — Que le greffier, en
consultation avec le président et le grefficr principal adjoint du
Bureau des projets de loi d'intérét public, soit autorisé a engager
du personnel de soutien temporaire, selon les besoins, pour une
période ne dépassant pas 30 jours apres la présentation du rapport
a la Chambre.

Sur motion de lain Angus, il est convenu,—Que tous les
documents regus du public soient distribués dans la langue
originale, la traduction des mémoires devant suivre dans les
meilleurs délais.

Sur motion de lain Angus, il est convenu,—Que les
fonctionnaires du ministére de la Justice et du ministére des
Communications, suivis de Bruce Phillips. commissaire a la
protection de la vie privée des Commissariats a I’information et
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Commissionners of Canada be invited to appear Wednesday,
March 17, 1993; andthatthe Clerk schedule meetings on Tuesday,
March 23, Wednesday, March 24 and Thursday, March 25, 1993
to hear witnesses.

It was agreed that the clerk of the Committee contact the
following organizations:

Barreau du Québec

Bell Cellular/Rogers Cantel Inc.

Canadian Association of Police

Canadian Association of Journalists

Canadian Bar Association

Canadian Bankers Association

Canadian Broadcasters Association

Canadian Chiefs of Police Association

Canadian Civil Liberties Association

Canadian Direct Marketing Association

Canadian Daily Newspaper Publishers Association
Canadian Police Association

Canadian Radio and Television Telecommunications Commission
Press Gallery

Stentor Telecom Policy Inc.

At4.220’clock p.m.,the Committee adjourned to the call ofthe
Chair.

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 17, 1993
(2

The Legislative Committee on Bill C~109, An Acttoamendthe
Criminal Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act and the
Radiocommunication Act, met at 3.35 o’clock p.m. this day, in
Room 306, West Block, the Chairman, Derek Blackburn, presid-

ing.

Members of the Commilttee present: Iain Angus, Sheila Fine-
stone, Bob Horner, Derek Lee, Bob Nicholson, Jacques Tétreault
and Blaine Thacker.

In attendance: From the Legislative Counsel Office: Diane
McMurray, Legislative Counsel. Fromthe Research Branch ofthe
Library of Parliament: Eric Legresley, Research Officer.

Witnesses: From the Department of Communications:
Elizabeth Gilhooly, General Counsel, Director, Legal Services;
Robert W. Jones, Director General, Radio Regulatory Branch;
Darius Breau, Assistant Manager Operational Policies,
Procedures & Programs, Spectrum Management Operations
Directorate, Radio Regulatory Branch. From the Department of
Justice: Michael Dambrot, Senior General Counsel, National
Strategy for Drug Prosecution; Yvon Roy, General CounselandF.
Bobiasz, Counsel.

The Committee resumed consideration of its Order of Refer-
ence dated Monday, March 8, 1993 relating to Bill C-109, An Act
toamend the Criminal Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings
Actandthe Radiocommunication Act(SeeMinutesof Proceedings
and Evidence, Monday, March 15, 1993, Issue No. I).

a la protection de la vie privée du Canada, soient invités a
témoigner le mercredi 17 mars; que la greffiére prévoit 1’ audition
de témoignages les mardi 23, mercredi 24 et jeudi 25 mars.

1l est convenu,—Que la greffiére contacte les organismes
suivants:

Barreau du Québec,

Bell Cellulaire/Rogers Cantel Inc.,

Association canadienne des policiers,

Association canadienne des journalistes,
Association du barreau canadien,

Association des banquiers canadiens,

Association canadienne des radiodiffuseurs,
Association canadienne des chefs de police,
Association canadienne des libertés civiles,
Association canadienne du marketing direct,
Association canadienne des éditeurs de quotidiens,
Association canadienne des policiers,

Conseil de laradiodiffusion et des télécommunications canadiennes,
Tribune de la presse,

Stentor Telecom Policy Inc.

A 16 h 22, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

LE MERCREDI 17 MARS 1993
(2)

Le Comité législatif chargé du projet de loi C-109, Loi
modifiant le Code criminel, la Loi sur la responsabilité civile de
I’Etatetle contentieuxadministratifetla Loisurlaradiocommuni-
cation,seréunita 15 h 35,danslasalle 306 de I’édifice de 1’ Quest,
sous la présidence de Derek Blackburn (président).

Membres du Comité présents: lain Angus, Sheila Finestone,
Bob Horner, Derek Lee, Bob Nicholson, Jacques Tétreault et
Blaine Thacker.

Aussi présents: Du Bureau des conseillers législatifs: Diane
McMurray, conseillére 1égislative. Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Eric Legresley, attaché de recherche.

Témoins: Du ministére des Communications: Elizabeth
Gilhooly, avocate générale, directrice, Services juridiques;
Robert W. Jones, directeur général, Réglementation des
radiocommunications; Darius Breau, gestionnaire intérimaire,
Politiques, procédures et programmes opérationnels, Gestion du
spectre, Réglementation des radiocommunications. Duministére
de la Justice: Michael Dambrot, avocat général principal, Straté-
gie nationale des poursuites en matiére de drogue; Yvon Roy,
avocat général; F. Bobiasz, conseiller juridique.

Conformément a son ordre de renvoi du lundi 8 mars 1993, le
Comité reprend I’étude du projet de loi C—109, Loi modifiant le
Code criminel, la Loi sur la responsabilité civile de 1’Etat et le
contentieuxadministratifetlaLoisurlaradiocommunication(voir
les Procés—verbaux et témoignages du lundi 15 mars 1993, fascicule
n2il).
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The Chairman called Clause 1.

Robert Jones gave an audio visual presentation on Managing
Canada Airwaves and made an opening statement and with the
other witnesses answered questions.

Yvon Roy made an opening statement and with the other
witnesses answered questions.

At5.240’clock p.m.,the Committee adjourned tothe call of the
Chair.

Marie Louise Paradis

Clerk of the Committee

Le président met en délibération 1’article 1.

Robert Jones donne une présentation audiovisuelle sur la
gestion des ondes au Canada, fait un exposé et, avec les autres
témoins, répond aux questions.

Yvon Roy fait un exposé puis, avec les autres témoins, répond
aux questions.

A 17 h 24, 1e Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

La greffiére du Comité

Marie Louise Paradis
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[Text] [Translation]
EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

[Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Monday, March 15, 1993

e 1552

The Chairman: Order.

["d like to proceed with our organizational meeting with respect to
Bill C-109, an act to amend the Criminal Code, the Crown Liability
and Proceedings Act, and the Radiocommunication Act.

I see a quorum. We must have five in addition to the chair for this
organizational meeting.

I'll read my letter of appointment as your chairperson:
Dear Derek,

Pursuant to Standing Order 113, this is to confirm your
appointment as Chairman of the Legislative Committee on Bill

C-109, An Act to amend the Criminal Code, the Crown Liability
and Proceedings Act and the Radiocommunication Act.

Yours sincerely,

John A. Fraser, Speaker
I would now like to invite the clerk to read the order of reference.

Mrs. Finestone (Mount Royal): Just a point of information. You
just read that a quorum is five. I would like to suggest that it could be
a quorum of five but one member of the opposition party must be
present.

The Chairman: We'll gettothat shortly. It's on the agenda. It will
be a motion.

Would the clerk please read the order of reference.

The Clerk of the Committee: That Bill C-109, an act to amend
the Criminal Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act, and the
Radiocommunication Act, be now read a sccond time and referred to
a legislative committee in the departmental envelope.

After further debate, the question being put on the motion, it was
agreed to. Accordingly, the bill was read a second time and referred
to a legislative committee in the departmental envelope.

The Chairman: The next order of business says ‘‘Any opening
remarks that the chairman may wish to make'. 1 don’t have any
remarks to make.

Mr. Angus (Thunder Bay — Atikokan): Just say hello.

The Chairman: | simply wish to welcome all of you on the
committee. I hope that we can get through this stage of the bill as
expeditiously as is possible. I know that I will have full cooperation
on that point. 1 am in your hands, however.

Item S is introduction of staff assigned to the committee by the
chairman. The clerk of the committee is Marie Louise Paradis. From
the Legislative Counsel Office is Diane McMurray, legislative
counsel. From the Research Branch of the Library of Parliament is
Eric Legresley, research officer. On the other side is Mr. Marc Bosc
from the Public Bills Office, who will also act as clerk assisting the
committee.

[Enregistrement électronique)

Le lundi 15 mars 1993

Le président: La séance est ouverte.

J'aimerais que nous commencions notre séance d’organisation du
Comité 1égislatif sur le projet de loi C-109, Loi modifiant le Code
criminel, Loi sur la responsabilité civile de I’Etat et le contenticux
administratif et Loi sur la radiocommunication.

Je constate qu’il y a quorum. Nous devons étre cing en plus du
président pour cette séance d'organisation.

Je vais vous lire ma lettre de nomination au poste de président:
Cher Derek,

Conformément a I'article 113 du Réglement, la présente
confirme votre nomination comme président du Comité Iégislatif
sur le projet de loi C-109, Loi modifiant le Code criminel, la Loi
sur laresponsabilité civile de I’Etat et le contenticux administratif
et la Loi sur Ja radiocommunication.

Veuillez agréer, cher Derek, I’expression de mes sentiments les
meilleurs.

Le président de la Chambre, John A. Fraser.
Je demanderais maintenant a la greffiére de lire I'ordre de renvoi.

Mme Finestone (Mont-Royal): Je voudrais une précision. Vous
venez de dire que le quorum est de cing membres. Je n’ai pas
d’objection a ce que le quorum soit de cing personnes, 4 la condition
que |'on précise qu'un député de I'Opposition doit étre présent.

Le président: Nous y viendrons sous peu. C’est 4 I'ordre du jour.
I y a une motion a cet effet.

Je demanderais a la greffiére de bien vouloir lire | ordre de renvoi.

La greffiere du Comité: Que lc projet de loi C-109, Loi
modifiant le Code criminel, la Loi sur laresponsabilité civile de I Etat
ct le contentieux administratif et la Loi sur la radiocommunication
soit maintenant lus une deuxiéme fois et renvoyé a un Comité
législatif du Secteur ministériel.

Apreés plus ample débat, cette motion, mise aux voix, est agréée.
En conséquence, le projet de loi est lu une deuxiéme fois ct renvoyé
a un Comité législatif du Secteur ministériel.

Le président: Le prochain point a I’ordre du jour est «Toutes
déclarations que le président désire faire». Je n’ai rien a dire.

M. Angus (Thunder Bay— Atikokan): Dites-nous bonjour.

Le président: Eh bien, je vais simplement vous souhaiter a tous la
bienvenue. J'espére que nous pourrons terminer notre étude du projet
de loi aussi rapidement que possible. Je sais que je pourrai compter
sur votre enti¢re collaboration. Toutefois, je suis a votre disposition.

Le point cing est la présentation du personnel affecté au comité par
le président. La greffiére du comité est Marie—Louise Paradis. Du
Bureau du conseiller législatif, nous avons Diane McMurray,
conseillere [égislative. DuService de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement, Eric Legresley, recherchiste. Au bout de la table, M. Marc
Bosc, du Bureau des projets de loi d’intérét public. qui agira, lui aussi,
a titre de grefficr aupres du comité.
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[Texte]

Mrs. Finestone: Could I ask of our Research Branch officer, Mr,
Legresley, if he is from the justice end or if he has some knowledge
of the radio-telecommunications field?

Mr. Eric Legresley (Committee Researcher): l am from the law
and government division.

Mrs. Finestone: And do you have knowledge of the Radiocom-
munication Act?

Mr. Legresley: Yes, I do.
® |555

The Chairman: Now we come to the printing motion: that the
committee print 750 copies of its Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence as established by the Board of Internal Economy.

Mr. Angus: I so move.
Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chairman: Next is the motion on receiving and printing of
evidence when a quorum is not present.

Mrs. Finestone: How can you receive and print evidence without
a quorum?

The Chairman: It’s a matter of procedure. We can do it even
without a quorum. We can’t vote.

Mrs. Finestone: Will you have a minimum presence of three
people, one of whom—

Mr. Angus: I move the motion, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: If we move the motion, then we can discuss it.

It is moved by Mr. Angus that the chairman be authorized to hold
meetings in order to receive evidence and authorize its printing when
a quorum is not present provided that three members are present
including the chairman and in the absence of the chairman the person
designated to be chairman of the committee and provided a member
of the opposition is present.

Mrs. Finestone: That’s fine with me.
Motion agreed to

Mr. Thacker (Lethbridge): I move the motionon questioning of
witnesses, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: It is moved by Mr. Thacker that during the
questioning of witnesses the first spokesperson of each party be
allotted 10 minutes and thereafter S minutes for other members of the
committee.

Motion agreed to

The Chairman: On support staff, Mr. Angus moves that the clerk
of the committee, in consultation with the Deputy Principal Clerk,
Public Bills Office, and the chairman, be authorized to engage the
services of temporary secretarial staff as required for a pcnpd not to
exceed 30 working days after the committee has presented its report
to the House.

Motion agreed to

[Traduction)

Mme Finestone: I’ aimerais demander a notre recherchiste s il fait
partie de la division de la Justice du Service de recherche ou s'il
connait le domaine des radiocommunications?

M. Eric Legresley (recherchiste du Comité): Je travaille 2 la
division du droit et du gouvernement.

Mme Finestone: Et connaissez—vous la Loi sur la radiocommuni-
cation?

M. Legresley: Oui.

Le président: Nous en venons maintenant i la motion relative a
I'impression des Proceés—verbaux et témoignages: Que le comité
fasse imprimer 750 exemplaires de ses Procés—verbaux et témoigna-
ges, ainsi que I’a établi le Bureau de la régie interne.

M. Angus: J'en fais la proposition.
Des voix: D'accord.

Ie président: La prochaine motion concerne |'audition et
I’impression des témoignages en |"absence du quorum.

Mme Finestone: Comment pouvez-vous entcndre et imprimer
des témoignages s'il n’y a pas quorum?

Le président: C'est une question dc procédure. Nous pouvons
entendre des témoins sans quorum, mais nous ne pouvons pas voter.

Mme Finestone: La régle sera—t-elle qu'il doit y avoir au moins
trois personnes présentes, dont ['une. . .

M. Angus: Je présente la motion, monsieur le présixdcnt.

Le président: Dés que nous aurons une motion, nous pourrons en
discuter.

Il est proposé par M. Angus que le président soit autorisé  tenir
des réunions pour recevoir des témoignages et autoriser leur
impression en |’absence de quorum, pourvu que trois membres, dont
le président ou, en son absence, son suppléant, soient présents, ainsi
qu’un membre de I’opposition.

Mme Finestone: C’est trés bien.
La motion est adoptée

M. Thacker (Lethbridge): Je propose la motion sur 'interroga-
tion des témoins, monsieur le président.

Le président: Il est proposé par M. Thacker, que lors de
I’interrogation des témoins, 10 minutes soicnt accordées au premier
intervenant de chaque parti, et cing minutes par la suite, & chaque
autre intervenant.

La motion est adoptée

Le président: Pour ce qui est du personnel de soutien, M. Angus
propose que la greffiere du comité, en consultation avec le greffier
principal adjoint du Bureau des projets de loi d’intérét public, ainsi
qu’avec le président, soit autorisée a retenir au besoin les services
d’employés additionnels, pour la durée du mandat du comité, pour
une période ne dépassant pas 30 jours ouvrables aprés le dépot de son
rapport final.

La motion est adoptée
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[Text]

The Chairman: | have another motion that I would like to put
before you.Iwill readit: thatall documents received by the committee
be distributed in the language received, with translations of the brief
to follow as quickly as possible. Is that acceptable?

Mr. Thacker: Agreed.

The Chairman: It helps in terms of time.

Mrs. Finestone: I would like the record to show that I would
certainly not stop the proceedings of the committee, but I think it
would be far better, particularly if they are government agencies of
any kind, that they submit in both languages.

The Chairman: [ appreciate that. We will make every effort to
make certain that is done. I am sure that with government agencies
evidence will be presented in both official languages.

We do have problems now and then, as you know, with
non-governmental organizations coming to us, often at the last
moment, with one-language briefs.

Mr. Thacker: 1 move the motion.

M. Tétreault (Laval-Centre): Monsieur le président, comme ma
collégue d’en face le disait, ne serait-il pas bon que les documents
soient acceptés dans la langue de ceux qui nous les font parvenir, sauf
les documents venant du gouvernement qui devraient étre, eux, dans
les deux langues officielles quand ils nous sont présentés?

Mr. Thacker: Oui, je suis d’accord.

Mr. Chairman, that is always our understanding. Many of us have
fought very hard over many years to have that, that ministers and
government departments and agencies provide their documents in
both official languages. Only witnesses coming from the private
sector are entitled to give their documents in French or English.

M. Tétreault: Je comprends cela dans le cas de mémoires venant
de I'extérieur.

Mme Finestone: On est d’accord, monsieur.

M. Tétreault: On a souvent eu des documents venant de
ministéres qui étaient dans une seule langue.

Mme Finestone: Cela, ¢’est inacceptable.

M. Tétreault: Jc pense que c’est inacceptable.

Mme Finestone: On n’a jamais accepté cela.

The Chairman: Do you want me to change this, then?

Mrs. Finestone: No, it’s justan underscoring of what I wantto put
into the record.

The Chairman: Okay. We'll leave the motion as it is, but we all
agree that any document coming to us from a government agency or
ministry must be reccived in both official languages.

Mr. Thacker: Before distribution.
The Chairman: Before distribution.
Motion agreed to

The Chairman: Future business—I think this basically is when
and where we shall meet again.

[Translation]

Le président: Il y a une autre motion que j'aimerais vous
soumettre. Je vous la lis: Que tous les documents regus par le comité
soient distribués dans la version regue, la traduction du mémoire
devant suivre le plus rapidement possible. Est—ce acceptable?

M. Thacker: Oui.
Le président: Cela permettra d’accélérer les choses.

Mme Finestone: Je voudrais dire, aux fins du proceés—verbal, que
jen’aicertes pas I'intention de bloquer les travaux du comité, mais je
pense qu’il serait de loin préférable que les mémoires nous soient
présentés dans les deux langues, surtout lorsqu’ils proviennent d’un
organisme gouvernemental quelconque.

Le président: Je comprends cela, et nous ne négligerons aucun
effort pour qu’il en soit ainsi. Je suis siir que les mémoires des
organismes gouvernementaux nous seront présentés dans les deux
langues officielles.

Comme vous le savez, il arrive, de temps  autre, que nous ayons
des problémes avec les organismes non-gouvernementaux qui nous
présentent, souvent a la derniére minute, des mémoires non traduits.

M. Thacker: J’en fais la proposition.

Mr. Tétreault (Laval-Centre): Mr. Chairman, as my colleague
from the other side was saying, would it not be a good idea that the
documents be received in the language of those who send them,
except if they are from a government agency, in which case they
should be submitted in both official languages?

Mr. Thacker: Yes, I agree.

Monsieur le président, c’est toujours ce que nous souhaitons.
Nombre d’entre nous se sont battus trés fort pendant bien des annécs
pour obtenir que les ministres et les ministéres et organismes du
gouvernement nous fournissent leurs documents dans les deux
langues officielles. Seuls les témoins du secteur privé sont autorisés
a présenter leurs documents en frangais ou en anglais.

Mr. Tétreault: I understand that, in the case of briefs presented by
outside witnesses.

Mrs. Finestone: We agree, Sir.

Mr. Tétreault: Departments have often provided documents that
were in one language only.

Mrs. Finestone: That is unacceptable.

Mr. Tétreault: I think it is unacceptable.

Mrs. Finestone: We have never accepted that.

Le président: Alors, est-ce que vous voulez amendcr la motion?

Mme Finestone: Non, nous ne faisions que souligner la précision
que j’ai apportée aux fins du procés—verbal.

Le président: Trés bien. Nous laisserons donc la motion telle
quelle, mais nous sommes tous d’accord pour dire que tout document
provenant d’un organisme gouvernemental ou d’un ministére devra
nous étre présenté dans les deux langues officielles.

M. Thacker: Avant d’étre distribué.
Le président: Avant d’étre distribué.
La motion est adoptée

Le président: Questions futures— je pense qu’il ne nous reste
plus qu'a déterminer ol et quand nous nous réunirons la prochaine
fois.
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[Texte]

Mrs. Finestone: Are you planning to review the witness list, Mr.
Chairman?

The Chairman: I can do that now. Thank you for reminding me.

Mr. Angus: We should do that first, because it might affect when
and how often we shall meet.

e 1600

The Chairman: Yes, right. The list I am about to read out
is of people who have indicated a desire either to come before
the committee or to send a brief to the committee. The first is
the Civil Liberties Association, Mr. Borovoy’s organization in
Toronto; second, the Barreau du Québec, Marie-Josée Simard;
third, from Ottawa, the Canadian Police Association, from
whom we have received a brief, but I understand it has not yet
been translated; fourth, Cantel Toronto; and fifth, the Canadian
Daily Newspaper Association. Those are the five who so far ha_xve
expressed aninterestin eitherappearing personally orsending a brief.

Mrs. Finestone has given me a list, and I'll just quote:

I believe it is important for the committee to hear from the
following witnesses: Minister of Communications; Mr. Brgce
Phillips, Privacy Commissioner of Canada; Canadian Association
of Journalists; Stentor Telecom Policy Inc.; Canadian Bankers
Association; Canadian Direct Marketing Association; Bell Cellu-
lar/Rogers Cantel.

Sowe havefivealready whohave shown interestand thenthere are
the additional ones that Mrs. Finestone has brought to the chair’s
attention who may be interested or could be asked to come.

Mrs. Finestone: In addressing the second part.of. the bill,
which deals specifically with the changes in the Cnm_mal Code
and the changes in the Radiocommunication Act, which relates
to the radio telephone that we use in our car and as we walk
around the streets, privacy has become a very scrious issue. The
Privacy Commissioner, Mr. Brucc Phillips, raised some very
interesting points during the course of the Senate study on Bill
C-62, the telecommunications bill, which still hasn't. seen the
light of day. They are significant enough, and the issue with respect
to the role and place of the CRTC—as a matter of fact, I forgot to put
down the CRTC —becomes a very significant aspect.

You are talking about interception and making use of radio waves,
with an indictable offence of five years and a minimum charge of
$25,000. We’re not talking about little peanuts. Under the Radiocom-
munication Act, you’re talking about transmitting even the knowl-
edge of the use of a conversation.

I think all of us who are around this table saw the impact of the
Wilhelmy case inQuebec. Rightor wrong, true or false, thishasa very
important place and role to play, and what is government respoqsx_b_ll-
ity for public airwaves and what is the manufacturers’ responsibility

forprotection of airwaves and whatin reality canbedone in apractical
sense.

254622

[Traduction]

Mme Finestone: Avez—vous I'intention d’examiner la liste des
témoins, monsieur le président?

Le président: Oui, nous pouvons faire cela maintenant. Merci de
me le rappeler.

M. Angus: Nous devrions commencer par cette liste, car nous
devrons en tenir compte pour déterminer quand et combien de fois
nous devrons nous réunir.

Le président: Oui, exactement. je vais vous donner la liste
des gens qui ont manifesté le désir de comparaitre devant le
comité ou de nous envoyer un mémoire. Pour commencer, il y a
I’Association des droits civils, 1'organisation de M. Borovoy a
Toronto; deuxiemement, Marie-Josée Simard du Barreau du
Québec; troisiemement, d’Ottawa, I’ Association canadicnne des
policiers qui a transmis un mémoire qui, je crois, n’a pas encore
été traduit; quatriemement, Cantel Toronto; et cinquiémement,
I’Association canadienne de la presse quotidienne. Voila les cing
groupes qui, jusqu’ici, ont demandé a comparaitre ou manifesté
I’intention d’envoyer un mémoire.

M™¢ Finestone m’a soumis une liste et je cite:

A mon sens, le comité doit absolument entendre Ies témoins
suivants: le ministre des Communications; M. Bruce Phillips,
Commissaire a la protection de la vie privée; 1’Association
canadienne des journalistes; Stentor Telecom Policy Inc.; I’ Asso-
ciation des banquiers canadiens; 1’Association canadienne du
marketing direct; Bell cellulaire/Rogers Cantel.

Ainsi, nous avons les cinq premiers groupes, plus tous ceux qui
ont été suggérés par MM Finestone et qui pourraient souhaiter
comparaitre ou a qui on pourrait demander de venir.

Mme Finestone: Lorsque nous étudicrons la  deuxiéme
partie du projet de loi qui contient des changements précis au
Code criminel et a la Loi sur la radiocommunication, qui
concerne les téléphones que nous utilisons dans nos voitures et
lorsque nous marchons sur le trottoir, nous constaterons que la
protection de la vie privée est devenue une affaire trés grave. Le
commissaire a la vie privée, M. Bruce Phillips, a soulevé des
questions particuliérement intéressantes a 1'occasion du débat au
Sénatsur le projet de loi C—62, le projet de loi sur les télécommunica-
tions qui n’a pas encore vu le jour. Ce sont des éléments trés
importants, et en particulier, la remise en question du réle joué par le
CRTC. . .soitditen passant, j'ai oublié¢ de mentionner e CRTC dans
ma liste.

Ils’agitdinterception et deI'utilisation des ondes radioet on parle
d’imposer des peines de cinq ans de prison et des amendes minimum
de 25 000$. Ce n’est pas de la petite monnaie. Dans la Loi sur la
radiocommunication, on parle méme de transmettre la connaissance
de I'existence d’une conversation.

Nous avons tous pu constaterquelles répercussions cela peut avoir
lors de I"affaire Wilhelmy au Québec. A tort ou a raison, que ce soit
vrai ou faux, c’estun élément qui n’est pas négligeable, et il va falloir
décider quelle est la responsabilité du gouvernement en ce qui
concerne les ondes publiques, quelles sont Ies responsabilités des
manufacturiers en ce qui concerne la protection des ondes, et
s’interroger également sur ce qui est possible sur le plan pratique.
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I don’t have any answers, but it needs to be carefully examined. If
you’re going to indict people for five years and you’re going to fine
them $25,000, it merits a much closer look.

I had a chat with Mr. Phillips, who 1 know will certainly
come and appear before us and who can bring us some
information based on a structure that the minister put into place
called the Telecommunications Privacy Protection Agency, which
deals with telemarketers and the selling of lists and the accumulation
of information and the transmission of that information. It is looking
at this whole section on privacy and the impact of the use of your Visa
card and the transmission of your numbers over the airwaves.

You could be hearing something sitting around your pool; you like
itand you dial 1-800, whatever the numbers are, and you order. You
have left your name, your phone number, and your Visa card number.
There’s no protection over that.

So I suggest that we should hear from the proper people who are
involved. The list I have in front of me also includes the journalists
who have spoken to us about, again, freedom of expression, liberties,
rights. I guess yourcall from the Canadian Civil Liberties Association
underscores the views we need to hear in that direction.

® 1605

Mr. Angus: | want to support the list that we received from the
clerk of people who have contacted us, along with Mrs. Finestone’s
list, with the following possible add—ons. I don’t think these have
been raised yet, although we've talked about them privately: the
Minister of Justice, in addition to the Minister of Communications;
the Canadian Association of Chiefs of Police—

Mrs. Finestone: I thought you read that.

Mr. Angus: I don’t know the name of the organization, but
perhaps the parliamentary secretary could help me on this. It is
my understanding that a number of people from across the
country, including police chiefs and police officers, assisted the
department over a number of years in looking at wiretapping
and security. I'm not sure if it’s a formal organization; but if it
is, then I wouldn’t mind having the chair of that organization
come before us to indicate whether what we now have in the bill
is what in fact they were looking for when their consultation started.
So that’s another group; again, I don’t know who they are and I'm
hoping that the parliamentary secretary can help us with that.

There are two other groups, and one I'll rely on Sheila to give you
the right name: the Canadian Association of Broadcasters—

Mrs. Finestone: Matthew just suggested that to me, and I just
wondered why we would want them. Although I won’t say no, I was
just curious about what their input would be.

Mr. Angus: In the same vein as the Canadian Association of
Journalists. The concern from the broadcasting reporting end is
whether or not they are being restricted in what they can access and
therefore what they can use. I suspect that the electronic folk have as
much concern as those of the print media. For that reason, I'm
suggesting the name.

[Translation]

Je n’ai pas de réponses, mais tout cela doit étre étudié attentive-
ment. Si vous voulez vraiment emprisonner les gens pour cing ans, si
vous voulez leur imposer des amendes de 25 000§, il va falloir
regarder cela de beaucoup plus pres.

Jai eu l'occasion de discuter avec M. Phillips qui
comparaitra certainement devant nous et qui pourra nous
donner des informations sur un module qui a été créé par le
ministre, un groupe de protection de la vie privée dans le
domaine des télécommunications qui s’intéresse aux télévendeurs,
la vente de listes de clients, au rassemblement d’informations et a leur
transmission. Ce groupe est en train d'étudier tout ce chapitre sur la
vie privée et ce qui se passe lorsque le numéro de votre carte Visa est
transmis sur les ondes.

Vous étes assis au bord de votre piscine, vous voyez quelque chose
qui vous plait et vous appelez le 1-800 pour passer votre commande.
Vous donnez votre nom, votre numéro de téléphone et votre numéro
de carte Visa. Il n’y aaucune protection pour ce genre de transaction.

Nous devons parler aux gens qui sont impliqués dans ce genre de
choses. La liste que j’ai sous les yeux comprend également des
Jjournalistes qui sont déja venus nous parler de liberté d’expression,
de liberté, de droits. Quant a la I’ Association canadienne des droits
civils qui vous a contactée, c¢’était une opinion dont nous avons
également besoin.

M. Angus: Je suis d’accord avec la liste que la greffiére nous a
distribuée et sur laquelle figurent les gens qui nous ont contactés, et
je suis d’accord avec la liste de M™¢ Finestone a laquelle j’ajouterai
quelques suggestions. Nous enavons déja parlé entre nous, mais je ne
crois pas que cela ait été soulevé en séance: le ministre de la Justice,
en plus du ministre des Communications; I’ Association canadienne
des chefs de police. . .

Mme Finestone: Je croyais que vous aviez déja mentionné cela.

M. Angus: Je ne connais pas le nom de I’organisation, mais
le secr€taire parlementaire pourra peut-étre m’aider. Je crois
comprendre qu’il y a des gens d’un peu partout dans le pays, y
compris des chefs de police et des agents de police, que le
ministére consulte depuis des années pour les questions relatives
aux tables d’écoute et a la sécurité. Je ne sais pas si c’est un
organisme officiel, mais si c’est le cas, j'aimerais bien que le
président de cet organisme vienne nous dire si le projet de loi
est bien conforme 4 ce que I'on cherchait 4 obtenir au début des
consultations. Voila donc un autre groupe; je le répéte, je ne sais pas
trés bien de qui il s’agit, j’espére que le secrétaire parlementaire le
saura,

II'y a deux autres groupes, pour le premier, j'espére que Sheila
pourra vous donner leur nom exact: I’ Association canadienne des
radiodiffuseurs. . .

Mme Finestone: Matthew vient de m'en parler et je me demande
ce que nous pourrions avoir a leur demander. Je ne m’y opposerai
pas, mais j'aimerais bien savoir de quoi nous pourrions leur parler.

M. Angus: C’est un peu comme 1’ Association canadienne des
Journalistes. Les radiodiffuseurs ne voudraient pas qu’on les empé-
che d’avoiracceésacertaines informations et donc, de les diffuser. J”ai
I'impression que la presse électronique est toute aussi inquiéte a cet
¢gard que la presse €crite. Etc’est la raison pour laquelle j'ai proposé
ce groupe.
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The final group is the Press Gallery itself.

Mrs. Finestone: In the course of our examination, when we
put the Minister of Communications, can it be indicated that we
want some substantive information about the number of
scanners supposedly out there that seem to be presenting a
constraint? The figure used by the minister and the ministry is
900,000 scanners, almost as many as there are cellular
telephones. That means that close to 1 out of every 25
Canadians has a scanner. I'm a bit skeptical about those figures.
1 find them a little bit hard to believe, and even if that was the case, |
can’t understand why we can’t touch the question of scanners in any
normal, regulated way.

In the light of the fact that I don’t know the first thing about
scanners or how they work or why they can’t be handled or why you
can’t encrypt telephone hubs or rebroadcast things, it's important.

You can, but it costs a ruddy fortune. However, that’s another
matter.

I really would like to ask that the DOC personnel involved with. . .
What would it be? Licensing of scanners?

Mr. Angus: The technical side of it.
Mrs. Finestone: The technical side? Thank you.

So when the Minister of Communications comes in, he will bring
his technocrats with him.

The Chairman: Would the committee like to have one or two or
three technical specialists here at the first meeting with witnesses to
tell us exactly what the technology is, and also have somebody here
to relate the technology to the law as it is being proposed in the bill?

Mrs. Finestone: That is such a priority.
Mr. Angus: That is an excellent suggestion.

The Chairman: In my own mind, I know nothing about the
technology and I know nothing about the law at this point. I hope to
learn from both. If we could have experts in both of those fields totie
the two together — in other words, why are we here, what's the bn!l
proposed to do, so that we understand, or so that I understand it
anyway —then I'm sure it would help all of us.

Mr. Thacker: The government is of the view that the Minister of
Justice would be the most appropriate person to come, but he can
bring the technical of ficials with him, whether from Communlca(lons
or from Justice, to answer the questions that I think we've just raised.
The Minister of Justice is available to come this Wednesday at 3.30
p.m.

Mrs. Finestone: [Inaudible—Editor). . .the appearance of the
Minister of Communications? I don’t know; I guess we could wait
and see.

Mr. Thacker: Why don’t we wait and see. If we need the Minister
of Communications afterwards, then I'm sure we shall be able to
agree.

[Traduction)
Enfin, il y a la Tribune des journalistes.

Mme Finestone: Lorsque le moment sera venu de
convoquer le ministre des Communications, serait—il possible de
le prévenir d’avance que nous avons besoin d’informations de
fond sur le nombre de scanneurs qui, semble-t-il, existent et
posent un probléme? Le ministre et les gens de son ministére
parlaient de 900000 scanneurs, presque autant que de
téléphones cellulaires. Autrement dit, prés de | Canadien sur 25
en possede un. Je doute un peu de la véracité de ces chiffres.
J’ai du mal acroire que ce soit possible, et méme si ¢’était le cas, je ne
vois pas pourquoi on ne réglerait pas la question des scanneurs de la
fagon normale, par la réglementation.

Cela dit, comme je n’ai pas la moindre idée de ce que sont ces
scanneurs, de la fagon dont ils fonctionnent, comme je ne sais pas
pourquoi il n’est pas possible de coder les concentrateurs téléphoni-
ques ou de retransmettre, ¢’est particuliérement important.

On peut le faire, mais cela coiite une méchante fortune. Cela dit,
c’est une autre affaire.

J’aimerais vraiment demander au personnel du ministére des
Communications qui s’occupe de... En fait de quoi s’agit—il,
d’émettre des permis pour les scanneurs?

M. Angus: L’aspect technique.
Mme Finestone: L’aspect technique? Merci.

Donc, il faut que le ministre des Communications vienne avec ses
technocrates.

Le président: Est—ce que les membres du comité souhaitent que
deux ou trois spécialistes des questions techniques assistent a la
premiére réunion avec des témoins; ainsi, ils pourraient nous
expliquer en quoi consiste la technologie, et nous pourrions
également avoir un exposé sur les liens qui existent entre la
technologie et les dispositions qui figurent dans la loi?

Mme Finestone: C’est une véritable priorité.
M. Angus: C’est une excellente suggestion.

Le président: Personnellement, je ne connais rien de la technolo-
gie et, pour I'instant, rien non plus des dispositions Iégales. De cette
fagon, nous pourrons nous familiariser avec les deux aspects. S’il
était possible d’avoir des experts dans ces deux domaines, des gens
qui pourraient nous expliquer quel rapport il y a entre ces deux
domaines, nous saurions, en fait, 4 quoi sert ce projet de loi et cela
nous aiderait, moi en tout cas, mais nous tous j’en suis certain, a
beaucoup mieux comprendre de quoi il est question.

M. Thacker: La majorité estime que ¢’est surtout au ministre de
la Justice que nous avons des questions a poser, mais il peut venir
avec des spécialistes, qu'ils soient du ministére des Communications
ou du ministére de la Justice. Le ministre de la Justice est disponible
ce mercredi a |5h30.

Mme Finestone: [/naudible—Editeur) . . la comparution du
ministre des Communications? Je ne sais pas; nous pourrons toujours
voir.

M. Thacker: Pourquoi n’attendons—-nous pas de voir ce qui se
passe et si nous jugeons utile de parler au ministre des Communica-
tions, nous pourrons toujours nous mettre d’accord plus tard.
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Mr. Angus: It’s primarily a Justice bill.
Mr. Thacker: Yes, and they’ll have the Minister of Justice free.
The Chairman: Bill C-109 is a Justice bill.

e [610

Mr. Thacker: Therefore Isuggest that we should have the Minister
of Justice on Wednesday afternoon and follow him with Bruce
Phillips, the Privacy Commissioner. That will get us geared up as to
the legal business, and Bruce Phillips will talk about privacy in
general —

The Chairman: Are you suggesting that the Minister of Justice
and his officials will take up the entire meeting on Wednesday?

Mr. Thacker: No, we would have two witnesses, first the minister
and his officials and then we would go to Mr. Phillips if we have time,
as I presume we will.

The Chairman: Fine.

Mrs. Finestone: What’s that date?
The Chairman: That’s the |7th.
Mr. Angus: St. Paddy’s Day.

The Chairman: There will be a lot of communicating going onon
that day.

In my calendar I have the Solicitor General for Wednesday
afternoon, the 17th, but I don’t know what the meeting’s about.

Mrs. Finestone: What has he got to do with this? Is this the
Solicitor General —

The Chairman: No. This is my own personal calendar for a
meeting on Wednesday afternoon.

Mrs. Finestone: Oh, excuse me. I just wondered if he was
replacing the Minister of Justice or something.

The Chairman: You have a meeting too, do you not, on
Wednesday afternoon?

Mrs. Finestone: I do, but I will get myself replaced. I don’t have
any time free when you have the same time. Writing a report is not
very easy.

Mr. Angus: Are there any other options in terms of when the
minister might be available? I ask this because, let’s face it, the
minister’s schedule is probably the most inflexible of all.

The Chairman: Yes, but that’s really the only date we’ve got.
Mrs. Finestone: So why don’t we do that anyway.

The Chairman: This Wednesday? Do we have a room?

The Clerk: Not yet.

The Chairman: You’ll get a room?

The Clerk: If [ don’t find a room for Wednesday —

Mrs. Finestone: Do we have the Canadian Bar Association on that
list?

The Chairman: Mr. Thacker has said just Wednesday, isn’tit, for
the minister?

[Translation)

M. Angus: C’estun projet de loi qui intéresse la Justice avant tout.
M. Thacker: Oui, et le ministre de la Justice pourra se libérer.

Le président: Le projet de loi C—109 concerne la Justice.

M. Thacker: Nous pourrions donc recevoir le ministre de la
Justice mercredi aprés—midi, aprés quoi nous aurons Bruce Phillips,
le Commissaire a la protection de la vie privée. De cette fagon, nous
serons parés sur le plan juridique et Bruce Phillips pourra nous parler
de la protection de la vie privée en général. . .

Le président: Vous pensez qu’il faut consacrer toute la séance de
mercredi au ministre de la Justice et a ses collaborateurs?

M. Thacker: Non, nous pourrions avoir deux témoins, pour
commencer le ministre ct ses collaborateurs, puis M. Phillips si nous
en avons le temps, et j'imagine que nous |’aurons.

Le président: Parfait.

Mme Finestone: Quelle date?

Le président: Le 17.

M. Angus: Le jour de la Saint-Patrick.

Le président: Ce jour |4, les communications seront nombreuses.

Sur mon agenda, j'ai une réunion avec le Solliciteur général pour
mercredi aprés-midi, le 17, mais je ne sais pas de quoi il s’agit.

Mme Finestone: Qu’est—ce que cela a a voir avec lui? Est—ce que
c’est le Solliciteur général. . .

Le président: Non, ¢’est sur mon agenda personnel, une réunion
prévue mercredi aprés—midi.

Mme Finestone: Oh, excusez-moi. Je me demandais s’il rempla-
¢ait maintenant le ministre de la Justice.

Le président: Mais vous aussi, vous avez une réunion mercredi
aprés—-midi, n’est—ce pas?

Mme Finestone: Oui, mais je vais me faire remplacer. Je ne suis
jamais libre & un moment ou vous étes disponible. Ce n’est pas trés
facile de rédiger un rapport.

M. Angus: Y a-t-il d"autres possibilités pour la comparution du
ministre? Si je pose laquestion, ¢’estqu’il ne faut pas se leurrer, ¢ 'est
probablement le ministre qui a le plus de mal a se libérer.

Le président: Oui, mais en fait, ¢'est la seule date que nous ayons.
Mme Finestone: Eh bicn, faisons comme nous I’avons dit.

Le président: Ce mercredi? Est—ce que nous avons une salle?
La greffiére: Pas encore.

Le président: Vous allez en réserver une?

La greffiére: Si je ne trouve pas de salle pour mercredi. . .

Mme Finestone: Est—ce que |’ Association du barreau canadien
figure sur cette liste?

Le président: Monsieur Thacker nous a dit que le ministre n’était
libre que mercredi, n’cst—ce pas?



15-3-1993

Projet de loi C-109 i §3

[Texte]
Mr. Thacker: That's the only date the minister has been able to
give us.

Mrs. Finestone: Mr. Chairman, was the Canadian Bar Association
on the list of five that you originally gave us?

Mr. Angus: No, it’s not. We missed that one.

Mrs. Finestone: Oh. I'm sorry, but I forgot to give it to you when
I read the list out. It said the Canadian Police Association and the
Canadian Bar Association. Didn’t I read that?

Mr. Angus: No.
The Chairman: No.

Mrs. Finestone: Well, didn’t somebody say *‘chiefs of police”’?
I thought I heard it.

The Chairman: Mr. Angus.
Mrs. Finestone: Oh, okay. It’s on the list. I guess I didn’t hear it.

M. Tétreault: 11 y a I’Association canadienne des policiers.
Mme Finestone: Oui, c’est exact.

M. Tétreault: Avec les chefs de police, cela fait deux.

Mme Finestone: Oui, mais ¢’est du pareil au méme, n’est—ce pas?

Mr. Thacker: Mr. Chairman, ideally I guess we wouldn’t like to
have too many witnesses, if possible, because we'd like to get the bill
back to the House. The fact of the matter is that Mrs. Finestone has
made a case for hearing these groups, but it may well be that they
won’'t want to appear. They might want to put a brief in—

Mrs. Finestone: That’s fine, but opportunity should be given.
Mr. Thacker: —or they might say that the bill is just fine.

Mrs. Finestone: Yes.

Mr. Thacker: If they were to say the bill’s just fine, we’ve been
consulted, blah, blah, and we have no objection, then there would be
no need to hear them.

Mr. Angus: I agree with that.

Mrs. Finestone: Mr. Chairman, I would accept that, if they feel
strongly enough. After all, I don’t know about anybody hcre,' but I
certainly am not an expert. I would appreciate the information. I
would appreciate offering the opportunity to those groups so they
can’t say that justice wasn't offered even if it wasn’t done.

Mr. Thacker: Mr. Angus had a good suggestion oo, that ourclerk
could be in touch with these witnesses with a view to whether they
really want to come and then, secondly, to group them. We might as
well have the Canadian Bar Association, the Civil Liberties Associa-
tion, and the Chief’s of Police grouped together.

Mr. Angus: Similar issues would be grouped toge(her.so t.hat we
would getatrain of thought. It mighteven shorten theguestioning and
allow us to proceed further.

[Traduction]

M. Thacker: C’est la seule date que le ministre ait pu nous
proposer.

Mme Finestone: Monsieur le président, est—e que |’ Association
du barreau canadien figurait parmi les cing groupes que vous avez
cités au début?

M. Angus: Non, nous |'avons oubliée.

Mme Finestone: Je suis désolée, mais j’ai oublié de la citer
lorsque j'ai lu ma liste. J’ai parlé de I’ Association canadienne des
policiers et de I’ Association du barreau canadien, n’est—ce pas?

M. Angus: Non.
Le président: Non.

Mme Finestone: Il me semble que quelqu’un a mentionné les
«chefs de police»? Je croyais avoir entendu cela.

Le président: C’est monsieur Angus.

Mme Finestone: D’accord, c’est donc sur la liste. Je n’avais
probablement pas bien entendu.

Mr. Tétreault: There is the Canadian Police Association.
Mrs. Finestone: Yes, that is true.

Mr. Tétreault: With the chiefs of police, that is two groups.
Mrs. Finestone: But it is the very same thing, is it not?

M. Thacker: Monsieur le président, dans la mesure du possible,
il faudrait essayer de limiter le nombre des témoins, car nous
aimerions renvoyer ce projet de loi a la Chambre. M™¢ Finestone a
expliqué pour quelle raison elle souhaitait entendre ces groupes, mais
n’oublions pas qu'ils ne voudront peut-étre pas tous comparaitre.
Certains préféreront envoyer un mémoire. . .

Mme Finestone: D’accord, mais il faut tout de méme leur offrir la
possibilité de le faire.

M. Thacker: . . .ouencore ils nousdiront qu’ils n’ont rien a redire
du projet de loi.

Mme Finestone: Oui.

M. Thacker: S’ils ne trouvent rien a redire du projet de loi, s’ils
reconnaissent qu’ils ont été consultés et qu'ils n’ont aucune
objection, nous n’avons pas besoin de les entendre.

M. Angus: Je suis bien d’accord.

Mme Finestone: Monsieur le président, je suis d’accord égale-
ment s'ils ont des opinions bien arrétées. Aprés tout, je ne sais pas ot
en sont les autres, mais pour ma part, je suis loin d’étre un expert.
J’aimerais beaucoup avoir ces informations. J’aimerais également
donner a ces groupes I’occasion d'intervenir pour qu'ils nc puissent
pas prétendre qu’ils n’ont pas été consultés.

M. Thacker: M. Angus a fait une trés bonne suggestion
également, il propose de demander a notre greffiérc de contacter ces
témoins et de leur demander s’ils souhaitent venir et, dans ce cas, de
les regrouper. Par exemple, nous pourrions fort bien recevoir en
méme temps I’ Association du barreau canadien, 1’ Association des
droits civils et les chefs de police.

M. Angus: On pourrait les regrouper par sujet, cela nous
permettraitd’approfondir certains domaines. Peut étre aussi aurions-
nous moins de questions a poser, ce qui accélérerait le processus.
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The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Thacker: That’sa good suggestion. Subject tothat, | wouldn’t
want to bring anything to a vote eliminating any witness at this
moment, because I don’t know much about the topic either.

That puts a lot of work on Marie Louise, but I think she’s used to
it.

Mrs. Finestone: You've got a nice assistant and I think that’s
wonderful. Are you planning to work together on this?

Mr. Marc Bosc (Public Bills Office): I'm here just for the day.

Mr. Thacker: Oh, you're here just for today.
Mr. Angus: He’s the watchdog.

Mr. Thacker: Could we then, Mr. Chairman, have our clerk try to
arrange that for Tuesday the 23rd in the afternoon, Wednesday the
24th in the afternoon, and Thursday the 25th?

The Chairman: Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday. That’s next
week.

Mr. Thacker: Yes, next week.

The Chairman: Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, in the after-
noon?

Mr. Thacker: That would then let us report the bill before we go
on the two-week break.

Mrs. Finestone: Hold on, please, sir. Just hold your charging
horses.

The Chairman: When does the break begin?
® 1615

Mr. Thacker: March 2!.
Mr. Tétreault: The 3rd or the 2nd.
Mr. Angus: It’s the Friday of that week, which is actually in April.

Mrs. Finestone: Could I ask a consideration from the chair
and our colleagues? Could we group the witnesses who will be
addressing the questions of the Radiocommunication Act at one
time or two times? I ask this because I really am committed to
writing the report on violence, which is due in the House. It was
a request of the Prime Minister, which we must answer within a
given delay. I would really appreciate the grouping of witnesses
so I won’t have to come Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday. |
could come maybe Tuesday, maybe Wednesday, ormaybe Thursday,
but not all three days.

The Justice people will please look after the other parts of the bill.

The Chairman: Can you then work with Mrs. Finestone to see if
you can group witnesses for one of the days she’ll be able to be here?

Mrs. Finestone: If you wouldn’t mind,—
The Clerk: Okay.

[Translation]

Le président: Oui.
M. Thacker: C’est une trés bonne suggestion. Avec cette réserve,

moins non plus je ne voudrais pas éliminer certains témoins a priori,
car je connais trés mal la question.

Tout cela va donner beaucoup de travail 8 Marie Louise, mais je
crois qu’elle est habituée.

Mme Finestone: Vous avez une aide précieuse, c’est une
excellente chose. Est—ce que vous avez I'intention de travailler
ensemble sur ces questions?

M. Marc Bosc (Bureau des projetsde loi d’intérét public): Jene
suis 1a qu'aujourd hui.

M. Thacker: Oh, vous n’étes 1a qu’aujourd’hui.
M. Angus: C’est le chien de garde.

M. Thacker: Dans ce cas, monsieur le président, est—ce que notre
greffiére pourrait essayer d’organiser des réunions pour le mardi 23
dans I’aprés—-midi, le mercredi 24 dans I’aprés-midi et le jeudi 25?

Le président: Mardi, mercredi et jeudi. C’est la semaine prochai-
ne.

M. Thacker: Oui, la semaine prochaine.

Le président: Mardi, mercredi et jeudi, dans I’aprés—-midi?

M. Thacker: Ce qui nous permettrait de faire rapport du projet de
loi avant I’ajournement de deux semaines.

Mme Finestone: Un instant, n’allez pas si vite, modérer un peu
votre fougue.

Le président: Quand la Chambre ajourne-t—¢lle?

M. Thacker: Le 31 mars.
M. Tétreault: Le 3 ou le 2.

M. Angus: [1s’agit du vendredi de cette semaine—l3, qui tombe en
fait en avril.

Mme Finestone: Monsieur le président, chers collégues,
permettez-moi de vous présenter une demande, Serait—il
possible de regrouper pour une ou deux séances les témoins qui
parleront de la Loi sur la radiocommunication? Si je demande
cela, c’est que je me suis engagée A rédiger le rapport sur la
violence, qui doit étre déposé a la Chambre. Ce rapport a été
demandé par le premier Ministre et nous devons donc le
produire dans un délai donné. Je préférerais que les témoins
soient regroupés de fagon a ne pas avoir a siéger au comité le mardi,
le mercredi et le jeudi. Je pourrais peut-£tre venir le mardi, peut—étre
le mercredi, ou peut-€tre le jeudi, mais pas les trois jours.

Les gens du ministére de la Justice voudront bien s’occuper des
autres parties du projet de loi.

Le président: Pouvez—vous vous arranger avec M™® Finestone
pour voir s’il est possible de regrouper ces témoins de fagon a les
entendre les jours ou elle sera disponible?

Mme Finestone: Si cela ne vous dérange pas,. . .
La greffiére: D’accord.
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Mrs. Finestone: —1’d appreciate that very much.

The Chairman: For the rest now, is Tuesday, Wednesday, and
Thursday, in the afternoon, acceptable? We'll have to find a room; I
don’tknow whether it will be this room. It will be some roomanyway.
There might be different rooms each day.

Try to get the same room, if you can. It’s easier for my memory.

The Clerk: They're quite fully booked right now.
Mrs. Finestone: Where’s your office right now?
The Chairman: Just upstairs.

The Clerk: There is some difficulty in getting rooms.
Mr. Angus: Derek likes this room.

Mrs. Finestone: Let’s have a meeting room in the Confederation
Building.

The Clerk: I know, but still. . .
The Chairman: Are those dates acceptable?
Mr. Angus: Agreed.

The Chairman: On Wednesday, then, we shall be meeting with
the Minister of Justice and Mr. Phillips at 3:30 p.m.

The Clerk: I'll have to confirm that.

The Chairman: We don’t have a room confirmed yet, but you'll
get notification. That should get us well launched.

Mrs. Finestone: Hold on. You said something very important at
the outset. Is this part of that? You're having the minister here, butare
you having the officials who are going to explain the technology to
us here?

The Chairman: That’s what I was hoping.
Mr. Thacker, I think—
Mr. Thacker: The minister always comes with his officials.

Mrs. Finestone: And they’re coming from DOC?

Mr. Thacker: Yes, we will have somebody from DOC and
somebody from Justice.

The Chairman: To tie the two together.
Mr. Thacker: I think all of us need that briefing.

Mrs. Finestone: As you can see, I'm just a one-track mind.

The Chairman: No, no, we all need that.

The technology with the law—that will be an informational
meeting on Wednesday, but the minister will also be here to answer
questions, followed by Mr. Phillips.

That's four meetings. We should bite pretty deeply into this bill by
the end of the fourth meeting.

Mrs. Finestone: You said March 17, which is tomorrow.

The Chairman: No, Wednesday, March 17.

[Traduction]

Mme Finestone: Cela me rendrait grandement service.

Le président: Pour ce qui est du reste, est—ce que les aprés—midi
du mardi, du mercredi et du jeudi vous conviennent? Nous devrons
trouver une salle; je ne sais pass’il s’agira de cette salle—ci. Peut—étre
y aura—t-il méme une salle différente chaque jour.

Essayez d’obtenirlaméme salle, si c’est possible. Celavaut mieux
pour ma mémoire.

La greffiére: 1l y a peu de salles disponibles 4 I’heure actuelle.
Mme Finestone: Ol est votre bureau maintenant?

Le président: A I’étage au—dessus.

La greffiére: Il est difficile d’obtenir des salles.

M. Angus: Derek aime bien cette salle.

Mme Finestone: Demandons une salle de conférence dans
I’immeuble Confédération.

La greffiere: Je sais, mais pourtant. . .
Le président: Ces dates vous conviennent—¢lles?
M. Angus: Adopté.

Le président: Donc, le mercredi, nous rencontrerons le ministre
de la Justice et M. Phillips a 15h30.

La greffiere: Je devrai confirmer.

Le président: Nousn’avons pasencore réservé de salle, mais vous
recevrez un avis. Cela devrait nous mettre sur la bonne voie.

Mme Finestone: Un instant. Vous avez dit quelque chose de trés
important au début. Est—ce que cela tient toujours? Vous invitez le
ministre, mais vous entendrez aussi les fonctionnaires qui viendront
nous expliquer la technologie?

Le président: C'est du moins ce que j’espérais.
M. Thacker, je crois. . .

M. Thacker: Le ministre est toujours accompagné de ses
fonctionnaires.

Mme Finestone: Ce sont des gens du MDC?

M. Thacker: Oui, nous entendrons des gens du MDC et d’autres
de la Justice.

Le président: Pour faire le lien entre les deux ministéres.

M. Thacker: Nous avons tous besoin d’une telle séance d’infor-
mation.

Mme Finestone: Comme vous pouvez le constater, j’ai de la suite
dans les idées.

Le président: Non, non, nous en avons tous besoin.

La technologie sur laquelle porte la loi. . . cela fera I’objet d’une
séance d’information mercredi, mais le ministre sera également
présent pour répondre aux questions, de méme que M. Phillips.

Il faudra donc quatre séances. D’ici la fin de la quatriéme, nous
devrions étre rendus assez loin dans I’étude de ce projet de loi.

Mme Finestone: Vous avez parlé du 17 mars, c’est-a—dire
demain.

Le président: Non, le mercredi 17 mars.



1:16

Bill C-109

15-3-1993

[Text]

Mrs. Finestone: Then did you say Thursday, March 18?

The Chairman: No. The following week was to be March 23 in
the afternoon, March 24 in the afternoon, and March 25 in the
afternoon.

Mr. Angus: Mr. Chairman, the thought just occurred to me: do we
need to hear from the minister? I suggested him as a possible witness.
It’satechnical bill. Thisis not necessarily 2 philosophical bill. Itmight
turn out to be that after we hear witnesses.

Mrs. Finestone: We could have him at the end.

Mr. Angus: Would it not make sense to keep the minister in
reserve, so if we get into some of the political elements as a result of
hearing witnesses, we could then invite him to appearso we could talk
about them. In the meantime, on Wednesday we could schedule the
technical folk, followed by the Privacy Commissioner. That might be
more productive.

Certainly in transport we’ve gone through a number of bills where
we’ve said that we didn’t want the minister. He has more things to do
than sit around and jaw at us. I just throw that out for consideration.

Mr. Thacker: I have no objection to that at all.

Mrs. Finestone: Before you answer that, could I ask a question?
I defer, if I may, to the men in the justice portfolio that I trust.

Blaine, would it be the minister or a technocrat who would answer
the question on the degree of penalty? I'd like to have explained tome
why it should be such a serious indictment of that magnitude.

Mr. Thacker: I think the minister would have to answer that,
because it’s a policy question.

Mrs. Finestone: That’s right. That's why [ am just saying that—

Mr. Thacker: The official would just say that’s what the minister
set, or—

Mrs. Finestone: I'm prepared to understand it, but T don’t
understand it. That's the problem.
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Mr. Angus: Whenis itimportant to ask that question—at the front
end, or at the back end if we hear a number of witnesses who raise the
question of the degree of the penalty? Then it becomes fair to—

Mrs. Finestone: I don’t care one way or the other. Let it be
whichever venue you think is best, as long as you understand that I
don’t believe that anyone other than the minister can answer a
question such as that.

Mr. Angus: Fair enough. Then maybe we need a commitment
from the government side that the minister will appearat the end if we
decide we want him to, in order for us to give up the opportunity to
hear from him this Wednesday.

Mr. Thacker: Okay. Then we will schedule just technical people.
The minister might want to come, to be with them,—

Mrs. Finestone: He is more than welcome, if he would like to.

[Translation]

Mme Finestone: Avcz—vous parlé du jeudi 18 mars?

Le président: Non. Les séances de la semaine suivante devraient
avoir lieu les aprés—midi des 23, 24 et 25 mars.

M. Angus: Monsieur le président, je viens d’avoir une idée:
devons—nous attendre le ministre? J’ai suggéré son nom a titrc de
témoinéventuel. Il s"agitd’un projet de loi technique, pas nécessaire-
ment d’un projet de loi philosophique. Cela pourrait étre cependant
le cas une fois que nous aurons entendu les témoins.

Mme Finestone: Peut-étre pourrions—nous |'entendre en tout
dernier lieu.

M. Angus: Ne serait-il pas logique de garder le ministre en
réserve, de fagon a ce que, si des éléments de politique émergent i la
suite des témoignages entendus, nous I’invitions a comparaitre pour
lui en parler. Entre—temps, nous pourrions entendre les spécialistes
techniques mercredi, puis le Commissaire a la vie privée. Cela serait
peut-étre plus productif.

Dans le domaine des transports, nous avons étudié un certain
nombre de projets de loi pour lesquels nous avons décidé de ne pas
entendre le ministre. Il abien d’autres choses & faire que de venir jaser
avec nous. Réfléchissez-y.

M. Thacker: Je n’ai aucune objection a ccla.

Mme Finestone: Avant de répondre & cela, puis-je poser une
question? Je m’adresserai, sivous me le permettez, au messieurs de la
Justice en qui j'ai toute confiance.

Blaine, qui pourrait répondre a une question sur le degré de la
peine, le ministre ou un technocrate? J’aimerais qu’on m’explique
pourquoi la punition devrait étre si forte.

M. Thacker: Je crois que ce serait au ministre d’y répondre,
puisqu’il s’agit d’une question de politique.

M. Finestone: C’est juste. C’est pourquoi je disais. . .

M. Thacker: Le fonctionnaire pourrait répondre, mais il se
limiterait & dire que c’est ce que le ministre a établi, ou. . .

Mme Finestone: Malgré ma bonne volonté, je nc comprends pas.
C’est le probléme.

M. Angus: Quand vaut-il mieux poser la question — au début des
audiences ou plutdt a la fin, si certains témoins soulignent la question
de la sévérité de la peine? Il serait alors juste. . .

Mme Finestone: Cela m’est égal. Choisissez la solution qui vous
semble la meilleure, mais sachez qu’a mon avis, seul le ministre peut
répondre a une telle question.

M. Angus: D’accord. Alors peut-étre devons—nous demander
aux députés du gouvernement de s’engager a ce que le ministre
comparaisse a la fin des audiences, si nous décidons de 1’entendre,
avant de laisser passer I’occasion de I’entendre ce mercredi.

M. Thacker: D’accord. Nous prévoirons donc d’entendre le
personnel technique seulement. Le ministre peut vouloir les accom-
pagner. ..

Mme Finestone: Il est le bienvenu, s’il le souhaite.
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Mr. Thacker: —if he wants to, but Wednesday will be primarily
technical.

Mr. Angus: Unless the minister needs to know what is in the bill.
He might want to come just to hear it.

Mrs. Finestone: I was just going to say that I'll bet he would be
fascinated.

The Chairman: I am uncomfortable with that arrangement,
because there is always a problem when a minister is present. You
want to put questions to him and they tend to be very political
questions, or at least they become political questions. Frankly, I think
our first meeting should be technical. We should try to educate
ourselves. We will have time to put more questions, then, to the
technical and legal people.

On the idea of having the minister back later to answer the policy
questions, when we know what we are talking about—at least when
I know, I hope, what we are talking about—I think it would be more
effective at that point. Is that agreeable?

Mr. Thacker: That is quite agreeable.

The Chairman: Then for Wednesday, March 17, it will be
technical people from DOC and legal people from Justice, followed
by Mr. Phillips.

Mrs. Finestone: That's excellent.

The Chairman: Okay. I have one more point. It is a technical
matter; that is, the deadline for briefs. Do we want to establish a
deadline? Probably we should.1don’tknow how long thiscommittee
will be sitting, but when we contact the people who want either to
appear before us or to send briefs, they should have an idea of a
cut—off time.

Mr. Angus: If we are starting hearings on Wednesday, then
could I suggest that, in faimess to them, we need to give them
at least a week and a half to two weeks to put together the
briefs. Obviously those who are going to want to appear next
week have their own self-imposed deadline, but for others we
should have at least until the end of that following week. Again,
we might find that there isn’t much interest, so we might not
have to worry about it. Could I suggest that we could just Ica\fe
the clerk some flexibility to make it as soon as possible, keeping in
mind that the committee might change its mind and the bill might go
back to the House. You can always send them off to the Senate if you
don’t like what has transpired.

Mrs. Finestone: That's not a very democratic and fair way tolook
atit, Mr. Angus.

The Chairman: Do you want to strike that from the record?
Mr. Angus: No.

Mr. Thacker: It often happens that after the clerk has discussgd it
with the witnesses, they will justcomeandgivea verbal presentation.
They don’t have to submit a written brief.

The Chairman: Yes, that’s true.

Mr. Thacker: They are entitled to come and just give their
comments on the particular clauses they are concerned about, and the
record picks up what they are saying.

[Traduction)

M. Thacker: .. .s’il le veut, mais la séance de mercredi sera
surtout d’ordre technique.

M. Angus: A moins que le ministre ait besoin de savoir cc que
contient le projet de loi. Peut—étre voudra—t—il se présenter a seule fin
de I’entendre.

Mme Finestone: I| sera sans doute fasciné.

Le président: Cette solution me met mal a I’aise, parce qu'il y a
toujours un probléme lorsque le ministre est présent. Vous voulez lui
poser desquestions d’ordre politique, ou du moins, ¢’est | 'orientation
que les questions finissent par prendre. Je crois, pour ma part, que la
premicre séance devrait étre d’ordre technique. Nous devrions
essayer de nous renseigner. Nous aurons ensuite le temps de poser
davantage de questions au personnel technique et juridique.

Quant a I'idée d’entendre le ministre plus tard, pour qu’il réponde
aux questions de politique, une fois que nous saurons de quoi nous
parlons—une fois que je saurai, moi du moins, de quoi il est
question— je crois que cela pourrait étre plus efficace. Etes—vous
d’accord avec cette idée?

M. Thacker: Tout a fait.

Le président: Donc, le mercredi 17 mars. nous entendrons le
personnel technique du MDC et le personnel juridique de la Justice,
suivi de M. Phillips.

Mme Finestone: Excellent.

Le président: D’accord. Autre point de nature technique: la date
limite de présentation des mémoires. Serait-il souhaitable de fixer
une date limite? Peut—€tre devrions-nous le faire. Je nc sais pas
pendant combien de temps notre comité siégera, mais lorsque nous
communiquerons avec les personnes qui désirent soit comparaitre
devant nous, soit nous faire parvenir des mémoires, ces personnes
devraient étre au courant du délai qui leur est imparti.

M. Angus: Si nous débutons les audiences mercredi, pour
étre justes, nous devons au moins leur accorder une semaine ct
demie a deux semaines pour rédiger leur mémoire. Bien sir, les
personnes qui désirent comparaitre la semaine prochaine
s'imposent 4 elles-mémes une date limite. Quant aux autres,
elles devraient avoir au moins jusqu'a la fin de la semaine
prochaine. Mais peut—€tre constaterons-nous que peu de gens
s’intéressent au projet de loi, ce qui éliminerait ce probleme.
Peut—étre devrions—nous donnerala greffiére unc certaine latitude lui
permettant d’obtenir les mémoires le plus tot possible, tout en tenant
compte du fait que le comité pourrait changer d’avis et renvoyer le
projet de loi a la Chambre. De toutes fagons, on peut toujours les
envoyer au Sénat, si I’on n’aime pas les résultats.

Mme Finestone: Voild une fagon peu démocratique et peu
équitable de régler le probléme, monsieur Angus.

Le président: Voulez—-vous que cela soit retiré du compte-rendu?
M. Angus: Non.

M. Thacker: Souvent, lorsque le greffierdiscute avec lestémoins,
ceux—ci décident de se présenter devant le comité et de fairc un
exposé oral. Les témoins n’ont pas a présenter de mémoire écrit.

Le président: Oui, c’est juste.

M. Thacker: lls peuvent venir devant le comité. faire leurs
observations sur les articles qui les intéressent, et tout cela est
consigné dans ce compte—rendu.
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Mr. Angus: If we put in a fixed date, then they will accuse us of
rushing it, which we don’t mean. I would rather have it fuzzy.

The Chairman: Okay. We will leave it fuzzy then.
Mr. Angus: Sure.
The Chairman: Is that the correct legal term?

Does anybody have anything else he or she wishes to raise at this
time?

Mr. Angus: I move adjournment.
The Chairman: Agreed.
This meeting stands adjourned to the call of the chair.

[Translation)

M. Angus: Si nous décidons de fixer une date limite, on nous
accusera de bécler le processus, ce que nous ne souhaitons pas. Pour
ma part, je préfére que nous ne tranchions pas.

Le président: D’accord. Nous ne trancherons pas.
M. Angus: D’accord.
Le président: S,agit-il vraiment de trancher?

Y a-t-il d’autres observations?

M. Angus: Je propose que nous levions la séance.
Le président: D’accord.

La séance est levée.

Wednesday, March 17, 1993
e 537

The Chairman: Order.
I see a quorum.

We are continuing our deliberations on Bill C-109, An Act to
amend the Criminal Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act,
and the Radiocommunication Act.

Today we will be hearing witnesses from the Department of
Justice. According to my list, the witnesses who are here are Michael
Dambrot, Senior General Counsel, National Strategy for Drug
Prosecution; Yvon Roy, General Counsel; and F. Bobiasz, Counsel.

Are any others from the Department of Justice present?

Mr. Yvon Roy (General Counsel, Department of Justice):
There is also Mrs. Elizabeth Gilhooly, who is a general counsel with
the Department of Communications. Mrs. Gilhooly would like to
introduce some other officials who are here.

The Chairman: Because of the size of the room, for one thing, I
thought we would have the Justice people first, followed by the
Department of Communications, if the committee is in agreement.

Mrs. Finestone (Mount Royal): Mr. Chairman, I explained
to you the dilemma I found myself in with two legislative
committees plus a standing committee. Lastly, I've just been
advised that I have a bill coming into the House within the next
25 to 30 minutes. As I am going to deal only with the radiocommu-
nications side of this bill, and my colleague has not arrived. . . Oh,
he’s just arriving; I’m sorry. Could we deal with the telecommunica-
tions side first, if that would be agreeable to all of you, so that I could
leave?

The Chairman: Is the committee in agreement? Okay.

Mrs. Finestone: Thank you. I appreciate that very much. I'm
sorry, gentlemen, but it’s the call of the other office.

The Chairman: Could we then have the people from the DOC at
the table. I respectfully ask the witnesses from Justice if they would
sit on the side and come back in a few minutes.

Le mercredi |7 mars 1993

Le président: A I’ordre.
1l'y a quorum.

Nous poursuivons nos délibérations sur le projet de loi C-109, loi
modifiant le Code criminel, laLoi surla responsabilité civile de I’ Etat
et le contentieux administratif et la Loi sur la radiocommunication.

Aujourd’hui, nous entendrons les témoins du ministére de la
Justice. D’aprés ma liste, ce sont: Messieurs Michael Dambrot,
Avocat général principal, Stratégie nationale des poursuites en
matiére de drogues; Yvon Roy, avocat général; et F. Bobiasz,
conseiller juridique.

Y a-t-il d’autres fonctionnaires du ministére de la Justice ici?

M. Yvon Roy (avocat général, ministére de la Justice): Il y a
aussi M™¢ Elizabeth Gilhooly, qui est avocate générale au ministére
des Communications, voudra bien présenter les fonctionnaires qui
’accompagnent.

Le président: Compte tenu de Ja grandeur de la salle, je pense que
nous allons d’abord recevoir les fonctionnaires du ministére de la
Justice et ensuite ceux du ministére des Communications, si les
membres du comité sont d’accord.

Mme Finestone (Mont-Royal): Monsieur le président, je
vous ai expliqué le dilemme dans lequel je me suis trouvée en
tant que membre de deux comités législatifs et d’un comité
permanent. Par ailleurs, on vient de m’apprendre qu'un projet
de loi sera déposé a la Chambre dans les 25 4 30 prochaines minutes.
Etant donné que je m’intéresse uniquement au volet radiocommuni-
cation de ce projet de loi et que mon collégue n’est pas arrivé. . . Ah,
il vient d’arriver; pardon. Pourrions—nous commencer par I’aspect
télécommunications, si vous étes d’accord, pour que je puisse partir?

Le président: Les membres du comité sont—ils d’accord? Bon.

Mme Finestone: Merci. Je vous en suis vraiment reconnaissante.
Désolée, messieurs, mais j'ai d’autres engagements.

Le président: J'invite donc les représentants du ministére des
Communications a la table. Je prie les témoins du ministére de la
Justice de bien vouloir s’asseoir a coté et de revenir dans quelques
minutes.
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From the Department of Communications we have Elizabeth
Gilhooly, General Counsel, Director, Legal Services; Robert W.
Jones, Director General, RadioRegulatory Branch; and Darius Breau,
Assistant Manager, Operational Policies, Procedures and Programs,
Spectrum Management Operations Directorate, Radio Regulatory
Branch.

Welcome. Do you have opening statements that you’d like to
make?

Mr. Darius Breau (Assistant Manager, Operational Policies,
Procedures and Programs, Spectrum Management Operations
Directorate, Radio Regulatory Branch, Department of Commu-
nications): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | apologize in advance formy
voice. I've got a very bad cold, so I hope you can hear me.

We thought we would start just to situate the subject of radiocom-
munications and then move more specifically into cellular via a short
video, running about 12 minutes, that shows you the role of the
Department of Communications in managing the radio—frequency
spectrum. Perhaps we could get that started.
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[Video Presentation]
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Mr. Breau: I think we can cut it there, because it goes on just to
explain what the department does in its various offices.

The reason for showing you this was to give an idea of the
various uses of the radio—frequency spectrum. As the video said,
the spectrum is divided into a number of bands, and when we
move into thinking about radio-telephone—in other words,
when you wuse the spectrum to carry telephone
conversations——this has happened in many ways over the
years. In the very early days of radio of course we had ship—to-
shore communications over what is now called short wave.
Later, in the 1950s and 1960s, we had mobile telephone services in
the VHF spectrum around 150 megahertz, and then in UHF around
450 megahertz. These systems provided telephone service from
vehicles, and in some cases portables, to people in the telephone
network, and in the reverse direction.

In the late 1970s the cellular telephone service was
developed, and it was introduced in Canada in 1985. Cellular
differs from the earlier radio-telephone systems in that, first, the
transmission quality is much improved from some of the early
radio-based systems. Also, it has the capability that as you start
to move outside the range of one particular base station with
which you are communicating, a computer—driven network
automatically switches you to the next cell site. So as you travel
along a highway, for example, you have the appearance of a scamless
conversation, but in fact you are being switched from cell site to cell
site.

[Traduction)

Du ministére des Communications, nous avons M™¢ Elizabeth
Gilhooly, avocat général, directrice, Services juridiques, M. Robert
W. Jones, directeur général, Réglementation des radiocommunica-
tions, et M. Darius Breau, gestionnaire intérimaire, Division des
politiques, des procédures et des programmes opérationnels, exploi-
tation de la gestion du spectre, Réglementation des radiocommunica-
tions.

Je vous souhaite la bienvenue. Avez-vous une déclaration
liminaire a présenter?

M. Darius Breau (gestionnaire intérimaire, Division des
politiques, des procédures et des programmes opérationnels,
exploitation de la gestion du spectre, Réglementation des radio-
communications, ministére des Communications): Merci, mon-
sieur le président. Tout d’abord, excusez—moi pour ma voix. J'ai une
trés mauvaise grippe, mais j’espére que vous pouvez m’entendre.

Nous avons décidé que pour commencer, il fallait situer le sujet
des radiocommunications et passer plus précisément en vous
présentant un court vidéo d’environ 12 minutes, pour vous montrer
le role du ministére des Communications dans la gestion du spectre
des fréquences radio. Nous pouvons commencer.

[Présentation de diapositives)

M. Breau: Je pense que nous pouvons arréter 13, car dans la suite
du film, on explique simplement ce que l¢c ministére fait dans ses
divers bureaux.

Nous vous avons montré ce film pour vous donner une idée
des diverses utilisations du spectre des fréquences
radioélectriques. Comme on I’a dit dans la vidéo, le spectre est
divisé en un certain nombre de bandes, et en ce qui concerne la
radiotéléphonie —c’est-a-dire  ['utilisation du spectre pour
véhiculer des conversations téléphoniques—cela s’est produit de
diverses maniéres au fil des ans. Au tout début de la radio, nous
avions évidemment des liaisons entre des navires et des stations
terrestres, liaisons qui se faisaient sur ce qu’on appelle aujourd’hui
des ondes courtes. Plus tard, au cours des années cinquante ct
soixante, nous avions desservi ce service radiotéléphonique mobile
dans la fréquence métrique autour de 150 mégahertz, et ensuite dans
la fréquence décimétrique autour de 450 mégahertz. Ces systémes
permettaient d’offrir le service téléphonique a partir de véhicules et,
dans certains cas, de postes portatifs vers les abonnés du réscau
téléphonique, et vice versa.

Vers la fin des années soixante-dix, on a mis au point le
service téléphonique cellulaire, qui a été introduit au Canada en
1985. Le systéme cellulaire est différent de I'ancien systéme
radiotéléphonique dans la mesure ou, tout d’abord, la qualité de
transmission est bien meilleure. De plus, 2 mesure que 1'on sort
de la portée radio d'une station de base avec laquelle on est en
train de communiquer, un réseau commandé par ordinateur
vous transfére automatiquement a la station suivante. Ainsi,
lorsqu’on voyage sur une autoroute par exemple, on a I'impression
d’avoir une conversation ininterrompue, alors qu’on est transféré
d’une station a I'autre.
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Some of the other uses of radio were alluded to in the video.
Cordless telephones in the early days operated just slightly above the
AM broadcast band, and then, more recently, in the vicinity of 46 and
49 megahertz. Now there are cordless phones that are becoming
available at 900 megahertz and frequency bands that are shared with
other services, including radio amateurs.

Other uses of radio—telephony are the air-to—ground communica-
tions you may have seen on aircraft where you now can place a call
from an aircraft to the ground. Quite obviously, that is using radio as
well in the path between the aircraft and the ground station.

The department has recently selected four service providers
to provide the first generation of a truly personal
communications service. This will be very much like a cordless
phone that you can use as a cordless phone in the home or in
the office as you move about those areas, but once you left your
home or place of employment, in the street or at least in areas
where the service providers have established base stations, you
could then place and receive telephone calls much as you can
today with cellular. This is a very low—power pocket telephone that
you can carry around with you quite easily.

Onaglobal basis, through the ITU that was mentioned in the video,
new frequency bands have recently been opened upeven higherin the
spectrum, around two gigahertz—that’s 1,800 megahertz—for this
personal communications, or PCS.

So there’s quite a range of radio-based telephone communication
systems there. Cellular is of course the one we’re focusing on today
and the one that has received a lot of attention. They are approaching
one million subscribers in Canada. The service has grown very well.
The quality is excellent.

A technological change is taking place in cellular. The early
systems were using what is known as an analogue type of
modulation, which is somewhat akin to a phonograph record,
but the newer cellular radios are moving to digital, much as a
compact disc is digital. Besides being more efficient in the way
they use the spectrum, these radios will also allow encryption
more readily, so cellular service providers will be offering
encryption to enhance the privacy of those radio-based calls. In
fact, today in some cases they offer encryption of the analogue
system, but it is not as secure as when you go to digital.

I hope this paints the background in terms of the radio-frequency
spectrum, the kinds of technologies that are here today and coming
tomorrow. I would be happy to take any technical questions.

Perhaps Elizabeth could address the legal issues and then we could
take questions, or you might want to ask questions on the technology.
Thank you.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Breau. Are there any other
presenters?

[Translation)

Dans la vidéo, on a mentionné d’autres utilisations de la
radiotéléphonie. A leurs débuts, les téléphones sans fils fonction-
naient un peu au-dessus de la bande de fréquence AM et plus
récemment aux alentours de 46 et 49 mégahertz. Actuellement, il
existe des téléphones sans fil qui fonctionnent a 900 mégahertz et sur
des bandes de fréquences qui sont partagées par d’autres services, y
compris les radio-amateur.

Parmi les autres utilisations de la radiotéléphonie, citons les
communications air-sol que vous avez peut—€tre vues dans lesavions
d’ou I’on peut faire des appels sur terre. De toute évidence, ce systéme
utilise aussi bien les fréquences radio que la voie de communication
entre ’avion et la station terrestre.

Récemment, le ministére a choisi quatre prestataires de
services pour fournir la premiére génération d’'un véritable
service de communications personnelles. Ce service ressemblera
beaucoup a un téléphone sans fil que I'on peut utiliser en se
déplagant a la maison ou au bureau; mais une fois que I'on
quittera ces deux endroits et que I’on se retrouvera dans la rue
ou au moins dans des secteurs ou les prestataires de service ont
établi des stations de base, I’on pourra faire et recevoir des
appels téléphoniques comme on le fait aujourd’hui avec le téléphone
cellulaire. 1 s’agit d’un téléphone de poche de faible puissance que
I’on peut transporter assez facilement.

A I'échelle mondiale, a travers le ITU que 1’on a mentionné dans
la vidéo, I’on a ouvert récemment de nouvelles bandes de fréquence
beaucoup plus €levée dans le spectre, autour de 2 gigahertz—c’est—
a-dire 1 800 mégahertz— pour les communications personnelles.

Il existe donc toute une gamme de systémes de communications
téléphoniques de type radio—€lectrique. Aujourd’hui, nous nous
concentrons sur le cellulaire qui a fait ’objet d’une attention
considérable, et qui compte prés d'un million d’abonnés au Canada.
Ce service a connu une tres forte croissance, et il est d’excellente
qualité,

Un changement technologique est en train de se produire
dans le domaine du cellulaire. Les premiers systémes cellulaires
utilisaient ce qu’on appelle une modulation de type analogique,
dont le principe est un peu semblable a celui d’un disque
phonographique, mais les radios cellulaires plus récentes
utilisent de plus en plus le systéme numérique, tout comme le
disque compact. En plus d’étre plus efficace dans I’utilisation du
spectre, ces radios faciliteront davantage le chiffrage; par
conséquent, les fournisseurs du service cellulaire offriront le chiffra-
ge pour améliorer la sécurité des appels de type radioélectrique. En
effet, de nos jours, ils offrent dans certains cas le chiffrage du systéme
analogique, mais ce n’est pas aussi siir que le systéme numérique.

J'espére que cela vous donne une idée du spectre des fréquences
radio—€lectriques et du genre de technologies qui existent déja
aujourd’hui et qui existeront demain. Je serai ravi de répondre a toute
question d’ordre technique.

Elizabeth pourrait peut-€tre aborder les questions juridiques, a
moins que vous ne vouliez poser des questions sur la technologie.
Merci.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Breau. Y a-t—il d’autres interve-
nants?
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Ms Elizabeth Gilhooly (General Counsel, Director, Legal
Services, Department of Communications): I can give you very
quickly the legal solution we have for protecting privacy in the
Radiocommunication Act, and then my Justice colleague can set out
the Criminal Code changes that would be proposed.

Essentially, first we would be putting in a prohibition directed at
making use of or divulging radio-based communications, which
would be an offence provision, and then creating acivil right of action
for anyone who suffers damages as a result of having their signals
made use of or divulged.

That's in addition to the provisions we already have in the
Radiocommunication Act that address intercepting and making use
of radiocommunication more generally. These wouldbe specifically
tailored to radio-based communication.

® |555
The prohibition is at page 23 of Bill C-109:

Except as prescribed, no person shall make usc of or divulge a
radio-based telephone communication

—unless the originator. . .
Mrs. Finestone: What line are you on?
Ms Gilhooly: I'm just rapidly going through 15 and down.
The first paragraph, (a), talks about if the originator of the

communication or the person intended was in Canada. The provision
is directed at protecting Canadians. Then, secondly, it says:

unless the originator, or the person intended by the originator to
receive the communication consents to the use or divulgence.

Soobviously there isaprovision thatifyousayit’s all right touse your
conversation, then it’s all right.

The penalties for breach of this provision—and it’s a summary
conviction offcnce.alowerorderlhanthcoffcncesmycolleagueswnI
address, which are inthe Criminal Code—in the case of an individual
would be a fine not exceeding $25,000 or imprisonment not
exceeding one year or both. In the case of a person other than an
individual, it would be a fine not to exceed $75,000.

So that’s the prohibition we would introduce.

In terms of the civil right of action—and I'm 'readiqg from the top
of page 24. . . Unfortunately, the wording is a IltFlc’: bit obtuse, but |
was told by the drafters that this is just the way itis.

The Chairman: They always say that.

Ms Gilhooly: Probably the same number of times as 1 have.

Essentially, it says that if somebody suffers damage as a result of
a conversation that has been divulged or used or that a person
anticipates will be divulged or used, then they can recover moncy for
the damages. Of course the damages would have to be proved.

[Traduction]

MmeElizabeth Gilhooly (avocategénérale,directrice, services
juridiques, ministére des Communications): Je peux vous présen-
ter trés rapidement les dispositions de la loi sur la radiocommunica-
tion relative a la protection de la vie privée, et ensuite, mon collégue
du ministére de la Justice pourra vous présenter les modifications
proposées au Code criminel.

Tout d’abord, nous nous proposons d’interdire I’utilisation ou la
divulgation des communications radio—€lectriques, qui seraient
considérées comme des infractions, et de donner a quiconque subit
des dommages a la suite de I'utilisation ou de la divulgation de ces
signaux le droit de recourir aux tribunaux.

Cesdispositionss’ajoutenta celles quiexistent déjadans la Loi sur
laradio—communication et qui concerne |'interceptionet|’utilisation
des communications radio—€lectriques d’une maniere plus générale.
Elles s’appliqueraient de fagon plus précisc aux communications de
type radio—€lectrique.

La mesure d’interdiction, qui figure a la page 23 du projet de loi
C-109 est la suivante:

Sauf exception réglementaire, il est interdit d’utiliser ou de
divulguer une communication radiotéléphonique

. .A moins que |’émetteur. . .
Mme Finestone: Quelle ligne?
Mme Gilhooly: A partir de la ligne 15.

L’alinéa a) (version anglaise) stipule que cette disposition
s"applique si I'émetteur et le destinataire sont au Canada. Il s’agit
donc d’une mesure visant a protéger les Canadiens. La loi stipule
également

que la mesure d’interdiction est valable si I’utilisation et les
communications se font «sans |’ autorisation de I’émetteur ou du
destinataire.

Par conséquent, il est évident que les activités en question sont
permises si ces derniers y consentent.

En cas de violation de cette disposition—et il s’agit la d'une
infraction punissable sur déclaration sommaire de culpabilité,
¢’est-a—dire une infraction moins grave que celles dont mes
collegues vont parler et qui figurent dans le code criminel—Ila
sanction sera, dans le cas d’un particulier, une amende ne dépassant
pas 25 000$ ou une peine d’emprisonnement ne dépassant pas un an,
ou les deux. Dans le cas d’une personne autre qu’un particulier, ce
sera une amende ne dépassant pas 75 000$.

Telle est la mesure d’interdiction que nous proposons.

Pour ce qui est du droit d'intenter un proces au civil—et j’en suis
au début de la page 24. .. malheurcusement, le libellé est un peu
obtus, mais les rédacteurs m’ont dit qu’ils ne pouvaient pas faire
autrement.

Le président: IIs le disent toujours.
Mme Gilhooly: Probablement aussi souvent que moi.

Bref, cette disposition stipule que si une personne subit des
dommages parce que saconversation a été communiquée ou utilisée,
ou si cette personne s’attend & ce que sa conversation soit communi-
quée ou utilisée, elle peut demander de Iargent a titre de dommages-
intéréts. Bien entendu, il lui faudra prouver qu’elle a subi des
dommages.
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Those are the highlights of what we’d be doing in the Radiocom-
munication Act. Maybe at this point it would be good to introduce the
Criminal Code side so you will get a picture of the entire provisions.

The Chairman: Mrs. Finestone, is it okay if we—

Mrs. Finestone: Absolutely. I hope that it’s making a lot of sense
to all of you. Go ahead.

Mr. Roy: Originally we had intended to provide you with an
overview of what part VI is doing, then provide an overview of
what Bill C—109 was going to do, and then, as a third phase in
our presentation, talk about cellular phones. However, since we
are doing this the other way around, I'm going to ask Mr.
Bobiasz to address the very specific issue of what Bill C-109 is
doing with respect to cellular phones in terms of changes to the
criminal law. We can go back later to our overview of both part
VI and Bill C-109, if that's fine with the members of the committee
and you, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Is that acceptable?
Mrs. Finestone: That’s fine. Thank you.

Mr. F. Bobiasz (Counsel, Department of Justice): To help
to provide a bit more context within which you can situate the
changes that are proposed in Bill C—109 with regard to radio-
based telephone communication, I would like to mention that
currently there are two offences in the Criminal Code that deal with,
firstly, the interception of private communications and, secondly, the
user disclosure of intercepted private communications. Being aware
of these offences is critical for understanding what is being proposed
in Bill C-109.

At the moment, it is very unclear in law whether or not the
interception of a radio-based telephone communication, which
most of us will appreciate is a way of describing a cellular
communication, is an offence. Several relatively low-level
Criminal Code cases have led to different results applying the
same law. It depends on whether, in the circumstances of the
case, a person using a cellular phone as a mode of
communication has a reasonable expectation that it will not be
intercepted. One judge in particular went one way and convicted an
accused person. Another judge, in the context of a challenge to the
admissibility of some intercepted evidence, went the other way.
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The long and the short of it is there is doubt as to whether or not a
communication made over a cellular phone would now be character-
ized as a private communication.

To respond to that doubt and to assist Canadians somewhat in
knowing what’s going on when they use cellular calls, we are
proposing two offences to parallel, complement, the existing of-
fences.

The first existing Criminal Code offence is found in section 184 of
the Criminal Code. In proposed section 184.5 there is an offence that
is worded almost identically to the existing Criminal Code offence,
with the exception that it relates to the interception of radio-based
telephone communications rather than private communications.

[Translation)

Tels sont les points saillants des modifications que nous proposons
d’apporter a la Loi sur la radiocommunication. Cela dit, c’est
peut-étre le moment d’aborder la question sous 1’angle du Code
criminel pour vous donner une idée compléte de la question.

Le président: Madame Finestone, seriez—vous d’accord si
nous. . .

Mme Finestone: Absolument. J'espére que c’est tout a fait
logique pour tout le monde. Continuez.

M. Roy: Au départ, nous avions I'intention de vous donner
un apergu des objectifs visés dans la partie VI, puis dans le
projet de loi C-109, et ensuite, de vous parler des téléphones
cellulaires. Cependant, étant donné que nous avons adopté la
démarche inverse, je vais demander a M. Bobiasz de vous parler
précisément des dispositions du projet de loi C-109 relatives aux
téléphones cellulaires, surtout en ce qui concerne les
modifications au droit pénal. Nous reviendrons plus tard a notre
apergu de la partie VI et du projet de loi C-109, si le président et les
membres du comité le permettent.

Le président: Etes—vous d’accord?
Mme Finestone: Oui. Merci.

M. F. Bobiasz (conseiller juridique, ministére de la Justice):
Pour vous permettre de mieux situer les changements que nous
comptons apporter au projet de loi C-109 en ce qui concerne
des communications radiotéléphoniques, je tiens a signaler
qu’actuellement, le Code criminel prévoit deux infractions: premié-
rement, I’interception de communications privées, etdeuxiémement,
ladivulgation par|’usager des communications privées interceptées.
Il est essentiel de connaitre ces infractions pour comprendre les
modifications que nous nous proposons d’apporter au projet de loi
C-109.

Actuellement, du point de vue juridique, on ne sait pas trés
bien si I'interception des communications radiotéléphoniques,
que nous connaissons sous le nom de communications
cellulaires, est une infraction. En appliquant la méme loi a
plusieurs cas relativement mineurs relevant du Code criminel,
I’on a abouti & des résultats différents. Selon le cas, tout dépend
si une personne utilisant un téléphone cellulaire comme moyen
de communication s’attend raisonnablement a4 ce que sa
conversation ne soit pas interceptée. Un juge est méme allé jusqu’a
condamner un accusé. Un autre juge a pris la décision inverse parce
qu’on a contesté I’admissibilité de certaines preuves interceptées.

En somme, il n’est pas établi qu’une communication au téléphone
cellulaire soit maintenant considérée comme étant une communica-
tion privée.

Pour lever cette incertitude et aider les Canadiens 4 connaitre en
quelque sorte les implications de I’ utilisation des téléphones cellulai-
res, nous proposons deux infractions paralléles ou complémentaires
aux infractions existantes.

La premiére infraction existante figure a I'article 184 du Code
criminel. Le paragraphe 184.5 proposé prévoit une infraction dont le
libellé est presque identique a celui de I’infraction existante, avec la
différence qu’elle s’applique a I'interception des communications
radiotéléphoniques et non pas des communications privées.
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For all intents and purposes, the elements of that offence are
identical to the existing offence in subsection 184(1). So, too, are the
exceptions to the offence. There are exceptions that would relieve
from criminal responsibility the interception of private communica-
tions for various purposes. These are set out in subsection 184(2), and
there are provisions in this bill that would adopt those exceptions.

The other offence, the disclosure offence, is currently in the
Criminal Code as section 193. In Bill C-109 is a parallel offence,
which would be situated as section 193.1, which relates to the
disclosure of intercepted radio-based telephone communications.
For all intents and purposes, these elements are the same as what’s in
section 193.

Tothe extent to which radio—-based telephone communications are
covered, we have these two offences.

As an exception to what I just said on proposed section
184.1, the elements found in section 184 exist, but, perhaps to
relieve from liability the casual scanner, when it involves a
radio-based telephone communication that is not in fact private,
we are proposing that criminal liability should attach only if this
is done maliciously or for gain; i.., maliciously in the sense of
someone having an improper motive or a purpose considered
other than benign. Maliciously is a concept that is not used as
frequently as it once was in the criminal law, but it's currently used in
the sense in which we're using it in section 326 of the Criminal Code,
having to do with theft offences relating to telecommunication
services and other common services provided, suchas hydroand gas.

In the same way, intercepting for gain is a concept that
exists in the Criminal Code. It's currently used in offcr!ccs
relating to bawdy houses and the like, someone procuring.
Whether or not what's intercepted is a private communication,
if it’s a radio-based private communication, then someone whois in
the business of trying to get information out of scanning the airwaves
for the purposes of making a profit or gaining financial advantage
should be subject to the penalties currently applicable to the
interception of private communications.

I would like to point out, as I've mentioned before, that, vyhether
or not someone is scanning for gain or profit, they still might be
committing an offence if in the circumstances it's deemed to be an
interception of a private communication.

The penalties associated with these offences are the same as what
currently exist with respect to the Criminal Code offences. They
range, for the first offence, the interception offence, froma no—mmn:
mum sentence, whichcould meanan absolutedischarge,tofiveyears
imprisonment,
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Asmost of you probably realize, we don’tuse mini.mum.s; we have
a wide range to allow the court to exercise its discretion in the
imposition of penalties depending on the circumstances.

For the disclosure offence the penalty parallels that insection 193,
which ranges from no minimum to two years’ imprisonment.

{Traduction)

En tout état de cause, les éléments de cette infraction sont
identiques a ceux de I'infraction existante au paragraphe 184(1).1len
estde méme des exceptions a 'infraction. Ces exceptions décrimina-
lisent I’interception de communications privées a diverses fins. Elles
figurent au paragraphe 184(2), le projet de loi comporte des
dispositions qui les intégrent.

L’autre infraction, qui est relative a la divulgation, figure
actuellement a I'article 193 du Code criminel. Dans le projet de loi
C-109, il y a une infraction parallele, a I'article 193.1, qui concerne
la divulgation de communications radiotéléphoniques interceptées.
En tout état de cause, ces éléments sont les mémes que ceux de
Iarticle 193.

En ce qui concerne les communications radiotéléphoniques, nous
avons donc ces deux infractions.

s

A titre d’exception & ce que je viens de dire au sujet du
paragraphe 184.1 proposé, il y a les dispositions de 1'article 184;
cependant, sans doute pour protéger le radioamateur, quand il
s’agit d’une communication radiotéléphonique qui n’est pas
privée, nous proposons que la responsabilit¢ criminelle soit
appliquée uniquement si l'interception est malicieuse ou
onéreuse; quand je dis malicieuse, je pense 4 une personne qui
a un motif inavoué ou qui a I'intention de nuire. Le concept de
malice n’est pas utilisé aussi fréquemment qu’il I'était jadis dans le
droit criminel, mais on |’ utilise actuellement dans le méme sens que
dans I’article 326 du Code criminel, qui concerne le vol des services
de communicationsetd’autres servicespublicstelsque le I"électricité
et le gaz.

De méme, I'interception a des fins lucratives est prévue
dans le Code criminel. Actucllement, I'on invoque cette
disposition pour les infractions concernant notamment les
maisons closes ou les proxénetes. Que I'objet de I'interception
soit une une communication privée ou une communication radioté|é-
phonique, la personne qui essaie d'obtenir des informations en
syntonisant les ondes afin d’en tirer un profit ou un avantage
financier doit étre assujettie aux sanctions que 1’on applique
actuellement a I'interception des communications privées.

Permettez—moi de souligner, une fois de plus. que si une personne
fait de I’interception pour en tirer un gain ou un profit, elle commet
1a encore une infraction s'il est établi que la communication
interceptée est privée.

Les sanctions applicables & ces infractions sont les mémes que
celles qui existent actuellement en ce qui concerne les infractions au
Code criminel. Elles peuvent aller, pour la premiére infraction,
¢’est—a—dire relative a 'interception, d'une condamnation sans
minimum, ce qui pourrait signifier une exonération pure et simple, a
une peine d'emprisonnement de cing ans.

Comme vous le savez sans doute, nous ne prévoyons pas de
minimum; nous prévoyons une vaste gamme pour permettre au
tribunal d’exercer son pouvoir discrétionnaire en imposant des
sanctions selon les circonstances.

Encequiconcemnel’infraction relative a ladivulgation, lasanction
est semblable a celle prévue a I’article 193, ¢’est-a—dire d’une peine
sans minimum a un emprisonnement de deux ans.
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In order to deal with another aspect that was alluded to by
our colleagues from the Department of Communications—
that is, the emerging technology with regard to cellular
communications going from analogue to digital, thereby making
it more likely that we will be dealing with encrypted
communications—we wish to discourage the industry that’s
now in the business of making scanners from making scanners
that have the capability of decrypting the encrypted
communications. In that regard we’re proposing an adjustment
to the definition of private communications that would deem
any encrypted radio-based telephone communication to be a
private communication. There, the judge or the prosecution and
the defence would not have to debate the issue of whether or
not, in the circumstances of the case, the person using the
encrypted cellular phone had an expectation of privacy and this
was reasonable. We propose that Canadians would have the
right to assume that if they’ve taken the trouble to engage in a mode
of communication that is designed to be private, then the law would
accept it as private.

In a nutshell, those are the proposals in the Criminal Code that
relate to the protection of radio-based telephone communications.

I'd like to mention one other point. An obvious question is on
proposed section 193.1. In addition to paralleling somewhat section
193, it is also more or less identical to the proposed section in the
Radiocommunication Act.

Some people wonder why we should have parallel offences
like that. One of the reasons has to do with enforcement across
the country; there are different law enforcement agencies and
government enforcement agencies that focus on one hand on
the Criminal Code and on the other hand on the
Radiocommunication Act. Another aspect of it is that,
depending on the reasons for disclosure of intercepted radio-
based telephone communications, it might be more appropriate
to apply the more rigorous sanctions of the Criminal Code or, on the
other hand, the more regulatory provisions available in the Radio-
communication Act.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Bobiasz.
Are there any other presenters before we go to questions? No?
Mrs. Finestone.

Mrs. Finestone: First, Mr. Chairman, thank you foryour courtesy.
I appreciate it very much.

Gentlemen, I am glad that you made this so very clear and concise
and uncluttered. There are a ot of questions to be asked, but I’'m sure
you all understand it far better than I do. So for my own clarification,
if you wouldn’t mind. . .

You say that there are approximately one million—1I think there
are more than that—cellular phones out there, all of which are not
phones but are radios at this time, so there is really no basic protection.
So. in essence, the issue we're dealing with is privacy.

Would you agree that the issue is privacy?

Mr. Roy: I would agree with you, yes.

[Translation]

Pour revenir 4 un autre aspect auquel nos collégues du
ministére des Communications ont fait allusion—c’est-a—dire la
technologie naissante qui permet aux communications cellulaires
de passer du systéme analogique au systéme numérique, ce qui
accroit la probabilité que les communications soient chiffrées a
I’avenir—nous voulons décourager les fabricants actuels de
récepteurs a balayage de fabriquer des appareils pouvant
décoder des communications chiffrées. A cet égard, nous
proposons de modifier la définition des communications privées
pour y inclure toute communication radio-téléphonique chiffrée.
Ainsi, le juge ou la poursuite et la défense n’auront pas 2
débattre de la question de savoir si, compte tenu des
circonstances entourant une affaire, une personne utilisant un
téléphone cellulaire équipé d’un dispositif de chiffrage pourrait
raisonnablement s’attendre a ce que ces communications soient
privées. Nous proposons que les Canadiens aient le droit de
présumer que s’ils ont pris la peine d’'utiliser un moyen de
communication qui est censé étre privé, la loi doit les protéger.

En somme, telles sont les modifications que nous proposons
d’apporter au Code criminel pour protéger les communications
radio-téléphoniques.

Je dois ajouter autre chose. Le paragraphe 193.1 souléve une
question évidente. En plus d’étre en quelque sorte paralléle a Iarticle
193, il est plus ou moins identique a I’ article proposé dans la Loi sur
la radiocommunication.

Certains se demandent quel est le bien fondé de ces
infractions paralléles. Eh bien, c’est parce qu’il va falloir les
appliquer dans toutes les régions du pays; il existe divers
organismes d’exécution gouvernementaux qui  appliquent
essentiellement, d’une part, le Code criminel et, d’autre part, la
Loi sur la radiotélécommunication. De plus, selon les raisons de
la divulgation de messages radio-téléphoniques interceptés, il
peut étre plus convenant d’appliquer les sanctions plus
rigoureuses du Code criminel ou les dispositions plus réglementaires
de la Loi sur la radiocommunication.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Bobiasz.
Y a—t—il d’autres intervenants avant la période de questions? Non?
Madame Finestone.

Mme Finestone: Tout d’abord, monsieur le président, je vous
remercie pour votre courtoisie. Je vous en sais vraiment gré.

Messieurs, je suis bien contente que vous ayez présenté votre
exposé de fagon claire et concise. Il y a beaucoup de questions a
poser, mais je suis convaincue que vous comprenez beaucoup mieux
que moi. Par conséquent, pour me permettre de mieux comprendre,
pourriez—vous. . .

Vous dites qu’il y a approximativement un million. . . Je pense
qu’il yenaun peuplus. . . deté€léphones cellulaires au Canada, et que
actuellement, ce ne sont pas seulement des téléphones mais aussi des
radios, ce qui fait qu'il n’y a pas vraiment de protection fondamenta-
le. Par conséquent, il faut se demander ce qu’il advient de la sécurité.

Etes—vous d’accord sur ce point?

M. Roy: Oui, je suis d’accord avec vous.
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Mrs. Finestone: Fine. If the issue is privacy, we also know from
one of you somewhere along the line that there are supposedly
900,000 scanners out there. This is the information the Department of
Communications, your department, I believe, sir, has given to the
general public with respect to this issue, and I believe the minister
used it in his speech.
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Could you tell me where you get the figure of 900,000, which
means that approximately 1 in every 25 Canadians has one? I don’t
know. How many people in this room own a scanner?

Mr. Thacker (Lethbridge): We're not admitting it.

Mrs. Finestone: I would like to know where you get the figure of
900,000 scanners being out there.

Mr. Breau: It is a calculation based on estimates we receive from
the people who sell. We use the word ‘‘scanner’’ fairly loosely. You
probably have a scanner in yourautomobile when you try tosearch—

Mrs. Finestone: If it was for radar, I would have been clipped and
it would have been removed and I would be up on a criminal charge.
No, I don’t have a scanner.

Mr. Angus (Thunder Bay — Atikokan): That’s not a scanner.

Mr. Breau: No, that’s not a scanner. I was thinking of your
FM radio when you push the seek button and it goes through
the spectrum trying to find an active FM station when you are
in a strange city and you are not using your pre-set. That’s a
scanner. So, really, weare talking aboutreceiverscapable of receiv@ng
cellular phone calls or that frequency band. Even some old television
sets will pick up the cellular calls. So there are many receivers, and
that’s the number that was calculated.

Mrs. Finestone: Then I think 1 would like to ask you to go
back to the drawing board and be a little bit more specific with
the issue we are trying to address. We are criminalizing, at the
cost of $25,000 minimum and five years’ imprisonment, to
control something that you have said is not controllable through
scanners. We can control scanning for radar machines, and you can
get fined for owning a radar machine; but you can't get ﬁped for
scanning my telephone, so you can’t get fined for invading my
privacy.

This was promoted as a privacy bill in a sense, with respect
to this telephone that is really a radio. So I would like to know,
first, some clear numbers from the Department of
Communications on scanners and, second, why they cannot be
prohibited, why that was not an access route that you took toeffect the
privacy that has been desired. The Wilhelmy case has become of great
importance in terms of the ri ghtof accesstoprivacy and whatdamage
is done even if you can bring a charge.

Intechnical terms, you talked about the fact that we have digitized,
and most cellular telephones purchased in the last year have the
digitization. . ,

[Traduction]

Mme Finestone: Bon. Si c’est une question de sécurité, 1’un
d’entre vous nous a dit a un moment donné qu’il y a environ 900 000
récepteurs a balayage au Canada. Il s’agit d’une information que le
ministére des Communications, ¢’est-a—dire votre ministére, mon-
sieur, a communiqué au grand public a propos de cette question; je
crois que le ministre I’a mentionnée dans son discours.

Pouvez-vous me dire comment vous avez obtenu votre chiffre de
900 000, qui signifie qu’un Canadien sur 25, grosso modo, en
posséde un? Je me demande si ¢’est possible. Combien de personnes
ici possedent un récepteur a balayage?

M. Thacker (Lethbridge): Nous ne voulons pas I’avouer.

Mme Finestone: Je suis curieuse de savoir comment vous en étes
arrivé a ce chiffre de 900 000 récepteurs a balayage en circulation.

M. Breau: Nous nous sommes fiés aux estimations que nous
recevions des vendeurs. Nous avons utilisé une définition «de
récepteur assez large». Vous en avez probablement un dans votre
auto pour chercher. . .

Mme Finestone: Si vous voulez parler du radar, j’aurais été
attrapée, |’appareil aurait été confisqué et j'aurais fait face a des
accusations au criminel. Non, je ne posséde pas de récepteur a
balayage.

M. Angus (Thunder Bay— Atikokan): Ce n’est pas un récep-
teur a balayage.

M. Breau: Non. Je songeais a votre appareil-radio MF dont
la fonction recherche vous permet d'explorer le spectre afin de
trouver une station active lorsque vous étes dans une ville
étrangére et que vous ne pouvez pas utiliser la fonction pré-
réglage. C'est une forme de réceptiona balayage. Nous parlons ici de
récepteurs pouvant capter des appels téléphoniques cellulaires ou la
bande de fréquence qui sert a ces appels. Méme certains anciens
téléviseurs peuvent capter ces appels cellulaires. Nous avons donc
établi qu'il y avait beaucoup de récepteurs en circulation.

Mme Finestone: Dans ce cas, je vous demande de revenir
au point de départ et de mieux identifier le probléme que nous
sommes censés régler. Nous imposons une sanction criminelie,
de 25 000$ au minimum et de cinq ans d’emprisonnement, pour
contr6ler une situation qui n’est vraiment pas contrdlable au niveau
des récepteurs a balayage. Nous pouvons controler les appareils—ra-
dar; nous imposons des amendes aux gens qui en possédent.
Toutefois, il n’y a pas d’amendes pour les gens qui captent les
communications téléphoniques; il n'y a pas d’amende lorsque
quelqu’un viole ma vie privée.

Ce projet de loi était censé protéger la vie privée, en
régissant I’utilisation de ce téléphone qui est en réalité un
appareil-radio. D’abord, je voudrais que le ministére des
Communications obtienne le nombre précis de récepteurs a
balayage; deuxiémement, je voudrais savoir pourquoi ils n’ont pas
été interdits, pourquoi rien n’a été fait pour protéger la vie privée des
gens. Le cas Wilhelmy a attiré I'attention sur le probléme que
présente le viol de la vie privée et les dommages qui peuvent survenir
méme s’il y a des accusations par la suite.

Sur le plan technique, vous avez indiqué que les téléphones
avaient été numérisés, que la plupart des téléphones cellulaires mis
sur le marché cette année sont numérisés. . .
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Are they not built in yet?
Mr. Breau: They are just being introduced now, actually.

Mrs. Finestone: Well, my phone says “‘digitized”’, so I guess the
House of Commons can get phones that are digitized.

Mr. Breau: You must have the latest one then.

Mrs. Finestone: 1 want to know why it is not the obligation
of the producer of the equipment or the seller of the equipment
or the provider of the service to make the mandatory encryption
a responsibility. Why should I have to buy that? Why is it not
an obligation by government that the privacy rights are ensured
and if you want to sell me a radio service and tell me that it is a
telephone and allow me to use that, whether I am phoning from
the airplane or 1 am phoning from the ground, then your job is
to ensure that the telephone conversation is private? Don't invade my
space and then, to add insult to injury, where you said you couldn’t
protect it in the past, now it is up to me, the enlightened citizen, to
know that I am using the airwaves.

You haven’t told me about it; you haven’t made me sign a
document about it. You are now going to allow me not to snitch if I
know something that is important, like ‘I am being raped, please
come and help’’, or | am sceing a robbery taking place but I can’t
phone the police. It’s sheer nonsense. There has to be amore effective
and efficient way to protect the publicif you are seriousabout privacy.

1 would like to know why in technical terms one would not insist
on the built-in encryption of every single cellular telephone that is
made or sold from now on. Why are you insisting that the public
should pay for the right to have privacy?

Mr. Breau: That’s a very good question. In fact, there is a
policy discussion one could have—and I suggest it is a policy
discussion, not a technical question. Many users of cellular
service would be quite kappy not to have assured privacy. It
depends what their conversations are about. It is just as some people
are content to stand on a street corner and say things in a very loud
voice; they don’t care if people overhear them. Other people will
whisper, and so on.

There is a debate as to whether you should make it
mandatory and therefore all consumers or all users of a
particular service have to carry the cost—because this comes
at a certain cost—or only those users who are concerned
about it and wish to avail themselves of the technology should pay.
Sothatis a policy question: how do you spread the cost of encryption
around— only to those who feel they need it, or to everyone, whether
they need it or not? That is a policy debate one can have.
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Mrs. Finestone: As I understand the technology, I have my
little radio and I pretend it’s a tclephone and 1 make a phone
call and it goes up in the air. That hits the hub. You can call it
the hub, the cell site, or anything you want, but that’s where it’s
being retransmitted. It's being retransmitted to you. | have
purchased an encrypted phone because I don’t believe, in my
role as a member of Parliament or as a member of the media or
whatever, that 1 want my information used indiscriminately.

[Translation)

Cette caractéristique est bien incorporée maintenant?

M. Breau: Les nouveaux appareils sont introduits sur le marché
actuellement.

Mme Finestone: Mon téléphone indique «numérisé»; la Cham-
bre des communes peut siirement obtenir des téléphones numérisés.

M. Breau: Vous devez avoir un des nouveaux modeéles.

Mme Finestone: Je voudrais bien savoir pourquoi celui qui
fabrique ou qui vend I’équipement, celui qui fournit le service,
n'est pas obligé de s’assurer qu’il y a un dispositif d’encodage.
Pourquoi  devrais—je assumer le risque? Pourquoi le
gouvernement ne protége—t—il pas le droit a la vie privée en
disant que si vous voulez vendre un service-radio en prétendant
que c¢’est un téléphone, qu’il soit utilisé a bord d’un avion ou au
sol, vous devez vous assurer que les conversations qui y ont
cours demeurent confidentielles? Ne m'en demandez pas trop.
N’ajoutez pas a mes difficultés en avouant que comme vous n’avez
pas pu me protéger par le passé, maintenant il m’appartient en tant
que citoyen éclairé de réaliser que j’utilise les ondes.

Vous ne m’avez pas avertie d’avance; vous ne m'avez pas fait
signer de documents. Maintenant, vous allez considérer que je
n’espionne pas si je suis mise au courant de quelque chose
d’important comme un viol ou un vol & main armée en cours et que
jene peux pas appeler la police. Il doit y avoirun moyen plus efficace
de protéger le public.

Je ne comprends vraiment pas pourquoi il serait impossible sur le
plan technique d'insister pour que chaque téléphone cellulaire
fabriqué ou vendu a partir de maintenant ait un dispositif d’encodage
incorporé. Pourquoi le public lui-méme devrait—il faire les frais des
mesures censées protéger la vie privée?

M. Breau: C'est une excellente question. Elle peut étre
débattue sur le plan politique—a mon avis, elle est de cet ordre,
non pas d’ordre technique. Ce ne sont pas tous les utilisateurs
du service cellulaire qui tiennent a la confidentialité. Tout
dépend de la nature de leurs conversations. 11 y a des gens qui crient
dans larue, ou tout le monde les entend. D’autres chuchotent, ou que
sais—je.

Tout le monde n’est pas d’accord sur le fait que la
protection  devrait €tre obligatoire et que tous les
consommateurs ou tous les utilisateurs du service devraient en
assumer les frais—parce qu’il y a des frais inhérents. Certains
affirment que ce sont seulement les utilisateurs qui veulent étre
protégés en utilisant cette technologie qui devraient payer. C’est une
question politique: comment répartir le coit de I’encodage. . . les
imposer seulement a ceux qui en éprouvent le besoin ou i tous les
utilisateurs, qu’ils veuillent étre protégés ou non? 1l faut en débattre
sur le plan politique.

Mme Finestone: Si je comprends bien la fagon dont la
technologie fonctionne, j'ai ce petit appareil-radio et je m’en
sers comme téléphone; j'effectue un appel et celui—ci emprunte
la voix des ondes. Mon appel atteint un noyau, et déclenche la
retransmission. Mon appel est donc retransmis. J'ai acheté un
téléphone encodé, parce qu'en tant que député, journaliste ou
quoi que ce soit d’autre, je ne veux pas que mes propos servent
a n’importe quoi. Je vous ai appelé, et vous vous n’avez pas de
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However, I've called you, and youdon’t have an encrypted phone. So
as it comes down from the cell site or the hub, thank you very much,
it’s out in the open air again.

What protection does that allow you?

Secondly, I’m using a telephone and I have the right to telephone
into the United States because you're looking for my business. Every
phone call I make brings Bell Cellular or Cantel some nice income.
However, [ also have a wonderful facility that I can use to phone into
Florida. There are norules to protect me in Florida, or anywhere else;
but I've paid for an encrypted phone system.

Somehow or other I really want to know how you can reconcile,
on the one hand, the department’s view that little can be done to
protect the cellular phone’s privacy and therefore Canadians should
be careful about what they say and, on the other hand, the fact that we
are now going to bring forward a bill with very severe penalties that
is going to stop the interception.

Where is the role of the CRTC in terms of some of the monitoring
and some of the allowability?

Mr. Breau: Addressing your last question, as far as I'm aware the
role of the CRTC is really more just on the regulation of the service,
particularly looking at rates, and if there was to be a charge for this
encrypted service, the rates would have to be filed with the CRTC for
approval. No role of monitoring or sector management, much as the
department does, resides with the CRTC.

Regarding your question about Florida, obviously the Canadian
government can't regulate outside of its boundaries. So if you use a
cellular phone there and the encrypted service is not available,
obviously that communication would not be in an encrypted mode.

I should point out that this bill is only one of many
initiatives that the department is taking. You raise a very good
point, which is that many consumers of these services are not
aware that they're using radio. Unfortunately, the technology
has improved to such a point that it sounds like a wire-line
telephone call. We have produced a brochure, which we are
distributing through the cellular companies and through our
offices and other offices, to educate the public that it is .radlo
and one has to take certain precautions when one is using radio. So
this is but one provision.

Interms of the receivers that are out there, my understa_nding isthat
the information gained would have to be made use of ordivulged, and
we had the notion of malicious intent and so on.

Mrs. Finestone: It could destroy people’s lives very quietly,
whether you think it’s malicious or otherwise.

Mr. Breau: That’s why the bill is there.

Mrs. Finestone: I'd like to pursue one thought with you. I think
that something is wrong with the approach of the mm!stcr anq the
Department of Communication to the whole aspect of privacy. lt' san
issue that I have raised a number of times with the ministr_y. I} s an
issue that we tried toaddress, ineffectively, in Bill C-62, whichisstill
wandering around somewhere dans la brume.

[Traduction]

téléphone encodé. Donc, a partir du site de retransmission, mon appel
peut étre intercepté encore une fois.

Ou est ma protection?

Ou encore, j"appelle aux Etats—Unis, comme j’en ai le droit. Vous
faites une bonne affaire. Bell cellulaire, Cantel y trouvent certaine-
ment lcur compte. J"ai un trés bon appareil et je I'utilise pour faire un
appel en Floride. Je peux bien avoir un téléphone encodé, mais il n’y
a pas de régles qui me protégent a cet endroit.

Je voudrais bien savoir comment vous conciliez, d’unc part
I"attitude du ministére selon laquelle il n’y a pas grand—chose  faire
pour protéger la confidentialité des appels au téléphone cellulaire et
en conséquence les Canadiens doivent se montrer prudents; d’autre
part, I'introduction de ce projet de loi comporte des peines sévéres
destinées a mettre fin a I’interception.

Quel est le role du CRTC en mati¢re de surveillance et de
réglementation?

M. Breau: Pour ce qui est de votre demiére question d’abord, le
role du CRTC, que je sache, consiste simplement a régir le service,
surtout pour ce qui est des taux; si le service encodé comporte des
frais, les taux doivent étre soumis au CRTC. Le CRTC n’a pas le
méme role de surveillance et de gestion de secteurs que le ministére.

En ce qui conceme votre autre question a propos de la Floride, le
gouvernement canadien ne peut évidemment pas faire appliquer sa
réglementation en dehors de ses frontiéres. Si vous utilisez votre
téléphone cellulaire et que les service encodé n'est pas disponible 2
cet endroit, il est bien évident que votre conversation n’est pas
protégée.

Je tiens toutefois a vous signaler que ce projet de loi n’est
qu'une des mesures que prend le ministére. Comme vous le
faites remarquer a justc titre, ce ne sont pas tous les
consommateurs utilisant ces services qui se rendent compte
qu’ils utilisent la radio. Il se trouve que la technologie s'est
tellement améliorée que les conversations sont aussi claires que
si elles étaient transmises par cdble. Nous avons publié une
brochure, que nous faisons distribuer par les sociétés de
téléphone cellulaire, nos bureaux et d’autres instances, qui alertent les
gens au fait qu’ils utilisent la radio et qu’en conséquence qu'’ils
doivent prendre certaines précautions. Donc, le projet de loi n’est
qu’un des outils dont nous disposons.

Pour ce qui est des récepteurs cn circulation, il faudrait que
I’information obtenue soit utilisée ou dévoilée, et il faudraitqu’il y ait
intention criminelle, entre autres.

Mme Finestone: Qu’il y ait intention criminelle ou non, des vies
pourraient étre détruites, et en secret encore!

M. Breau: C’est bien pourquoi ce projet de loi est présenté.

Mme Finestone: Encore un point. Je pense que 1'approche du
ministre et du ministere des Communications est erronée face a la
protection de la vie privée. J'en ai souvent discuté avec le ministére.
Nous avons essayé€, en vain, de faire quelques chose a propos du
projet de loi C-162, qui est toujours perdu quelque part dans la
brume.



1528

Bill C-109

17-3-1993

[Text]

You just blatantly allowed Bell Canada to go ahead with call
display. If I don’t want my phone number to pop up on The Bay’s
phone screen because I phoned to find out if they had asale on shoes,
well, thank you very much, my name is now on a list. I'm a Bay
customer and I'm interested in shoes and I now can get all kinds of
wonderful mail from the telemarketers. Thank you very kindly.

Thatcould have beencontrolled by that call display.It’s ridiculous.
Instead of me asking for that, you impose on me the obligation—talk-
ing about an invasion of privacy—to pay for the right not to be
displayed. Now you're telling me that if I want an encrypted
telephone, then I’'m going to have to pay for the right to have my
telephone call made private. Well, thank you very much.

It’s about time the department looked athow you can make privacy
in telecommunications work effectively in the interest of the public,
and not in the interest of the people who are about to make lots more
money out of this new telephone, radio-phone, that we have
available. Until you can do that, I can’t see how you can charge
people, under the Criminal Code, the horrendous sum of $25,000 or
put them in jail.

Was that the only answer you could find?
® (620

Mr. Breau: I’ll answer, and then we’ll get to the legal question
here.

The costing is a matter where the CRTC would be involved. In
other words, if the cellular service providers decided to price this as
a separate service, then they would have to file those tariffs with the
commission. There would be an opportunity for public comment.

If, however, they decided to make it the only kind of service that
was offered— in other words, everyone had to get encrypted service
whether they really wanted it or not— then those tariffs would also be
filed with the CRTC, and again there would be an opportunity for
public comment on the tariffs.

Mrs. Finestone: What about the obligation of the department to
ensure that research and development is done so that effectively you
include that as part of the cost of buying the telephone?

Mr. Breau: As a matter of fact, the department—
Mrs. Finestone: Or in the hub.

MTr. Breau: —is active in its research and development work to
work with some other service providers on this technology of
encryption. A fair amount of work has been done at the research
facility at Shirley’s Bay. That is another element in our strategy.

On the legal —
Mrs. Finestone: My lastquestion deals with whetherornot there’s
a link between the Radiocommunication Act changes and the

Criminal Code changes. Can they be in operation at the same time?
Can you fall under both the Criminal Code and a summary charge?

Ms Gilhooly: Yes. In fact, it’s not unusual to have similar
prohibitions in different types of legislation. The Criminal Code is a
criminal statute. It is the highest order of criminal prohibition that we
have. The Radiocommunication Act, on the other hand, is a
regulatory statute. So there’s a whole different emphasis in terms of
severity.

[Translation]

Vous venez de permettre a Bell Canadad’aller de I'avant avec son
afficheur. Méme si je ne veux pas que mon numéro de téléphone
paraisse a |’écran du magasin La Baie que jai appel¢ pour savoir s’il
y avait une vente-réclame de chaussures, il apparait et mon nom est
porté a une liste. Je suis cliente de La Baie et je veux acheter des
chaussures, mais maintenant je peux recevoir toutes sortes de
communications de télévendeurs. Merci mille fois.

1l y aurait pu y avoir des controles applicables a I"afficheur. C'est
ridicule. Non seulement je ne veux pas de ce service, mais je dois
payer—il n'y a pas de meilleur exemple de viol de la vie
privée —pour le privilége de ne pas avoir mon nom divulgué. Et si,
lorsque je demande un téléphone encodé, vous me répondez que je
dois payer pour le droit d’avoir des entretiens privés au téléphone.
Merci, encore mille fois.

Il est temps que le ministére trouve le moyen d’assurer la
confidentialité des télécommunications dans I’intérét du public et
non pas celui des entreprises qui mettent ce nouveau téléphone ou ce
nouveau radio—téléphone sur le marché. En attendant, je ne suis pas
préte a accepter que les gens soient exposés a des amendes
draconiennes de 25 0008 et a des peines d’emprisonnement en vertu
du Code criminel.

Est—ce la seule solution au probléme, selon vous?

M. Breau: Nous allons traiter I’aspect juridique dans une minute.

Le CRTC peut intervenir a propos des cofits. En d’autres termes,
si les fournisseurs du service cellulaire décident d’en faire un service
apartavecun prix a part, ils doivent soumettre leurs tarifs au conseil.
A ce moment-1a, le public pourra se faire entendre.

S’ils décidentd’offirun service combiné — le service encodé, que
le client le désire ou non—ils doivent quand méme déposer leurs
tarifs aupres du CRTC. Et encore une fois le public peut se
manifester.

Mme Finestone: Qu’en est-il de I'obligation du ministére de
s’assurer que grace a larecherche et au développement ce service soit
compris dans le colit du téléphone au départ?

M. Breau: De fait, le ministere. . .
Mme Finestone: Ou du noyau.

M. Breau: .. .du fait de la recherche et du développement au
niveau de latechnologie de I’encodage avec d’autres fournisseurs de
services. Beaucoup de travail a été effectué a I’installation de
recherchesde Shirley’s Bay. C’estunautre ¢lémentde notre stratégie.

En ce qui concerne I'aspect juridique. .

Mme Finestone: Ma derniére question a trait au lien ou a
I’absence de lien entre les modifications touchant la Loi sur les
radiocommunications et modifications au Code criminel. Sont—elles
compatibles? Peut-il y avoir une accusation en vertu du Code
criminel et une déclaration de culpabilité par voie sommaire?

Mme Gilhooly: Oui. Il n’est pas rare de voir des interdictions
similaires dans des lois différentes. Le Code criminel est une loi au
criminel, ¢’est la plus stricte. La Loi sur la radiocommunication. en
revanche, estune loi de réglementation. Les peines n’y sont pas aussi
sévéres.
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So if you have a particular fact situation, you might think that it
warrants a Criminal Code prosecution and it can be done in that way.
Or it might be of a lesser severity but something you want to
underline, so you say that a Radiocommunication Act offence is a
better charge to lay, with lower penalties. Soit’s not unusual and it’s
done on purpose.

There's a different standard of proving the mental element. In a
criminal case it’s proof beyond a reasonable doubt. In a regulatory
statute it’s called the strict liability test, where if someone shows due
diligence —they did the wrong thing, but they were as diligent asthey
could have been to avoid it— then they have a defence open to them.

So there are lots of different reasons why it’s often good to have
what looks like redundancy. It is a good thing to have in certain
circumstances suchas this, where your wrongdoing canrun the gamut
between fairly minor and extremely severe.

Mrs. Finestone: Do you know of any country in the world that has
done this?

I'm sorry; I'll leave it to someone else.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. We have to move on.
—Mr. Angus.

Mr. Angus: [ want tothank the officials forthe briefing. Let me get
some clarification.

Mr. Bobiasz, in your presentation, if I heard you correctly, you
were saying that currently, under the Criminal Code of Canada, ifI'm
in a restaurant and 1 overhear two people behind me talking about
certain things, then | can be charged for using that information.

Mr. Bobiasz: Probably for reasons of timing, I didn’t_ say
everything there is to say about the current offence. The ;rm_cal
aspect is that, in addition to it being a private communication
and being overheard, it has to be by way of a device. You have
to use an instrument. This was done purposely 20 years ago.
Parliament considered what is now part VL. It wanted to mak_e a
distinction between common eavesdropping and eavesdropping
taking advantage of developing technology-

Mr. Angus: Then what is the difference, technically or legally,
between someone who, as was mentioned earlier, stands on the street
comer and broadcasts without the aid of a device and someone who
broadcasts with the use of an electronic device?

Mr. Bobiasz: Legally, what the difference would be. ... This has
to do with the point I made regarding the dlffereflce§ in the
Jurisprudence. Shouldacharge be laid in yourcase?Idon tthink therc
would be, because an initial assessment hasto be given tha} the person
had a reasonable expectation that what was being transmltte:d would
not be intercepted by anyone other than the person who was intended
to receive it.

nly one class of individuals

he court wouldsay: well, we
but it’s not

If the person naively thought that o
Wwould receive the communication, thent ;
admit you might have had a subjective expectation,
reasonable to believe that.

[Traduction]

Dans une situation donnée, si on juge que l’infraction est
suffisamment grave, on peut faire appel au Code criminel. Sion veut
simplement faire valoir un principe, on peut invoquer la Loi sur les
radiocommunications qui comporte des peines moins rigoureuses.
C’est voulu et c’est courant.

11y a parailleurs I'intention. Dans une cause criminelle, |a preuve
doit étre au—dela de tout doute raisonnable. Une loi de réglementation
fait appel au concept de la responsabilité stricte, qui permet a un
accusé d’invoquer ladiligence raisonnable —on a fait quelque chose
de mal, mais on a tout fait pour éviter cette situation. On a ce moyen
de défense a sa disposition.

IL y a des raisons & ce qui peut parfois ressembler a une
redondance. Dans certaines circonstances, il faut un choix, parce que
les infractions peuvent étre bénignes ou bien extrémement graves.

Mme Finestone: A votre connaissance, y a-t—il d’autres pays du
monde qui procedent de cette fagon?

Excusez-moi. Je vais laisser le soin 4 quelqu’un d’autre de poser
la question.

Le président: Merci beaucoup. Je dois effectivement passer aun
autre intervenant. Monsieur Angus.

M. Angus: Je remercie les hauts fonctionnaires de leurs informa-
tions. Je voudrais avoir quelques explications supplémentaires.

Monsicur Bobiasz, vous avez indiqué, si je vous ai bien compris,
qu’en vertu du Code criminel actuel, si je suis dans un restaurant et
que j’entends ce que disent deux personnes qui se trouvent derriére
moi, je peux faire face a des accusations si je tentais d’utiliser cette
information.

M. Bobiasz: Sans doute par manque de temps, j'ai été
incomplet dans mes explications au sujet de cette infraction
actuelle. Il doit s’agir d'une conversation privée, il doit y avoir
écoute, mais, ¢’est un détail important, au moyen d’un appareil.
Il faut que celui qui écoute utilise un appareil quelconque. La
précision a été volontairement ajoutée il y a 20 ans. Le Parlement
examinait 4 ce moment-la la partie VL Il voulait faire la distinction
entre 1’écoute ordinaire et I’écoute en vue de profiter des nouvelles
technologies.

M. Angus: Sur le plan technique ou juridique, quelle est la
différence entre quelqu'unquiécritdes choses dans larue, sans I’aide
d'un appareil quel qu'il soit, selon I’exemple donné tout & I'heure, et
quelqu’un qui diffuse quelque chose a I'aide d’un appareil électroni-
que?

M. Bobiasz: Sur le plan juridique, la différence. . . Comme je I’ai
dit, il y ades différences au niveau de la jurisprudence. Doit-il y avoir
des accusations dans ce cas? Non, parce qu'il faut établir au départ
que la personne ne pouvait raisonnablement s "attendre que ce qu’elle
disait ne soit pas intercepté par qui que ce soit d’autre que son
interlocuteur.

La personne croyait peut—€tre naivement qu’elle s’adressait a une
seule catégorie d’interlocuteurs. Pour le tribunal, cependant, ¢’est
quelque chose de suggestif. Ce n’est pas une présomption raisonna-
ble.
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Mr. Angus: 1 guess, in other words, that the use of a land-line
telephone is covered under that act. The communication on that land
line is protected by the Criminal Code against intercept.

Mr. Bobiasz: Subject to the usual legal cavils and quibbles, yes;
but there are cases that indicate that, even when somebody uses a land
line, if the person had a belief that it was being intercepted, there’s
some doubt as to whether or not it would be considered a private
communication in the circumstances.

There’s little decided jurisprudence on this, but generally speaking
the view is that if you use a land line, given the method of
communicating the message, it’smore or less assumed thatsomebody
has an expectation that it won’t be intercepted, and that’s reasonable.
So the short answer is yes.

Mr. Angus: Let me get into the technical side.
Mrs. Finestone: [s what you’re talking about like a wire—tap?
Mr. Angus: Yes.

You didn’t answer my colleague’s question when she specifically
asked how many scanners out there are capable of intercepting
cellular communications.

Mr. Nicholson (Niagara Falls): That doesn’t make sense.
Mr. Breau: That was our estimate, but—

Mr. Angus: I'm sorry; you estimate that there are 900,000
scanners —

Mr. Breau: Taking into account—

Mr. Angus: —that intercept cellular communications?

Mr. Breau: Personally., I would stay away from the word
‘“‘scanner’’, because a scanner simply means that it hops from
frequency to frequency.

Mrs. Finestone: That's what you used in public speech.

Mr. Breau: It's a receiver. It’s the common term that’s
used, yes. The estimates are that there are that many devices
out there capable of receiving the frequency band used by
cellular. As 1 say, it ranges from old television sets. . .because that
part of the spectrum used to be used for broadcasting and there are still
some such television sets around. By tuning it, you can get these
analogue cellular phone calls on an old television set. So that’s the
estimate, but it is an estimate.

Mr. Angus: But the reality is that, unless you're a real
hacker, you’re not going to know and you're not going to fiddle
with your television set just to see if you can catch that random
cellular call. Nine hundred thousand devices capable of picking
it up compared to the number of devices out there suggests it’s a bit
extreme. We need to know, on a much more solid basis, even just the
devices that are on the market today whose sole purpose is scanning
for cellular calls. Are there any?

[Translation]

M. Angus: En d’autres termes, I’utilisation d’une ligne terrestre
est protégée en vertu de cette loi. La communication au moyen d’une
telle ligne est protégée contre toute interception en vertu du Code
criminel.

M. Bobiasz: Sous réserve des erguties habituelles, il y a une
certaine jurisprudence portant que quelqu’un qui utilise une ligne
terrestre sachant qu’il peut étre intercepté ne peut pas toujours tenir
pour acquis qu’il est engagé dans une communication privée.

La jurisprudence n’est pas définitive a cet égard. De fagon
générale, on considére que quelqu’un qui utilise une ligne terrestre
pour communiquer un message peut raisonnablement compter ne pas
étre intercepté. En bref, la réponse a votre question est oui.

M. Angus: J'aborde I’aspect technique.
Mme Finestone: On parle de table d’écoute dans ce cas?
M. Angus: Oui.

Vous n’avez pas répondu directement & laquestion de ma collégue
lorsqu’elle vous a demandé combien de récepteurs a balayage
capables d’intercepter les communications par téléphone cellulaire
étaient en circulation.

M. Nicholson (Niagara Falls): Cela ne tient pas debout.
M. Breau: C’est notre estimation, mais. . .

M. Angus: Vous dites qu’il y en a 900 000. . .

M. Breau: Compte tenu. . .

M. Angus: . .. capables d’intercepter les communications par
téléphone cellulaire?

M. Breau: Je n'utiliserais pas personnellement le mot «récepteur
a balayage», puisque le terme implique seulement la capacité de
sauter d'une fréquence a ’autre.

Mme Finestone: C’est le terme que vous utilisez dans les
déclarations publiques.

M. Breau: C’est un simple récepteur. L’autre terme est le
terme le plus courant. Selon les estimations, les appareils
capables de capter les bandes de fréquence servant au téléphone
cellulaire sont trés répandues. Comme je le disais, ils peuvent
inclure les anciens t¢léviseurs. . . cette partie du spectre était utilisée
auparavant par laradiodiffusionet peutencore étre captée parcertains
téléviseurs. En syntonisant la bonne bande, il est possible d’entendre
des communications par téléphone cellulaire. I] ne s’agit que d’une
estimation.

M. Angus: A moins d'étre un pirate averti, on ne joue pas
avec son téléviseur pour essayer de capter au hasard des
communications par téléphone cellulaire. Neuf cent mille
appareils capables de capter ce genre de communications, cela
semble exagéré compte tenu de la situation. Nous devons avoir une
meilleure idée dunombre d’appareilsactuellement surle marché dont
le seul objet de capter des communications par téléphone cellulaire.
Y en a—t-il?
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Mr. Breau: Not to my knowledge. Most of the receivers, or
scanners, as they 're called, cover a fairly wide frequency range. So
they’ll cover the cellular frequency band, but they’ll also cover
air-to-ground communications, part of the broadcasting band. . .I'm
just trying to think of ones you can see in Radio Shack or somewhere;
I don’t think you’ll find ones that are exclusively cellular.

Mr. Angus: Fair enough.

One of you mentioned working with the industry to ensure
that any future scanners do not include decryption devices. Can
you legislate that? In this legislation, can you say, “‘A
manufacturer of a receiver may not include components
designed todecryptsignals in the following frequency. . .”'? Second-
ly, can you include in that legislation a prohibition against importing
such a device? I'm not asking for policy; I'm just asking for—

Mr. Breau: Legally I'll defer to my legal adviser, but technically
itis going to be a challenge. I think you can do it technically, but you
have to define the device.

I mentioned the new generation of cordless phones. One of
the difficulties we run into is that the frequency band they use
happens to be shared with the radio amateurs, so radio
amateurs are using the same frequency band for hobbyist
purposes and so on. If you start now technically—I don’t mean
legally, butinanengineering sense — trying todefine those receivers
without cutting off somebody’s hobbyist interest, it gets to be a
challenge.

Mr. Angus: But that's what you’re paid for. That's what the
challenge is.

Mr. Breau: It may be possible, yes, but legally. ..

Ms Gilhooly: Then the challenge comes over to me, because—

Mr. Angus: To the lawyer.

Ms Gilhooly: — legally you can do many things, but only if you
can define them properly so that they make sense. So legally I guess
the simple answer is yes, but there has to be something there so you
can say technically, ‘‘Aha! This is it. This is what we want to
prohibit™’.

Mr. Angus: Do any of the scanners pick up only one side of the
cellular conversation? Is it a twin—track communication?

e 1630

Mr. Breau: No. Actually, if you listen to the cell site or the base
station transmission, what it does is feed back a little bit of the audnp
so that you don’t get a strange sound when you hold a haf\dset: Sp if
you monitor the frequency that the cellular phone itself is emitting,
then you’ll hear only that side of the conversation; but if you listen to
a cell site, there might be a difference in volume and so on, but you
can generally hear both sides.

Mr. Angus: Andthere’s no danger at the other end. Oby iously, the
person who’s ona land line talking to someone on acellular phone has
their conversation overheard just as much as the—

[Traduction)

M. Breau: Pas a ma connaissance. La plupart des récepteurs ou
récepteurs a balayage peuvent capter de nombreuses fréquences. La
bande de fréquence pour les téléphones cellulaires, mais également
les communications air-sol, certaines bandes servant i la radiodiffu-
sion. . . J’essaie de voir parmi ceux qui sont vendus par Radio Shack
et d’autres entreprises; je ne pense pas qu'il y en ait qui servent
seulement a capter les appels par téléphone cellulaire.

M. Angus: Trés bien.

L’un de vous a dit que vous travailliez de concert avec
I'industrie afin de vous assurer que les récepteurs a balayage
futurs ne soient pas dotés de mécanismes de décodage. Ne
pouvez-vous pas I'établir dans la loi? Ne peut-il pas y avoir une
disposition qui dise: «le fabricant d’un récepteur ne peut pas
incorporer des mécanismes congus pour décoder les signaux des
fréquences suivantes. . .»? Ne pouvez—vous pas également interdire
I’importation de tels mécanismes? Je ne vous demande pas quelle
doit étre la politique a suivre. Je veux simplement savoir. . .

M. Breau: Pour ce qui est de I’aspect juridique, je vais m’en
remettre au conseiller ici présent. Sur le plan technique, la mesure
serait difficile a appliquer. Il faudrait commencer par définir le mot
mécanisme.

J'ai parlé de la nouvelle génération de téléphones portatifs.
Le probléme est que la bande de fréquence qu'ils utilisent est
également mise & la disposition des radios—amateurs; ccux—ci se
servent de la méme bande de fréquence pour leur passe—temps.
Sur le plan technique—strictement en ce qui concerne la mécani-
que—il est tres difficile de limiter ces récepteurs sans brimer une
certaine catégorie d’utilisateurs comme les radios—-amateurs.

M. Angus: Votre role consiste justement a résoudre ce genre de
problémes.

M. Breau: Techniquement, ce serait toujours possible, mais
juridiquement. . .

Mme Gilhooly: La balle nous est renvoyée. . .
M. Angus: Aux avocats!

Mme Gilhooly: . . . sauf que dans notre domaine les définitions
doivent étre également étre sensées. La réponse a votre question est
oui, mais doit étre établie & I'avance sur le plan technique et
exactement quel appareil est 1’objet de I'interdiction.

M. Angus: Y a—t-il des récepteurs a balayage qui ne captent les
messages que dans un sens? Captent-ils toujours les messages dans
les deux sens?

M. Breau: Non. Si vous écoutez le centre de transmission
cellulaire ou la station de transmission de base, vous captez le son; il
est faible, afin de ne pas inclure de bruit étrange. Si vous intonisez
seulement la fréquence émise par le téléphone cellulaire lui-méme,
vous n'entendez que I'interlocuteur qui utilise le téléphone. En
écoutant le centre de transmission cellulaire, vous avez peut-étre un
champ un peu plus faible, mais vous pouvez généralement entendre
les deux interlocuteurs.

M. Angus: I n'yapas dedanger aI’autre extrémité. Une personne
dont le téléphone est relié a une ligne terrestre qui parle a une
personne utilisant un téléphone cellulaire peut également étre
entendue. . .
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Mr. Breau: Because it’s going out over radio. That’s right.

Mr. Angus: Is that reception only within the cell? Isthere a limited
distance? Is it a distance from the cell transmitter as opposed to the
hand-held unit?

Mr. Breau: If you're trying to monitor both sides of the
conversation by listening to the cell site, yes, it would be a
function of how far you are from that cell site. Remember that
many frequencies are in use, and if the mobile or the person is
moving, they will get handed over to another cell site and a
different frequency. So if you were actually trying to target a
very specific person as they moved in their car, you’d have to be
pretty sophisticated to know what frequency they might switch
to on another cell site. That gets pretty complicated. The casual
listener would lose the conversation at the point of hand—off when
you go to another cell site.

Mr. Angus: Did the department examine the possibility of
banning scanners that are designed to intercept cellular conversa-
tions? If you did, can you indicate why you chose not to take that
route?

Mr. Breau: In fact, I should say that we haven’t ruled that
route out. That’s something we now have under very active
consideration to look at. It comes back to the point Elizabeth
was making, to define to bound the thing you're trying to ban.
Under the Radiocommunication Act, at least, we have the
power either to license or to issue a technical acceptance
certificate or not, as the case may be, and we also have powers
over importation, sale, manufacture and so on. So if we can
define it in such a way that we don 't capture other legitimate uses and
we allow forexemptions for legitimate uses, then that’s something we
are willing to look at.

Ms Gilhooly: We should make it clear that this would apply to
future technology, the digital technology. The minister was not
persuaded that, given the number of analogue scanning devices that
were available, it was practical or enforceable to move to prohibit the
use of analogue scanners.

Mr. Breau: That's a very good point. It’s like the personal
communications service I talked about, which will be merging
globally, in fact, in the range of the spectrum. You've got to
tackle this problem before you introduce the service or as you're
introducing it. Cellular has been with us in this country since 1985.
Whatever numbers of scanners or receivers are out there, there are a
lot, and it’s very difficult now to come back and try to tackle that
problem. However, digital is just about to start, so we are working
very actively in that area.

Mr. Angus: It sounds as if it’s the right time to do that.

The Chairman: ['m sorry, Mr. Angus; your time is up.

Mr. Angus: Did I have as much as my colleague?
The Chairman: Yes, you did. —MTr. Homer.

Mr. Horner (Mississauga West): Can you tell me, Mr. Bobiasz,
how many charges have been laid under the present sections 184 and
1937

Mr. Bobiasz: | can’t give you precise figures; but, quantitatively,
[ can say very few,

[Translation]

M. Breau: La conversation passe sur les ondes, en effet.

M. Angus: La réception se fait—elle dans un certain rayon du
centre de transmission? Est—ce la distance du centre de transmission
ou la distance du combiné qui compte?

M. Breau: Si vous essayez d’entendre les deux
interlocuteurs a partir du centre de transmission, la distance par
rapport au centre intervient. Vous devez savoir que plusieurs
fréquences sont utilisées. Si la personne se déplace, son message
est relayé a un autre centre de transmission et la fréquence
change. Si vous voulez écouter une personne qui se déplace en
auto, vous devez étre suffisamment expert pour savoir quelle
fréquence risque d’étre utilisée au centre de transmission
suivant. Ce peut étre assez compliqué. Le pirate amateur perd la
communication des qu’elle est reliée a un autre centre de transmis-
sion.

M. Angus: Le ministére a—t—il envisagé la possibilité d’interdire
les récepteurs d balayage congus pour intercepter les conversations au
téléphone cellulaire? Si oui, pourquoi a—t—il choisi une autre option?

M. Breau: Nous n’avons pas encore rejeté complétement
cette option. Nous continuons de I’examiner trés séricusement.
Le probléme est celui auquel a fait allusion Elizabeth. 1| faut
commencer par définir I’appareil qui doit faire 1'objet de
I'interdiction. Aux termes de la Loi sur la radiocommunication,
nous avons toujours le pouvoir d’octroyer les permis ou des
certificats de compétence technique, selon le cas; nous pouvons
également régir I’importation, la vente, la fabrication et d'autres
activités. Sinous pouvons trouver une définition qui respecte ’usage
légitime, nous sommes disposés a adopter cette orientation.

Mme Gilhooly: Nous tenons a préciser que c'est avec la
technologie & venir, la technologie numérique. Compte tenu du
nombre de récepteurs analogiques disponibles, le ministre ne croit
pas qu'’il soit envisageable d’en interdire I'utilisation.

M. Breau: Ma collegue a raison. C'est comme pour le
service de communications personnelles dont j’ai parlé un peu
plus tot et qui est censé étre rationalisé mondialement a
I'intérieur du spectre. Il faut que les deux actions soient
combinées. Le téléphone cellulaire existe chez nous depuis 1985. II
yabeaucoupde récepteurs ou de récepteurs a balayage en circulation.
1 est tres difficile de régler le probléme rétroactivement. Toutefois,
avec la technologie numérique qui pointe a I’horizon, nous pouvons
envisager sérieusement d’intervenir.

M. Angus: Le moment semble en effet propice.

Le président: Je regrette, monsieur Angus, mais votre temps est
écoulé.

M. Angus: Ai-je eu autant de temps que ma collégue?
Le président: Certainement. Monsicur Horner.

M. Horner (Mississauga-Ouest): Monsieur Bobiasz, pouvez-
vous me dire combien d’accusations ont été portées aux termes des
articles 183 et 184 actuels?

M. Bobiasz: Je n’ai pas le chiffre précis, mais ¢’est trés peu.
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Mr. Horner: You've got these offences in the Criminal Code,
sections 184 and 193. Now you’re going to have parallel offences
within the Radiocommunications Act. Is that what you said?

Mr. Bobiasz: Yes, sir.
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Mr. Horner: I'm sorry. | missed the reason why. Why are you
having parallel offences? If you have an offence within one act that
you can use, why are we having another set?

Mr. Bobiasz: | think there are two reasons, and I believe
my colleague, Ms Gilhooly, referred to at least one of them. It
often happens that, from an enforcement point of view,
provincial law enforcement agencies are generally more
comfortable enforcing the Criminal Code. The tendency today is
to restrict, at the provincial level, enforcement efforts basically
with regard to the Criminal Code, and a few more Criminal
Code-related federal offences, like under the Narcotic Control
Actand the Food and Drugs Act. Consequently a solution that would
do something just with the Radiocommunication Act would lack the
enforcement teeth that would be available from having the 75,000
peace officers in Canada who confine their activities to the Criminal
Code.

Mr. Horner: So it is already in the Criminal Code, sir?

Mr. Bobiasz: The way I understood you, you are asking why we
are proposing new similar offences, one in the Criminal Code andone
in the Radiocommunication Act.

Mr. Horner: Yes. Isn't it already in the Criminal Code?

Mr. Bobiasz: There is an offence in the Criminal Code but there’s
doubt as to whether it would apply to the interception or disclosure of
communications made by way of cellular phones.

Mr. Horner: What you’re saying is that judges ruled both ways.
Some judges have ruled for and some against.

Mr. Bobiasz: With regard to whether or not a communication
made overacellularcall isa private communication ornot, it has gone
either way.

Mr. Horner: Mrs. Finestone asked a question and I don’t think I
heard an answer. She asked why should we pay to have telephone
calls made private. How can that happen? How can youdo that? l have
acellular phone. Is there some way I can pay tohave my calls private?

Mrs. Finestone: Were you asking me that question?
Mr. Horner: No. I'm asking anyone who wants to answer.

Mrs. Finestone: It isn’t private right now, in case you want to
know.
Mr. Horner: I know it’s not.

Mr. Breau: Some of the cellular service providers even today do
have an offering that will introduce privacy. It's a form of encryption
of the analogue signal.

Mrs. Finestone: All the ministers have it.

[Traduction]

M. Horner: Des infractions sont déja prévues aux articles 184 et
193 du Code criminel. Des infractions semblables seront établies
dans la Loi sur la radiocommunication. C’est bien cela?

M. Bobiasz: Oui.

M. Horner: Je regrette, mais j’ai raté votre explication. Pourquoi
¢tablir des infractions similaires? S’il y en a déja dans une loi,
pourquoi les mettre dans une autre?

M. Bobiasz: Pour deux raisons, et ma collégue, madame
Gilhooly, en a déja cité une. Pour ce qui est de I'application de
la loi, les organismes provinciaux compétents se sentent
généralement plus sirs d’eux-mémes avec le Code criminel. la
tendance actuelle, au niveau provincial, consiste a s'efforcer de
rendre plus stricte I'application du Code criminel et quelques
autres mesures reliées au Code criminel fédéral comme la Loi
sur les stupéfiants et la Loi sur les aliments et drogues. Une
solution qui ferait seulement appel a la Loi sur la radiocommunica-
tion se priverait au niveau de I’application de I"accord de quelques
75 000 agents de la paix au Canada attachés surtout a faire respecter
le Code criminel.

M. Horner: Mais ces infractions ne sont-clles pas déja prévues au
code criminel, monsieur?

M. Bobiasz: Vous vouliez savoir, comme je vous avais compris,
pourquoi il y avait deux séries d’infractions similaires, une dans le
Code criminel et une dans la Loi sur la radiocommunication.

M. Horner: Oui. N'y en a-t-il pas déja une dans le Code
criminel?
M. Bobiasz: C’est juste, mais il n'est pas certain qu’elle vise

I’interception ou la divulgation de communications utilisant le
téléphone cellulaire.

M. Horner: Vous voulez dire que les juges n’ont pas statué¢ de
fagon uniforme. Ils n’ont pas tous été¢ du méme avis.

M. Bobiasz: Ils n’ont pas toujours considéré qu’une communica-
tion faite au téléphone cellulaire était une communication privée.

M. Horner: Madame Finestone a posé une question a laquelle il
n'y a pas eu de réponse, a mon avis. Elle a demand¢ pourquoi les
consommateurs devraient payer pour que leurs conversations télé-
phoniques demeurent privées. C’est impensable. J'ai un téléphone
cellulaire. Devrais—je payer pour que mes appels demeurent confi-
dentiels?

Mme Finestone: C’est 2 moi que vous posez la question?
M. Horner: Non. A quiconque voudra bien y répondre.

Mme Finestone: Vos conversations ne sont pas privées actuelle-
ment, si ¢’est cela que vous voudriez le savoir.

M. Horner: Je sais bien qu'elles ne le sont pas.

M. Breau: Certains fournisseurs du service cellulaire offrent déja
un dispositif de sécurité sous la forme d'un encodage du signal
analogique.

Mme Finestone: Tous les ministres s'en servent.
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Mr. Breau: I’m not sure of the cost, but when you go todigital then
it becomes much more easy to do that encryption technically.

Mr. Horner: If you're really, truly concerned about privacy, why
not have encryption of all of them? Why not just make it mandatory
to encrypt?

When you talk about malicious or for gain, my God, you can think
of a thousand different ways it could be malicious. I mean, I could
place a phone call to Conrad Black s office on my cellular phone and
can say that the drilling prospect in a certain area is negative, there’s
nothing there, Then the stock market goes down and 1 can buy in.
There are a thousand different ways.

You can talk about blackmailing someone for a love triangle.
Christ, you can talk about. . . There are all kinds of things, so if this
technology is available, why in hell not make it available for
everyone?

The Chairman: Make it compulsory.

Mr. Horner: That'’s right.

Ms Gilhooly: Mr. Chairman, I can address the privacy part, and [
will let my colleagues at Justice address the malicious and for gain
part, because of course we don’t have that in the radiocommunica-
tions part.

Essentially the minister in December announced a number of
privacy principles. 1 don’t know if you're familiar with them, so I'll
read through them very quickly. 1 think it’s important so that you
realize the Department of Communications is not just taking this
one—pronged approach of introducing legislation. There is the public
awareness that Mr. Jones spoke about, and there is also working with
the industry to develop better privacy measures.

The principles are:
Privacy is a right. We must respect it.

Informed choice. Users must be aware of privacy implications of
services that are offered.
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Fairness. When services are introduced which erode personal
privacy, privacy should be restored at no extra charge.

Control. Personal information should not be used without custom-
ers’ permission.

The right to be leftalone. Unsolicited telecommunications must be
subjecttoclear groundrules and reviewed. As technology and society
change, privacy principles and protection should be reviewed. These
principles are an attempt to strike a balance in favour of privacy in the
system as a whole.

Mr. Horner: Am I right in saying, then, that encryption fulfils all
of those?

Ms Gilhooly: No, no.

Mr. Horner: Why not?

Ms Gilhooly: Encryption would just be one part. The ministers
and parts of DOC are working with the industry todevelop encryption
techniques that would be developed to be offered at areasonable cost,

so that people who wanted them could subscribe to them. But, of
course, this kind of development of technology takes some time.

[Translation)

M. Breau: Je ne sais pas combien cela coiite. C’est techniquement
beaucoup plus facile a instaurer avec le signal numérique.

M. Horner: Si vous voulez vraiment assurer la confidentialité des
conversations téléphoniques, pourquoi n’exigez—vous pas |’encoda-
ge sur tous les appareils? Pourquoi ne pas le rendre obligatoire?

Vous parlez d’actes commis dans une intention criminelle ou pour
un gain personnel. 1l y a des milliers d’exemples possibles. Je
pourrais appeler Conrad Black a son bureau en utilisant mon
téléphone cellulaire et dire que les résultats du forage dans certaines
régions sont négatifs. Les actions baisseraient et je m’empresserais
d’en acheter. Je pourrais commettre des milliers d’actes de ce genre.

Ce pourrait €tre du chantage auprés de gens qui tiennent ménage
a trois. Ce pourrait étre n’importe quoi. .. Si la technologie est
disponible, pourquoi ne pas I’étendre a tout le monde?

Le président: Et la rendre obligatoire.
M. Horner: Oui.

Mme Gilhooly: Je ne peux parler que de I’aspect confidentialité
des conversations, monsieur le président. Je laisse ames collégues du
ministére de la Justice le soin de traiter de I’intention criminelle et du
gain personnel, ces considérations ne se trouvant pas dans la partie
sur la radiocommunication.

En décembre, le ministre a énoncé un certain nombre de principes
relatifsa laconfidentialité. Pourrafraichir votre mémoire, je vais vous
les lire rapidement. Vous devez bien savoir que le ministére des
Communications ne se borne pas a introduire un projet de loi. Il y a
également une campagne de sensibilisation du public. Monsieur
Jones en a parlé. Il y a une concertation avec I’'industrie en vue d’en
arriver a accroitre la confidentialité.

Les principes énoncés précédemment sont les suivants:
La confidentialité est un droit. Elle doit étre respectée.

Le choix que font les gens doit étre un choix éclairé. Les
utilisateurs des services doivent étre informés des risques sur le plan
de la confidentialité.

Equité. Quand on introduit des services qui portent atteinte a la vie
privée, il faut rétablir cette vie privée sans frais pour le client.

Controle. Les renseignements personnels ne doivent pas étre
utilisés sans 1’autorisation du client.

Le droita la paix, quoi. Il convient d’établir des régles trés claires
au sujet des télécommunications non sollicitées. A mesure qu’évo-
luent la technologie et la société, il faut revoir les principes et
mécanismes de protectionde la vie privée, I’objectif étant d’accorder
la priorité a la vie privée.

M. Horner: Ai-je raison de penser que le systéme de cryptage
réponde a toutes ces exigences?

Mme Gilhooly: Mais non.
M. Horner: Pourquoi?

Mme Gilhooly: Parce que cela ne suffit pas. Les ministres et le
ministére des Communications collaborent avec I'industrie pour
mettre au point les techniques de cryptage que 1’on pourrait offrir a
des prix raisonnables et auxquelles les gens qui le désirent pourraient
s’abonner. Cela exige cependant la mise au point d’une technologie
particuliére, qui prendra un certain temps,
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There are things that can be done fairly quickly, like the audible
beep that DOC and the industry are looking at, the introduction of a
beep signal so that if you’re not ona cellular phone but you're talking
to someone on a cellular phone the beep lets you know, hey, I'm
talking to this person on a cellular phone; I'd better watch it.

I guess it’s hard for officials to know. There’s a panoply of privacy
principles that are in play here. Today we’re looking primarily at
legislation, but we could also give you a thorough briefing on the
whole privacy principles, if that would be of help to you.

Mr. Horner: Is the technology available to make it totally private?

Mr. Breau: It depends, of course, at what cost. For example, the
military —

Mr. Horner: What do you mean, cost?

Mr. Breau: Well, [ was going to say that the military, for example,
are very concerned about interception—

Mr. Horner: Of course.

Mr. Breau: —and they use very sophisticated means of
making it socalled private. It depends on the level of technical
sophistication, which usually is associated with the higher cost
one wishes to go to in order to protect the communication. If
i's national security, governments take great measures (0
encrypt signals so that they’re not intercepted by foreign
governments, etc. For consumers there’s another level of
encryption that will go a long way to protecting a signal. There
are many technical ways of doing it. Usually the more sophisticated
they are, the more they cost.

It’s much like a house. You could put a single lock on your front
door, or you can put six locks on it. You can do various things. You
can get alarm systems. There arec many technical options, but they
come at a cost.

The Chairman: Has anybody costed out the figures on total
encryption, total security? I have a concern here. 1 have to
assume that every phone call that is made, the person who.calls
and the person who receives the call assume that is private.
There’s a basic fundamental assumption here on the part of the public
thatit’sa private communication, unless otherwise sodesignated. Yet
I don’t see that assumption in this bill. 1 don’t see anything technical
or legal here that assumes that is a basic assumption and ri.ght of the
individual. We are just finding out here that we have options.

M. Breau: Just to return to the privacy principles again, privacy
is a right. The other principle which is important states, ““When
services arc introduced which erode personal privacy, pri\{acy should
be restored at no charge’’. That would argue that, as we introduce a
new service, the privacy has to be there at no additional cost.

The Chairman: But did you not just say that for total encryption,
for total security, you’re going to have to pay a heck of a lot for it.

[Traduction)

I y a certaines choses que I’on peut faire assez rapidement, par
exemple I’introduction d’un signal sonore qui vous avertirait que
vous parlez a quelqu’un qui utilise un téléphone cellulaire, en
utilisant vous—méme un téléphone ordinaire. Ce signal sonore
constituerait pour vous un avertissement.

Il est difficile pour le moment de savoir tout ce qui serait
nécessaire, car il y a beaucoup de principes en jeu concernant la
protection de la vie privée. Pour le moment, nous discutons
essentiellement de mesures législatives mais, si vous le désirez, nous
pourrions organiser une séance d’information sur tous les principes
relatifs a la protection de la vie privée.

M. Horner: Existe—t-il déja une technologie permettant de rendre
ces conversations totalement privées?

M. Breau: Cela dépend du prix que I’on est disposé a payer. Dans
’armée, par exemple. . .

M. Horner: Que voulez—vous dire?

M. Breau: Jallais vous dire que I'armée, qui tient beaucoup a ce
que ses communications ne soient pas interceptécs. . .

M. Horner: Bien sir!

M. Breau: . . .on utilise des méthodes trés sophistiquées pour
se protéger contre ce risque; mais cela colite trés cher. Au fond,
plus on veut protéger le secret des communications, plus cela
cofte cher. Quand il s’agit de questions de sécurité nationale,
les gouvernements sont préts a aller aussi loin qu’il le faudra
pour garantir que leurs signaux ne puissent pas étre interceptés,
par exemple par un gouvernement étranger. Pour ce qui est des
particuliers, on peut protéger les signaux en ayant recours a des
systémes de cryptage qui ne sont pas nécessairement aussi sophisti-
qués. Iy abeaucoup de solutions techniques a ce probleme et le cotit
dépend du degré de protection que I'on veut obtenir.

C’est un peu comme vouloir protéger sa maison. Vous pouvez
installer une seule serrure sur votre porte d'entrée, ou vous pouvezen
installersix. Si vous le voulez, vous pouvez aussi installer un systé me
d’alarme. Il y adonc bon nombre d’options techniques, a des prix trés
variables.

Le président: A-t-on calculé le colt d'un systtme de
sécurité totale? A mon avis, quand deux personnes ont une
conversation téléphonique, les deux supposent que leur
conversation est privée. Cela me semble assez fondamental. Or,
je ne retrouve pas cette hypothése dans le projet de loi. Je ne vois ici
aucune disposition technique ou juridique correspondant a cette
hypothése fondamentale, qui représente un droit des particuliers. En
fait, nous découvrons qu’il y a des options.

M. Breau: Pour en revenir aux principes de protection de la vie
privée, il est vrai que cette vie privée constitue un droit. Autre
principe important, je I'ai exprimé¢ tout-a-I'heure, «quand on
introduit des services qui portent atteinte a la vie privée, celle—i doit
étre rétablie sans frais pour I'usager». Autrement dit, si nous
introduisons un nouveau service, nous devons garantir que la vie
privée des usagers sera protégée sans que cela leur cotte plus cher.

Le président: Mais vous venez de dire que la sécuriié totale
cofiterait trés cher.
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Mr. Breau: Well, if you’re going to the level of national security.
In fact some of the most sophisticated encryption algorisms are not
available to the general public. They’re restricted by intelligence
agencies and so on. They’re not even going to be available to the
general public. They're not available for export and so on.

If you’re looking at the kind of encryption that is available to the
general public, you can either cost that as an incremental cost or you
can include thatinacost of the service. But regardless, whenever you
introduce a new service, that service has a cost associated with it. If
you want to define the service as including the feature of encryption
and spread it over all users, that’s entirely possible.

People who are obviously in the best position to answer this are the
cellular service providers because they are working on an industry
standard for the new digital cellular in cooperation with their cellular
counterparts in the United States, and on an encryption standard, so
they would be really the experts and the leading edge of this.

Mr. Thacker: Mr. Chairman, I think most of us have spent our
lives feeling when we got onthe old phone it was private. It was never
private. Somebody who had the capacity totap itcould tap it. Society
declared that to be illegal and that there would be sanctions levied
against it.
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It’s no different with this new one. It’s just that it’s easier to
intercept a cellular phone call if you’re an ordinary person out on the
street, butwe’re now moving asasociety to levy sanctions against that
type of interception. Then technology is being developed to sce
whether or not there’s an encryption process that would be available
at a price acceptable to the ordinary population rather than just to
governments for national security.

Would you explain tous what’s happening in the United States and
incontinental Europe withall of these bans and cellular phones? What
types of sanctions are they using?

Mr. Breau: Unfortunately, and I know this is a bit of a
failing of the international communications community, the
frequency bands used around the world are different. To begin
with, the cellular phone that you have here cannot be taken to
Europe and used there. They usc a different frequency band, and in
fact they are going to digital technology also. It’s called GSM. There
they will also offer an encryption service. I'm not familiar with
whether it’s an option or whether it’s always included. I think it’s
optional, but I'm not an expert on that.

In other parts of the world they’re using the similar type of
analogue technology that we're currently using in Canada and
the United States, although in both countries there is the move
to digital. In the United States the FCC is working on
regulations much like the type raised in the question earlier that would
ban the manufacture, import, sale, use, etc., of devices capable of
receiving cellular phone calls. We are keeping in very close touch
with them because of this challenge of how you define it and how you
draft it.

[Translation]

M. Breau: Oui, s’il s’agissait de garantirune sécurité égale a celle
de la sécurité nationale. En fait, certains des algorithmes de cryptage
sophistiqué ne sont méme pas a la portée du grand public. Seuls les
organismes de renseignements y ont acces. Ils ne sont pas commer-
cialisés et ils ne peuvent pas étre exportés, par exemple.

Pour ce qui est des systémes de cryptage que I’on pourrait mettre
a la disposition du grand public, le prix pourrait étre intégré dans le
cofit du service ou il pourrait étre établi séparément. Quoi qu’il en
soit, chaque fois que I’on introduit un nouveau service, il y ades colts
a prendre en considération, Ces colits peuvent étre intégrés au tarif de
base, ce qui veut dire qu’ils seraient imputés a tous les usagers. C’est
une solution tout a fait envisageable.

Je crois que ce sont les fournisseurs de services cellulaires qui
seraient le mieux placés pour vous répondre car ils procédent
actuellement a I’élaboration d’une norme industrielle, pour les
nouveaux services cellulaires numériques, en collaboration avec
leurs homologues des Etats—Unis. IIs sont en train de mettre au point
un systéme de sécurité standardisé.

M. Thacker: Nous avons toujours eu |'impression, monsieur le
président, que nos conversations téléphoniques étaient privées, alors
que ce n’était jamais le cas. Quiconque voulait intercepter des
conversations téléphoniques pouvait le faire. Cela dit, la société a
décidé que I'interception des conversations téléphoniques serait
illégale et elle a prévu des sanctions a ce sujet.

C’est tout a fait la méme chose avec les nouveaux systémes. Il se
trouve simplementqu’ilestplus faciled’intercepter une conversation
sur un téléphone cellulaire, mais nous sommes certes sur le point, en
tant que société, de prévoir des sanctions contre ce type d'intercep-
tion. Nous en sommes donc au point ol I’on essaie de trouver une
technologie de cryptage pour éviter ce genre d’interception, a un prix
acceptable pour le citoyen ordinaire.

. Pourriez-vous nous dire quelle est la situation a cet égard aux
Etats—Unis et en Europe? Quelles sanctions sont prévues a |’étranger
en cas d’interception?

M. Breau: Hélas, on n’utilise pas les mémes bandes de
fréquence dans le monde entier, ct je reconnais que c’est Ja une
carence des systtmes de communication a [|'échelle
internationale. Par exemple, le téléphone cellulaire que vous
utilisez au Canada ne peut I’étre en Europe, ot I’on utilise une bande
de fréquence différente. Cela dit, I'Europe se tourne elle aussi vers
une technologie numérique, désignée par le sigle GSM, a laquelle
sera aussi associ€ un systéme de cryptage. Je ne sais pas si ce service
sera fourni d’office ou s’il sera optionnel. Je crois en fait que ce sera
une option mais je n’en suis pas certain.

Dans d’autres régions du monde, on utilise la technologie
traditionnelle que nous utilisons actuellement au Canada et aux
Etats-Unis, de type analogue. Aux Etats-Unis, 2 mesure que
I’on évolue vers la technologie numérique, la FCC veut élaborer
des réglements, semblables a ceux qui ont été évoqués tout a I’heure,
pour interdire la fabrication, I'importation, la vente, |’ utilisation, etc.,
de systemes capables de recevoir les appels cellulaires. Nous suivons
la situation de trés prés car nous sommes trés intéressés par les
solutions que proposera la FCC.
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Our industry in Canada has made trips to Washingtonto meet with
industry leaders in the cellular field in the United States, and we also
have made similar trips to leam from them and see how they have
crafted their regulations. Of course their underlying legislation is
different. Their whole system of regulation and law is quite different.
Elizabeth could explain that.

M:s Gilhooly: You've got two hours?

Mr. Breau: In terms of the technical approach to it, that is what
they have done. They have gone the route almost exclusively of trying
to ban the receiving device. I’'m notaware that they ‘re doing anything
on public education, forexample, or any research within government.

Mrs. Finestone: Mr. Chairman, I'd like a clarification. Perhaps
Ive been misinformed. That could happen. I was told that legislation
was in and passed, and scanners in the United States are illegal for
cellular receiving sets.

Mr. Breau: Not quite yet. The legislation has been passed.
At this point in time the FCC has been charged by Congress to
put together regulations that would prohibit the manufacture
and importation of scanners, That is to cease a year from now,
in April 1994, according to the legislation. They will stop
approving new scanners in April of 1993. It’s important to note,
however, that even after 1994 the commerce in scanners will not
be prohibited. The commerce in scanners can continue after
April 1994. The importation and manufacture of scanners arc
prohibited at that point in time. They've also focused strictly on
scanners in the cellular band, not all radio-based telephone commu-
nication.

Mrs. Finestone: Therefore, youranswer, I think tothe question of
Mr. Thacker, was that there is legislation, it has been passed, and
they’re looking at regulations.

Mr. Breau: By legislation lincluded the regulations, andthe FCC
is currently drafting those regulations.

Mr. Thacker: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if it’s possible to have a
note, because they must have some comparative analyses pf Fhe
different ways different countries have gone after this. I'm l}?mk'mg
more of continental Europe where there are so many countrics in a
small area and yet they’ve got as much concern for privacy as we do.
What are the various models that are being used, and why is ours the
best? 1 presume it is.

® 1650

Mr. Roy: Perhaps we can undertake to provide this kind of
!nfonnation atthe next meeting of this committee. We don’thave that
information readily available now.

Mrs. Finestone: And how many sold.

M. Thacker: It doesn’t have to be in great detail or anything like
that, but I’m interested in comparisons.

Mr. Lee (Scarborough— Rouge River): Section 193 accepts
what I would call innocent interception, yet there is no such thing as
an innocent disclosure. Disclosure is made an offence. There may in
fact be different types of disclosure that might happen.

[Traduction]

Des représentants de notre industrie ont déja eu de nombreux
contacts avec leurs homologues américains, et nous avons fait nous
aussi de nombreux voyages aux Etats—Unis pour voir comment sera
formulée laréglementation américaine dans le secteur des communi-
cations cellulaires. 1l faut dire toutefois que les dispositions Iégislati-
ves en vigueur aux Etats—Unis sont trés différentes des notres.
Elizabeth pourra vous I’expliquer.

Mme Gilhooly: Vous avez deux heures a2 me consacrer?

M. Breau: Sur le plan strictement technique, les Américains ont
choisi une seule solution, a I'exclusion de presque toutes les autres, en
décidant d’interdire les appareils de réception. Je ne crois pas qu’ils
envisagent quoi que ce soit sur le plan de I’éducation du public ou de
la recherche par les services gouvernementaux.

Mme Finestone: Je voudrais avoir une précision, monsieur le
président. Peut—&tre ai-je €té mal informée mais quelqu’un m’a dit
qu’une loi avait été adoptée aux Etats—Unis pour interdire totalement
les appareils de réception cellulaires.

M. Breau: Pas tout a fait. Certes, la loi a été adoptée mais
le Congrés a demandé a la FCC d’élaborer des reglements
interdisant la fabrication et |'importation des récepteurs a
balayage. Aux termes de cette loi, cela sera interdit dans un an,
c'est-a-dire en avril 1994. En outre, la FCC cessera
d’approuver de nouveaux récepteurs a balayage des avril 1993. 11
convient toutefois de préciser que le commerce des récepteurs a
balayage ne sera pas interdit, méme aprés avril 1994. C'est
seulement |'importation et la fabrication qui le seront. En outre, ces
dispositions s"appliquent strictement aux récepteurs a balayage de la
bande cellulaire et non pas pour tous les services de communication
par téléphone basés sur le systéme radio.

Mme Finestone: Autrement dit, vous diricz en réponse a
monsieur Thacker qu’une loi a été adoptée aux Etats—Unis et que des
réglements sont en cours d'élaboration?

M. Breau: Quand je parlede loi, j'y inclus les réglements. La FCC
les formule actuellement.

M. Thacker: Pourriez—vous nous adresser une note comparant les
différentes méthodes utilisées dans les différents pays? Pourriez-
vous surtout nous indiquer ce qui se fait en Europe, ou il y a tant de
petits paysetou la protection des renseignements personnels a autant
d’importance que chez nous? Quels sont les différents systemes
utilisés, et pourquoi le notre est—il meilleur? Je suppose qu’il I’est.

M. Roy: Nous pourrions vous fournir ces renseignements lors de
la prochaine réunion. Nous ne les avons pas a notre disposition en ce
moment.

Mme Finestone: Et pourriez—vous nous dire aussi combien ont
été vendus?

M. Thacker: 1l ne s’agit pas de faire une analyse extrémement
détailléc. Je veux simplement une comparaison générale.

M. Lee (Scarborough—Rouge River): Si je comprends bien
I’article 193, on y envisage ce que j'appellerai des interceptions
innocentes. Or, 2 mes yeux, cela n’existe pas. Toute divulgation de
communications devient une infraction, mais il peut y avoir
différents types de divulgation.
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For example, consider an interception which is legal, which
is innocent. If a person scanning legally, intercepts, overhears a
conversation, and says to his spouse, ‘“‘My God, I just heard
that X, Y, Z is happening’’, that by definition now is a criminal
offence. An innocent interception could overhear something.
The classic is the plot to assassinate Mr. or Mrs. X, where the
interceptor feels the need to disclose but it is said to be a
criminal offence. That person then approaches the police.
Would there be, should there be, could there be a defence of necessity
inserted into that Criminal Code provision?

Mr. Roy: Again I will defer to Mr. Bobiasz, the expert in the field.

Mr. Bobiasz: In this regard the offence in proposed
subsection 193.1 deals with the disclosure of intercepted radio—
based telephone communications. Subsection (2) of that
provision is found on page 14, lines 17 to 20. For that we have
to look to the existing Criminal Code. Unfortunately, the way we
package amendments to the code you not only must have a
knowledge of the existing law, but you have to bring what presently
exists and is not being changed with you.

In subsection 193(2) there are a number of exceptions that apply
at the moment to disclosure of intercepted private communications,
and they would apply to the disclosure of intercepted radio-based
telephone communications.

Mr. Lee: Do they apply to both scenarios that I have just—

Mr. Bobiasz: No. They apply to the second one which is—

Mr. Lee: Necessity.

Mr. Bobiasz: If you have to report something to the officials or the
like, yes.

Mr. Lee: It clearly does to that.

Mr. Bobiasz: Well, we can—

Mr. Lee: No. Just tell me that it does or doesn’t.

Mr. Bobiasz: Yes, it does.

Mr. Lee: And in the first case?

Mr. Bobiasz: In the first case there’s nothing there.

Mr. Lee: I guess I’m correct when I say an ordinary telephone call
which is transmitted by line but which at some point is transmitted by
microwave is thought to be covered by the Criminal code, but in fact
is just as vulnerable to interception of the microwave signal as is a
cellular phone call. Have I got that right?

Mr. Breau: On the technical side, of course if it goes over satellite
or microwave or any radio signal, someone could have areceiverand
could listen in on that conversation. But I think there’s probably a
legal answer here in terms of expectation of privacy and how a court
would treat it.

Ms Gilhooly: Isn’t there also further technical argument in that
things that travel by microwave travel very much like things travel in
acable, bundled, so that you must have fairly sophisticated devices to
intercept a microwave conversation?

[Translation)

Prenez par exemple le cas d’une interception légale, c’est—
a—dire innocente. Supposez que j'intercepte légalement une
conversation, aprés un balayage, et que je dise 2 mon épouse:
«Mon Dieu, je viens d'entendre telle ou telle chose». Par
définition, cela constitue actuellement une infraction pénale. Ii
peut cependant y avoir une interception innocente qui me révéle
une situation classique, un complot pour assassiner monsieur ou
madame X. Je serais naturellement porté a divulguer ce fait
mais la divulgation sera considérée comme un acte criminel. Si je
réveéle a la police ce que j’ai appris, pourrai—je étre poursuivi? Y
aura—t—il dans le Code pénal un article me protégeant dans ce genre
de situation? Pourrais-je invoquer une défense de nécessité?

M. Roy: Je vais laisser M. Bobiasz vous répondre, puisque c’est
lui I'expert.

M. Bobiasz: L'infraction envisagée au paragraphe 193.1
concerne la divulgation de communications téléphoniques
interceptées sur un systéme radio. Au paragraphe suivant, on
prévoit certaines exceptions. Pour les comprendre, il faut
examiner le Code criminel actuel. En effet, pour comprendre les
amendements qui sont proposés, il faut examiner non seulement les
articles que I’on veut modifier mais aussi ceux que 1’on ne modifie
pas.

Vous trouverez au paragraphe 193(2) plusieurs exceptions s’ap-
pliquant actuellement a la divulgation des communications privées
qui sont interceptées. Ces exceptions s’appliqueraient donc aussi a la
divulgation de communications téléphoniques interceptées sur un
systeme radio.

M. Lee: Les exceptions s’appliquent—elles dans les deux cas que
je viens de. . .

M. Bobiasz: Non, elles s’appliquent seulement au deuxiéme. . .
M. Lee: Je parle de la défense de nécessité.

M. Bobiasz: Oui, elle s’applique s’il s’agit de rapporter quelque
chose aux pouvoirs publics.

M. Lee: Ce serait manifestement le cas que je viens d’envisager.
M. Bobiasz: Nous pouvons. . .

M. Lee: Non, dites—moi si elle s’applique oui ou non.

M. Bobiasz: Oui, elle s’applique.

M. Lee: Et dans le premier cas?

M. Bobiasz: 1l n’y a rien concernant le premier cas.

M. Lee: Prenons le cas d’une conversation téléphonique ordinai-
re, qui est transmise par les lignes traditionnelles puis, 4 un certain
moment, par micro-ondes. Ce genre de conversation risque tout
autant d’étre intercepté. Une conversation transmise par téléphone
cellulaire, n’est—ce pas?

M. Breau: Evidemment, quelqu’un pourrait utiliser un récepteur
pour intercepter une conversation transmise par satellite, par micro-
ondes ou par signal radio. Je crois cependant que 1’on pourrait
probablement convaincre un tribunal que les personnes ayant cette
conversation s’attendaient a ce qu’elle soit privée.

Mme Gilhooly: 11 y a aussi une protection technique dans le cas
que vous envisagez. En effet, les signaux envoyés par micro—ondes
circulent essentiellement comme ceux qui sont envoyés par cable,
c’est—a—dire qu’ils sont groupés, et il faut donc des récepteurs assez
sophistiqués pour les intercepter.
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Mr. Breau: The receiver is much more sophisticated.
Ms Gilhooly: Much more sophisticated.

Mr. Angus: Not necessarily the satellite, though.
Mr. Breau: No.

Mr. Lee: At the moment, as far as we are aware, there is a
Canadian government agency which does intercept microwave
transmissions. 1 don’t notice any exception in the bill for that
agency, CSE. They intercept Canadian—originated or Canadian—
targeted communications. They intercept the bundles and
decrypt and do everything else. There is not an exception for
them, and the warrants or authorizations provided for in the bill
don’t seem to have. . . Do you have an answer that could address
that issue for that security agency? In other words, whatthey 're doing
now may or may not be legal, but in the future I think the wording of
the section would make what they are doing illegal.
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Mr. Roy: Are you talking about section 1937

Mr. Lee: No. I'm talking about interception of radio-based
telephone communications. CSE, as I understand it, intercept
information of that nature. They do it now without a warrant, as I
understand it. I'm wondering about their circumstances under the
provisions in the bill.

Mr. Bobiasz: I should explain something. Because wedidn’twant
to get into a great deal of detail, we've treateda number of these issues
at a broad-based level, but what we’re dealing with here in terms of
radio-based telephone communications is a very narrow range of
things.

First of all, it's telephone communications. It's not radio—
based communications. We've seen in a few remarks made
about this legislation that we're talking about radio-based
communications, which are a much broader type .of
communications than we're dealing with. We're dealing with
radio-based telephone communications. If you |ook‘ at the
definition in clause 1 of radio-based telephonc communications,
essentially we're concerned about that part of the air space
between the cellular headset and the commercial public sw1§ch
network. It’s just to get us at the functional equivalent of the line
connecting your house telephone to the wall. The concept of
radio-based telephone communications is just to get at that narrow
part of the spectrum.

Mr. Lee: Iunderstand what you’re saying. I think that makes sense.
'l read it over later.

Mr. Bobiasz: Tobealittle morccomplele,theotherthing youhave
to look at, of course, is the definition of public switch telephor)e
network, which is in clause 1 as well. It's designed s0 that we can fix
in space the functional equivalent of the little cord between the phone
and the phone company.

The Chairman: Maybe the committee might want to invite CSE
tocome before it and express an opinion on the impacfofBlll C-109
on their work. I leave that in the hands of the committee.

Mr. Thacker: If they care.

Mr. Angus: Are there any scanners actually produced in Canada,
or do we bring them all in from the States?

[Traduction]

M. Breau: En cffet, les récepteurs sont beaucoup plus complexes.
Mme Gilhooly: Beaucoup plus.

M. Angus: Mais pas nécessairement le satellite.

M. Breau: Non.

M. Lee: A notre connaissance, il y a actuellement un
organisme du gouvernement qui intercepte des communications
transmises par micro—ondes. Je ne vois dans le projet de loi
aucune exception concernant cet organisme, le CST, qui
intercepte des communications a destination ou en provenance
du Canada. 11 a tous les appareils techniques qu’il faut pour les
décoder et les intercepter. Or, je ne vois rien dans les
dispositions du projet de loi, concernant par exemple les
autorisations, qui protégerait ses activités a cet égard. Je ne sais pas si
ce que fait le CST estactuellement légal ou non mais, 4 I’avenir, avec
ce projet de loi, ce serait manifestement illégal.

M. Roy: Parlez—vous de I'article 193?

M. Lee: Non, je parle de I'interception des communications
téléphoniques par systéme radio. Si je comprends bien, le CST cn
intercepte actuellement. En plus, il le fait sans mandat spécial. Quel
effet aurait le projet de loi dans son cas?

M. Bobiasz: Je vais vous expliquer quelque chose. Nous n’avons
pas voulu traiter de ces questions de maniére extrémement détaillée,
nous nous sommes contentés de les aborder a un niveau trés général.
Or, ce dont vous parlez ici, dans le cas des communications
téléphoniques par systéme radio, représente un domaine assez
particulier.

Tout d’abord, le projet de loi concerne les communications
téléphoniques et non pas les communications radio. Certes,
nous avons vu pendant la discussion que le projet de loi touche
un aspect de ce type de communication, mais c’est un aspect
extrémement restreint dans cette catégorie. Si vous examinez la
définition de ces communications, a I'article |, vous verrez
qu'elle porte essenticllement sur la partie qui va entre le
récepteur cellulaire et le réseau de commutation publique
commercial. Il ne s’agit pour nous que de réglementer 1’équivalent
fonctionnel de la ligne qui relie votre téléphone personnel au mur. La
maniére dont nous envisageons les communications téléphones par
systéme radio, dans ce projet de loi, vise simplement a régir cette
partic extrémement restreinte du spectre.

M. Lee: Je comprends. Je crois que ¢’est raisonnable. Je lirai cela
plus tard.

M. Bobiasz: Pour étre un peu plus complet, il faut tenir compte
aussi de 1a définition du réseau de téléphone public qui est proposé a
l'article 1. L'objectif, encore une fois, est simplement de régir
1’équivalent fonctionnel du petitfil quirelie votre téléphone au réseau
public.

Le président: Peut-étre pourrions nous inviter des représentants
du CST a venir nous dire ce qu’ils pensent du projet de loi C-109? Je
vous laisse décider.

M. Thacker: Si cela les intéresse.

M. Angus: Y a-t-il actuellement des récepteurs a balayage qui
sont fabriqués au Canada ou tous ceux que nous avons viennent-ils
des Ftats—Unis?
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Mr. Robert W. Jones (Director General, Radio Regulatory
Branch, Department of Communications): As far as I know there
aren’t any produced in Canada. They’re all brought in from the Far
East.

Mr. Angus: So much for domestic industry.

In terms of the American legislation, did it say that they can’t be
produced and imported, or did it say they can’t be produced for
domestic consumption? In other words, could they produce scanners
and dump them in the Canadian market?

Mr. Jones: My recollection is that this distinction hasn’t been
made. They can’t be imported into the United States or manufactured
in the United States.

Mr. Angus: So basically then all we would have to stipulate is a
prohibition on the importation of the devices.

Mr. Jones: Basically, because —

Mr. Angus: Or at least that’s the only part that would have an
impact.

Mr. Jones: They 're largely manufactured forthe American market
anyway. There’s not that much of a market in Canada here.
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Mr. Angus: Well, I don’t know. There are 900,000 of them out
there.

In terms of your consideration of the restriction on scanners, have
you included in that whether or not scanners that are designed or can
pick up the police frequencies would be included in such a ban? I
know that a number of the police departments are quite concerned
about the wrong people hearing that their cars are on the way.

Mr. Breau: That’s a good point. Over the years most of the police
departments that, [ wouldsay, are very aware that they are using radio,
have moved to some form of encryption. Many of them have gone to
DD communications; many of them have encrypted the voice. Wetry
toemphasize the technological solutiontogivethemthat security, and
they are doing that.

Mr. Angus: I want to shift very briefly to the other part of
the bill that deals with the ability of the police to record
conversations. As I understand it, and please correct me if I am
wrong, for quite some time, up until some court cases, the
police were legally able to record a conversation on a land-line
if one of the persons party to that conversation gave permission.
Subsequently the courts rule that illegal, and this bill attempts
to put that back into the law. If that is the case, how can you be
certain that the language you have chosen will not be bounced back
by the courts?

Mr. Roy: Actually that brings us back to what we thought
would be the first step in the presentation, in the sense that in
order to understand what the Supreme Court has done, the case
you are talking about is the case of Duarte, which came down in
January of 1990. Basically what the Supreme Court said was that
when the state is involved in an interception of that nature, the state
has an obligation under section 8 of the Charter of Rights and
Freedoms to protect the rights of privacy of Canadians and others who
may be involved in a conversation.

[Translation)

M. Robert W. Jones (directeur général, Réglement des
radiocommunications, ministére des Communications): A ma
connaissance, on n'en fabrique pas au Canada. Ils viennent tous de
I’Extréme Orient.

M. Angus: Et tant pis pour ’industrie nationale.

Revenons a la loi américaine. Aux termes de ses dispositions,
qu’est—ce qui est interdit: la fabrication et I’importation, ou la
fabrication intérieure? Autrement dit, des sociétés américaines
pourraient—elles fabriquer des récepteurs a balayage pouren inonder
le marché canadien?

M. Jones: Si je me souviens bien, il n'y a pas de distinction de
cette nature dans la loi américaine. On y lit simplement qu’ils ne
peuvent pas étre importés ni fabriqués aux Etats—Unis.

M. Angus: Donc, tout ce que nous aurions a faire, c’est d’en
interdire I'importation.

M. Jones: Essentiellement, puisque. . .
M. Angus: Cela suffirait pour atteindre nos objectifs.

_ M. Jones: Oui, puisqu’ils sont essentiellement fabriqués aux
Etats—Unis. 1l n’y a pas vraiment de marché au Canada dans ce
domaine.

M. Angus: Je ne sais pas si vous pouvez dire cela. 11 y ena 900 000
en circulation.

Les dispositions interdisant les récepteurs a balayage s’applique-
raient—lles aussi a ceux qui permettent d’intercepter les fréquences
utilisées par la police? Il est évident que la police ne tient pas 4 ce que
des malandrins soient au courant de ses activités.

M. Breau: Vous avez raison. Au cours des années, la plupart des
services de police sc sont dotés de systémes de cryptage de leurs
communications radio. Bon nombre d'entre eux ont changé complé-
tement leur systéme de communications, mais beaucoup utilisent des
systémes de cryptage des voix. Nous leur recommandons les
solutions techniques les plus propres a garantir leur sécurité.

M. Angus: Je voudrais maintenant aborder briévement un
autre aspect du projet de loi, concernant |'enregistrement des
conversations par la police. Reprenez-moi si je me trompe mais,
jusqu'a ce que certains arréts judiciaires aient été publiés, la
police avait légalement le droit d’enregistrer une conversation
sur une ligne terrestre a condition qu’une des parties a cette
conversation I’y autorise. Les tribunaux ont ensuite décidé que
cela était illégal, mais je vois que I’on voudrait autoriser a
nouveau ce genre d’activité par le truchement de ce projet de loi. Si
tel est le cas, comment pouvez-vous étre sfir que les tribunaux ne
décideront pas a nouveau que cela est illégal?

M. Roy: Cela nous raméne a ce que nous avions envisagé
comme étant la premiére étape de cet exposé, ¢’est-a—dire une
explication de I'arrét de la Cour supréme, dans I’affaire Duarte,
qui a été publié en janvier 1990. En résumé, la Cour supréme a
statué dans cette affaire que, lorsque I'Etat est impliqué dans une
interception de cette nature, il al’obligation, aux termes de I’article 8
de la Charte des droits et libertés, de protéger le droit 2 la vie privée
des personnes participant a ce genre de conversation.
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Under the scheme as it is in the Criminal Code right now,
there was nothing illegal that was done by the police in the case
pf Duarte. The law is clear that when one of the persons
involved in the conversation consents, interception can take
place. What they said was that when the state is involved there
is that privacy concem that gets in, and under section 8 of the
ghaner you, the state, must have a warrant. You must go to a
judge, and the judge must be satisfied with some things. Once
that judge is satisfied with some things, you get your warrant, and that
warrant has to be issued prior to the interception taking place. Thatis
what Bill C-109 is trying to provide for.

Mr. Angus: It is just adding in one extra level of protection—

Mr. Roy: Exactly.

so that the information can in fact be used inacourt

Mr. Angus:
of law.

Mr. Roy: In a court of law once intercepted by the police in
those circumstances. It is a touch more complicated in Bill
C-109 because we are also talking in there about what we have
called, in our jargon, the lifeline. That is when policemen or
undercover agents are wearing what is called a body pack, for
instance, and they are taking part in dangerous operations.
There has to be a way for other policemen who are monitoring
the situation to be able to get involved if something is
happening, and we are again providing fora particular regime in Bill
C-109 to deal with that.

When I go back a little bit later to my broad overview of what the
legislation is doing, perhaps I can give you alittle bitmore about that.

Mr. Angus: I suspect most of us won'’t be here for that.

Returing to your last point in terms of the body pack and the
ability to monitor and react, can information obtained through that
transmission be used ina court of law under this bill by itself, ordoes
1ttoo need a warrant prior to the commencement of the transmission
in order for the information to be valid?

Mr. Roy: If you go to proposed section 184.1, which is to be
found at page 3 and then at page 4 of the bill, you will see that
it will be possible for the police to have this information on tape
for a short period of time, and this information will be made
available to a court of law only in specific circumstances, which
are provided in there. | can refer you to the appropriate
Sll.bSection. It is subsection (2). It is inadmissible—that’s Fhe
principle— “‘except for the purposes of proceedings in wh!ch
actual, attempted or threatened bodily harm is alleged, including
proceedings in respect of an application for an authorization under
this Part or in respect of a search warrant. . ."”
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In other words, it has to do with bodily injuries caused to people.
What the bill is providing is basically to tell the police that they can
keep this information only in those circumstances. Other than that,
Proposed subsection (3) says it has to be destroyed-

[Traduction)

Si I'on se fonde sur le Code criminel, la police n’a rien fait
d’illégal dans 1'affaire Duarte. En effet, les dispositions du Code
sont trés claires: si |'une des personnes participant a la
conversation donne son consentement, il peut y avoir
interception. Selon la Cour supréme, lorsque c’est I’Etat qui est
impliqué, il y a un facteur de protection des renseignements
personnels a prendre en considération et, aux termes de I’article
8 de la Charte, I'Etat doit obtenir un mandat. Autrement dit, il
faut expliquer a un juge ce que I'on veut faire et obtenir son accord.
Si le juge est d’accord, il délivre un mandat et celui—ci doit étre
délivré avant que I’interception ne commence. C’est précisément ce
que nous tentons de faire avec le projet de loi C-109.

M. Angus: Il s’agit donc simplement d’ajouter un degré supplé-
mentaire de protection. . .

M. Roy: Exactement.

M. Angus: . . .pour que les renseignements obtenus puissent étre
utilisés dans un proces.

M. Roy: C’est cela. La situation est un peu plus
compliquée parce que nous parlons aussi dans le projet de loi de
ce que nous appelons, dans notre jargon, une ligne de
sauvetage. II s’agit du cas ol des policiers ou des agents secrets
portent un appareil de communication, dissimulé dans leurs
vétements, par exemple, pendant une opération dangereuse. Il
faut que les autres policiers qui surveillent I'opération puissent
intervenir §’il y a un probléme, et c’est également ce que nous
envisageons dans le projet de loi C-109, dans le cadre d’un régime
spécial.

Je pourrais, si vous le voulez, vous donner un peu plus de
précisions a ce sujet quand je reviendrai tout a |"heure sur mon apergu
général du projet de loi.

M. Angus: Je soupgonne fort que |a plupart d’entre nous ne seront
plus ici pour vous entendre.

Revenons 2 ce que vous venez de dire au sujet des appareils de
communication dissimulés dans les vétements d’un policier, par
exemple. Les renseignements recueillis au moyen de ces appareils
seraient-ils admissibles en cour, aux termes de ce projet de loi? Ou
faudrait—il avoir obtenu un mandat pour qu’ils soient admissibles?

M. Roy: Si vous lisez 'article 184.1, vous verrez qu'il est
possible a la police de conserver ces renseignements sur bande
magnétique pendant une période assez courte, et que ces
renseignements ne peuvent étre mis a la disposition d’un
tribunal que dans des circonstances trés précises, qui sont
indiquées. Voyez par exemple le paragraphe (2) ou il est dit que
ces renseignements sont inadmissibles en preuve—c’est le
principe  général—«sauf  dans les procédures relatives a
I'infliction de lésions corporelles ou a la tentative ou menace d’une
telle infliction, notamment ceux qui se rapportent a une demande
d'autorisation visée par la présente partie, un mandat de perquisition
ou un mandat d’arrestation. . .»

Autrement dit, il faut qu’il y ait des Iésions corporelles. C’est
seulement dans ces circonstances, selon le projet de loi, que la police
peut conserver ces renseignements. Sinon, ils doivent étre détruits,

selon le paragraphe (3).
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Mr. Angus: You can’t use it for additional proof on a drug bust—

Mr. Roy: Absolutely not.
Mr. Angus: —or procurement, or anything like that.
Mr. Roy: No.

Mr. Bobiasz: I wish to mention one point, though, because some
people have been a little bit confused. What is quite permissible,
however, isevidenceavailabledirectly from the undercoveroperative
in the transaction.

Mr. Angus: In the transaction or the transmission?

Mr. Bobiasz: The transaction. The situationthat we’re hypothesiz-
ing is an undercover operative ina potentially dangerous situation. In
order to protect that person we’ve provided for the electronic lifeline.
There are limitations placed on the use of information received
through the electronic lifeline.

Mr. Angus: Right.

Mr. Bobiasz: However, whatever transactions the undercover
operative is privy to, he’s involved in the drug transaction itself, and
overhears something, that is admissible evidence, subject to—

Mr. Angus: Other rules of fairness.
Mr. Bobiasz: Yes.

Mr. Roy: In other words, you cannot use the tape, but you can use
the operative testifying in a court of law saying here is what took
place. But the tape has been destroyed already. There is nothing that
can be done about that.

Mr. Nicholson: Mr., Chairman, earlier the witnesses said
they were going to give an overview of the whole area of
electronic surveillance. Most of the discussion has been on how
it affects the Radiocommunication Act. My questions have to do
with that, or perhaps my questions may be answered if we get the
overview now. We’ve been here well over an hour and a half. Can we
get into that now? I would like to have a bit of an overview while we
still have the witnesses.

The Chairman: Is it agreeable to allow the witnesses to wrap up
with the overview, which is what I think they wanted to begin with
anyway? Is that correct?

Mr. Roy: That’s exactly right, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Then were right back to the beginning.

Mr. Roy: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to invite
Mr. Dambrot to join us at the table. Mr. Dambrot is a senior
general counsel with our department. He’s also very
knowledgeable about practicalities, being himself a litigator, and
he was involved in the development of the policies underlying Bill
C-109. If you have questions that have to do more with how it’s going
to be applied in real life and what’s going on out there, Mr. Dambrot
is available to answer them.

You have also heard from Mr. Bobiasz, who was able to use his
skills developed as a professor of law in explaining what I think is a
very difficult and technical area of the law. Actually, Mr. Chairman,
the area which this committee is going totackle is probably one of the
most difficult that we have in our Criminal Code.

[Transiation]

M. Angus: On nc peut s’en servir pour donner des preuves
supplémentaires dans une affaire de drogue. . .

M. Roy: Absolument pas.
M. Angus: . . .par exemple.
M. Roy: Non.

M. Bobiasz: Je tiens toutefois a apporter une précision. Les
preuves obtenues par I’agent secret, pendant la transaction, restent
parfaitement admissibles en droit.

M. Angus: Pendant la transaction ou la transmission?

M. Bobiasz: Dans la situation que nous envisageons, |’agent
secret est dans une situation dangereuse. Afin de le protéger, nous lui
donnons une ligne de sauvetage électronique. Par contre, il y a des
limites quant a I'utilisation des renseignements recueillis par cette
ligne de sauvetage électronique.

M. Angus: Bien.

M. Bobiasz: Cela dit, si I’agent obtient certains renseignements
pendant la transaction elle-méme, par exemple s'il entend une
conversation entre les personnes qui se passent de la drogue, la
conversation recueillie sera admissible en preuve, sous réserve. . .

M. Angus: Des autres régles de justice.
M. Bobiasz: C’est cela.

M. Roy: Autrement dit, vous ne pouvez pas utiliser la bande
magnétique mais vous pouvez faire comparaitre |’agent secret pour
lui faire dire devant le tribunal ce qui s est passé. Pour ce qui est de la
bande, elle aura déja ét€ détruite. Il n’y a rien que 1’on puisse y faire.

M. Nicholson: Monsieur le président, les témoins ont dit
tout & I'heure qu'ils allaient nous donner un apercu de toute la
question de la surveillance électronique. Jusqu'a présent, la
discussion a porté sur I'incidence de ce projet de loi sur la Loi
sur la radiocommunication. Comme mes questions concernent la
surveillance €lectronique, peut-&tre pourrions—nous avoir cetapergu
maintenant? Cela fait plus d’une heure et demie que nous parlons des
radiocommunications. Pourrions-nous donc changer de sujet pen-
dant quelques instants?

Le président: Etes—vous d’accord pour que les témoins terminent

leur exposé sur la surveillance électronique, puisque ¢’est de toute
2 s ,: . . -

fagon cequ’ils avaientI'intention de faire dés le départ, n’est—ce pas?

M. Roy: Absolument. Vous avez parfaitement raison, monsieur le
président.

Le président: Revenons donc au début.

M. Roy: Merci, monsieur le président. J'invite monsicur
Dambrot & se joindre a nous. M. Dambrot est conseiller
juridique principal de notre ministére. Etant avocat, il connait
trés bien les détails pratiques du projet de loi, et il a participé a
I'élaboration des politiques dont s’inspire le projet de loi C-109. Si
vous avez des questions a poser au sujet de I"application concréte du
projet de loi, il est I'homme qui pourra vous répondre.

Vous avez déja entendu M. Bobiasz, qui vous a expliqué que nous
traitons ici d’un aspect tres délicat et trés technique du droit, aspect
qu’il connait cependant trés bien car il a enseigné le droit. En fait,
monsieur le président, le domaine que nous allons aborder mainte-
nant est sans doute I'un des plus difficiles du Code criminel.
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We thought that it would be useful to the members of the
committee to have a technical briefing on, first, part VI, which is the
part we 'retalking about, electronic surveillance, sothat you can better
understand the changes that are proposed by the government in Bill
C-109, and hopefully you will agree with the government that this is
something that should be done and be made law.

Part VI became law in 1974 at a time when there was
obviously no Charter of Rights and Freedoms. Parliament
thought at the time that there had to be some privacy concerns
that had to be protected. As Mr. Thacker was saying a little bit
earlier, it was decided at the time that those conversations that were
using telephones, as they were then known, should be protected. We
should not be able, as Canadians, to intercept them, unless we had the
authorization of a court to do so. This is what part VI of the Criminal
Code is doing.
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In order to better understand what this is all about, I think you have
to refer first and foremost to two definitions which are to be found in
section 183 of the act. They have to do with two terms of art. Those
are the expression *‘private communication’’ and the word *‘inter-
cept.”’

A private communication is defined in the act. I think it's
important that you refer to the terms that are being used,
because perhaps they do not mean what you and I would give in
terms of a definition if we were talking as pure laymen. The
code provides that it’s a private communication when you have an
oral communication or any telecommunication made under circum-
stances in which it is reasonable for the originator thereof to expect
that it will not be intercepted by any person. This is the test that we
have.

Thatis why, to go back to what Mr. Angus was suggesting in terms
of a hypothesis earlier this afternoon, there is nothing illegal in the
Criminal Code in overhearing what is going on at the next table if
you’re in a restaurant, or something of that nature. This may very well
be a private communication like you and I mean thatto be, but itis not
in terms of the Criminal Code a ‘‘private communication.””

What also is provided in the code is that you are committing an
offence only if you're intercepting a private communication. The
word *‘intercept’’ also has its own definition. It says that it includes
“listen to, record, or acquire a communication, or the substance,
meaning or purport of that communication.’’ That is what intercept-
ing a communication means according to part VI.

What Parliament did 20 years ago was to say, basically, that
when you are intercepting a private communication—ggam as
those terms are defined in the code—you are committing an
offence. That’s the principle. You start with that. Exceptions are
provided. They are provided in subsection 184.(2), and for the
purpose of our discussion this afternoon I think we need to go.back
only to two of those exceptions. One is if you have obtained prior to
the interception an authorization to that effect. The other exception
thatis provided by law is that one of the parties tothe conversation has
consented to the interception that is taking place.

[Traduction)

Nousavons pensé qu'il serait utile aux membres du comité d’avoir
unexposé technique surlapartie VI, 1asurveillance électronique, afin
de mieux comprendre les changements proposés par le gouverne-
ment dans le projet de loi C-109. J’espére que vous conviendrez,
comme le gouvernement, que ¢’est un aspect du Code criminel qu'’il
convient de réformer.

La partic VI est entrée en vigueur en 1974, lorsqu’il n’y
avait évidemment pas encore de charte des droits et libertés. A
I'époque, le législateur avait pensé qu’il y avait certaines
questions de protection de la vie privée dont il fallait tenir
compte. Comme le disait M. Thacker il y a quelques instants, il avait
décidé qu’il fallait protéger le caractére privé des conversations
téléphoniques. Autrement dit, personne ne devrait avoir le droit
d’intercepter les conversations téléphoniques sans autorisation judi-
ciaire. C’est la ce que dit la partie VI du Code criminel.

Pour mieux comprendre de quoi il s’agit, je crois qu’il convient de
commencer par les définitions qui figurent a I’article 183 de la loi.
Vous y trouverez en effet deux notions trés importantes dans ce
contexte, celles de «communication privée» et «d’interception».

On trouve dans la loi une définition des communications
privées. Je crois qu'il est important d’en tenir compte car cette
définition ne correspond pas nécessairement a celle que nous
pourrions en donner dans la vie courante. Le code dispose
qu’une communication est privée lorsqu’il s’agit d’'une communica-
tion orale ou d’une télécommunication quelconque s’il s’agit de
circonstances dans lesquelles il est raisonnable que son auteur
s’attende a ce qu’clle ne soit interceptée par personne. Voila donc le
principe essentiel.

Voila pourquoi aussi, pour en revenir a ce que disait M. Angus cet
aprés—midi, il n’y a rien d’illégal, d’aprés le Code criminel, a
intercepter oralement une conversation qui se déroule i une table
voisine de la votre dans unrestaurant, parexemple. Il s agit peut—étre
bien lad’une conversation privée au sensoll vous et moi I’entendons,
mais ce n’est pas une «communication privée» au sens du Code
criminel.

Le Code dispose égalementque |I'on ne commet une infraction que
si I’on intercepte une conversation privée. Or, la notion d'intercep-
tion est également définie dans le Code criminel, ou il est dit que cela
s’entend notamment du fait «d’écouter, d’enregistrer ou de prendre
volontairement connaissance d’une communication ou de sa sub-
stance, son sens ou son objet». C'est 1a ce qu'on entend par
intercepter une communication, dans la partie VI.

Ce qu'a dit le législateur il y a 20 ans, c’est qu'intercepter
une communication privée—conformément aux définitions du
Code criminel—constitue une infraction. Voila le principe
fondamental. 11 y a ensuite des exceptions, que 1'on trouve au
paragraphe 184.(2). Pour notre discussion de cet aprés-midi, nous ne
devons enretenir que deux. La premicre concerne le cas ol vous avez
obtenu une autorisation avantd’intercepter lacommunication privée.
La deuxiéme concerne le cas ou I'une des parties a la conversation a
consenti a ce que celle—ci soit interceptée.
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That explains, as I was telling Mr. Angus a few seconds ago, why,
in the case of Duarte, there was nothing illegal that was taking place
because the policeman who was wearing the body pack, in the case
of Duarte, was simply not committing an offence. Obviously he had
previously given his consent to the interception taking place.

That also explains why, prior to Duarte, the police were able to
wear those body packs when they were conducting dangerous
operations. That was an exception provided by law in the Criminal
Code.

What has happened since Duarte is that the Supreme Court
has said, “‘If you are intercepting’’—again using the
definition that is in the code—‘‘one of those
communications, you, the state, have a duty to preserve the
privacy of someone, and you do that by getting an authorization from
a judge"’, which is what we’re providing for in Bill C-109. That was
originally the scheme, subsection 184.2 providing for the exception.

The following sections in part VI deal with how you get an
authorization. Again you have to appreciate that what we were doing
in the code at the time was making sure that in those special
circumstances where there is to be an interception—and there were
exceptions provided to cover other situations—you need to have a
particular kind of authorization.

What the law provided, and still provides, is that first the
application must be made by an agent of the Attoney General
specially designated as such, orin the case of the federal government,
designated by the Solicitor General. Generally speaking it isa crown
prosecutor of some cxperience who is designated as such.

You need to go before a judge of a superior court, or a judge as
designated in section 552 of the Criminal Code. What does that mean?
That means basically in 9 out of the 10 provinces, judges appointed
by the federal government, section 96 judges, as we call them in our
jargon.
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In the case of Quebec it is broader, in the sense that the
code provides that you can go to a judge of the Cour de
Québec, and those judges are appointed by the provincial
government. In my home province we’ve been doing that for 20
years. Most of the authorizations that we get for electronic surveil-
lance are obtained before judges of that court. In the other provinces
it was county court judges in the old days, district court judges and
superior court judges who were designated to issue those authoriza-
tions.

In order to get an authorization the law provided that you had to
explain to the judge why you needed to have that authorization, what
other investigative techniques you could have used, and why hadn’t
you used them. In other words, was that the last resort, and you had
to give the judge a good explanation of why you needed to have this
particular technique in order to make your investigation go forward.

The law also made sure that once you had an authorization and
once you had conducted anumber of interceptions, this had to remain
secret, given the nature of what we're talking about. This was why in
section 187 of the code there was a strict procedure to deal with the
information that had been obtained, as well as the authorization that
had been granted by a judge.

[Translation)

Voila pourquoi, comme je le disais @ M. Angus il y a un instant, le
policier qui a intercepté une communication dans I'affaire Duarten’a
rien faitd’illégal. Eneffet,ilavaitmanifestementconsenti auparavant
a ce que la conversation soit interceptée.

Voila aussi pourquoi, avant I’arrét Duarte, la police pouvait
équiper ses membres d’appareils réels de communication secrets
lorsqu’elle menait une opération dangereuse. C’était |a une exception
prévue dans le Code criminel.

Ce qui est arrivé depuis I'arrét Duarte, c’est que la Cour
supréme a dit que, si I'Etat veut intercepter—selon la définition
du Code—une communication, il doit protéger la vie privée de
'autre partie, ¢’est-a—dire obtenir I’autorisation d'un juge. C’est
précisément ce que nous confirmons dans le projet de loi C—109. Cela
est conforme a ce qui avait été prévu a ’origine parmi les exceptions
figurant au paragraphe 184(2).

Les articles suivants de la partie VI conservent la maniére dont on
doit obtenir I"autorisation. Comprenez bien que ce que voulait faire
le législateur, & I'époque, ¢’¢était de s’assurer que |'on obtienne une
autorisation particuli¢re dans les cas spéciaux ol une communication
devaitétre interceptée, conformément aux exceptions prévues dans la
loi.

Premiérement, il faut que la demande soit formulée par un
représentant du Procureur général spécialement désigné aceteffetou,
dans le cas du gouvernement fédéral, désigné par le Solliciteur
général. En régle générale, il s’agit d’un procureur de la Couronne
ayant une certaine expérience de ces questions.

I1 faut ensuite s’adresser a un juge d’une cour supéricure ou a une
juge désigné al’article 552 du Code criminel. Qu’est—ce que cela veut
dire? Essentiellement, dans neuf provinces sur dix, il faut s’adresser
aun juge nommé par le gouvernement fédéral, ¢ ‘est-a-dire a un juge
de I'article 96, comme nous disons dans notre jargon.

Au Québec, c’est un peu différent car le code permet de
s’adresser 4 un juge de la cour du Québec, juge qui a été
nommé par le gouvernement provincial. C'est ce que nous
faisons depuis 20 ans dans la province d’origine. La plupart des
autorisations de surveillance électronique sont délivrées par des juges
de cette cour. Dans les autres provinces, elles I’étaient par des juges
d’une cour de comté, autrefois, et aujourd’hui par des juges des cours
de districts et des cours supéricures qui ont été désignées pour
délivrer ces autorisations.

Troisi¢mement, pour obtenir une autorisation, il faut, aux termes
de laloi, expliquer ses motifs au juge et dire quelles autres méthodes
d’enquéte on aurait pu utiliser, et pourquoi on ne les a pas utilisées.
Autrement dit, I"interception constitue-t—elle le demier recours? Il
faut donc expliquer au juge pourquoi on doit avoir recours a cette
technique pour faire avancer I'enquéte.

Finalement, lorsqu’on a obtenu I"autorisation et qu’on a effectué
les interceptions, celles—i doivent rester secrétes, étant donné la
nature de ce dont on parle. Voila pourquoi on trouve a article 187 du
code une procédure trés rigoureuse concernant |'utilisation des
renseignements recucillisde cette maniére, ainsi quede|’autorisation
qui a été accordée par le juge.
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There have been, over the years, all sorts of problems that have
developed around this particular procedure, and again in Bill C-109
we are trying to provide for a procedure to deal with the issue of how
you’re going to open ‘‘the sealed packet™’.

Those of you who have read cases in that field will see that over the
years there have been all sorts of rulings that have come down. The
Supreme Court of Canada in the case of Garofoli has given a good
idea to Canadians and to lawmakers, I submit to you, of how this
should be done, and we have tried in the legislation to codify the way
it has been suggested that these hearings should be held.

When you go further into part VI you will also see that at
section 189 there is what we call, again in our jargon, the
exclusionary rule, which, according to what we have in the code
now, is to the effect that evidence obtained is not admissible
unless. . . Again there are some exceptions provided, but basically
there has to be one of two things, namely, the authorization that was
obtained was lawful, or one of the persons who was part of the
conversation had given his consent to that being used.

Why did we have that in 19742 Well, in 1974 the rule in Canada
was that evidence gathered by the police, by the authorities generally
speaking, was admissible in a court of law irrespective of how it had
been done. That was the case of Wray in the Supreme Court of
Canada. I think it was in 1971.

Parliament decided that if you are going to give some teeth to part
VI and really protect the privacy of Canadians and others who are in
Canada, you need to have that exclusionary rule.

What has happened since then has been the advent of the
Charter of Rights and Freedoms, and you now have an
exclusionary rule which is already in our Constitution. Again, in
the legislation which you will be looking at more closely in the
days to come, you will see that there is a provision in there
basically to take out ~f the code the exclusionary rule that you
have now, to be replaced by the one that is already in the
Constitution, and that is to be found in section 24. Evidence is
going to be excluded if it would bring the administration of justice
into disrepute.

The policy consideration undemeath that is the following. If it is
good for other types of evidence, it is felt there is no reason why we
should have two tests made applicable. Actuaily, that has made the
development of the law in this field extremely complicated.

We think — it will be for you to agree or disagree with lhatpositipn.
but this is presented to you— that the test that is now in subsection
242 of the Charter of Rights and Freedoms should be made
applicable to those situations as it is for other types of searches and
seizures, all of this being governed by sections 8 and 24 of the Charter
of Rights and Freedoms.
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I can go very briefly over what Bill C-109 is actually doi‘ng, after
having given you an overview of what part V1 is. [know that it’sa f?st
overview, but hopefully it will give you an idea of where we're
coming from, because for the changes thatare in Bill C-109 you have
to understand them as being part of part VI.

[Traduction]

Au cours des années, toutes sortes de problémes ont surgi au sujet
de cette procédure et, encore une fois, nous tentons d'établir dans le
projet de loi C-109 une procédure pertinente pour résoudre le
probléeme de I"ouverture du «paquet scellé».

Si vous vous intéressez a ces questions. vous savez sans doute
qu’il y a eu plusieurs arréts judiciaires a ce sujet au cours des années.
La Cour supréme du Canada, dans | "affaire Garofoli. a bicn expliqué
ce qu’il faut faire, et nous nous sommes efforcés de codifier cette
procédure dans la loi.

Si vous poursuivez I'examen de la partic VI, vous trouverez
aussi, a I'article 189, ce que nous appelons dans notre jargon la
regle de P'exclusion, c'est-a—dire Ja régle stipulant que les
preuves obtenues ne sont pas admissibles si certaines conditions
ne sont pasrespectées. Encore une fois. il y a des exceptions a ce sujet
mais les conditions fondamentales sont au nombre de deux: que
I’autorisation obtenue ait €€ I¢gale, et que I'une des personncs ayant
participé a la conversation ait donné son consentement a ce que la
conversation soit utilisée.

Pourquoi a-t-on prévu cela en 197472 C’est parce que. a l'époque,
la régle en vigueur au Canada était que la preuve obtenue par la
police, ou par les autorités, de manicére géncrale, Ctait toujours
admissible en preuve, quelle que soit la manic¢re dont clle ait été
obtenue. Cela résultait de I’arrét de la Cour supréme dans 1'affaire
Wray, en 1971.

Lorsque le Iégislateur a adopt¢ la partie VI, il adécidé d’y intégrer
cette régle d’exclusion pour protéger comme il se doit la vie privée
des citoyens.

Depuis lors, la Charte des droits ct libertés est entrée en
vigueur et nous avons donc maintenant une régle de I’exclusion
qui se trouve déja dans notre Constitution. Dans le projet de loi
que vous examinerez plus attentivement dans les jours qui
viennent, vous verrez qu'il y a une disposition visant
essentiellement & abolir du code la régle d'exclusion qui s’y
trouve maintenant, afin de la remplacer par celle qui se trouve
déja dans la Constitution, & l'article 24. Autrement dit, les
renseignements ne seront pas admis commec preuves s'ils sont
susceptibles de déconsidérer 1'administration de la justice.

L’argument des services de police a ce sujet est le suivant: si cette
seule régle suffit pour les autres types de preuves, il n’y a aucune
raison d’en ajouter une autre dans certains cas. De fait, en raison de la
Charte, 1a formulation des textes de loi dans ce domaine est devenue
extrémement compliquée.

Nous croyons—mais il vous appartiendra de dire si vous étes
d’accord ou non avec ce que nous proposons—que la garantie
figurant actuellement au paragraphe 24.2 de la Charte des droits et
libertés devrait s’appliquer aux situations que nous envisageons, tout
comme elle s’ applique aux autres types de fouilles et de saisies, sous
réserve dans tous les cas de I'application des articles 8 et 24 de la
Charte des droits et libertés.

Je vais vous expliquer trés bricvement ce que nous envisageons
dans le projet de loi C—109. apres cette présentation tres rapide de la
partic V1. Je sais que c’est une présentation trés sommaire, mais
j’espére qu'elle vous donnera une idée du contexte dans lequel
s’inscrivent les changements proposés dans le projet de loi C—109.
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Actually what Mr. Bobiasz was explaining a little bit earlier
about cell phones, there is the fact that on the one hand you
have those prohibitions that are already in the code, and we’re
trying to parallel these with respect to cell phones. That's the
only way of explaining what has been done with respect to cell
phones— going back to the code, seeing what the code is doing, and
then saying, ‘‘Purely and simply, we're trying to parallel this in the
case of cellular phones™’.

Let me go over very briefly what Bill C-109 is doing on the
criminal side, and we will then be in a position, if that is fine with the
members of this committee and you, Mr. Chairman, to answer your
questions. The other option is for you to ask a few questions on what
part VIis already doing, and I can then go on and discuss Bill C—109
a little bit more. I’'m in your hands.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Roy. We have a time problem
here. It’s now 5:20 p.m. Normally this committee would have
adjourned at 5 p.m. I’m in the hands of the committee members. Do
you want to proceed further today? Do you want to invite the
witnesses back to our next meeting? The next meeting is scheduled
for Tuesday, and we have already invited other witnesses to appear at
that time.

Mr. Thacker: Mr. Chairman, I speak for myself. I think the
briefing today has been superb, and I don't need any more than we’ve
got, until we've heard some other witnesses. It may be more
appropriate to have them back later, as we might do with the minister,
when we know more about it from the special interests’ points of
view.,

Mr. Lee: Personally, I think I’ve got a rough grasp of the bill, and
we could dispense with them. But there may be other members, my
colleague Russell MacLellan, who is not here—

Mrs. Finestone: The area wentbeyond my competence or interest.

Mr. Lee: I think Mr. Thacker’s suggestion is a good one.

The Chairman: I think it’s a good idea to keep in mind that we
could recall the witnesses at a latertime for furtherclarification. Is that
agreeable?

Mr. Nicholson: That sounds reasonable.

M. Lee: Mr. Chairman, there were a couple of questions directed
to Department of Communications officials on which they may want
to get back to us in writing before the end of the exercise.

The Chairman: [ wishtothank all witnesses forcoming today and
helping to enlighten us on a rather complicated piece of legislation.
Atleast parts of itare complicated. We may be in touch with you again
for further clarification.

The committee is adjourned to the call of the chair.

[Translation]

En fait, comme I'expliquait M. Bobiasz tout a I’heure, en
parlant des téléphones cellulaires, nous voulons faire figurer
dans le projet de loi C-109 les interdictions qui figurent déja
dans le Code criminel. C’est la seule fagon d’expliquer ce qui
estproposé ausujetdes téléphones cellulaires. Aprésavoiranalysé les
dispositions du Code criminel, nous avons décidé, purement et
simplement, de définir desdispositions paralleles pour les téléphones
cellulaires.

Je vais vous indiquer trés brievement ce que propose le projet de
loi C-109, sur le plan pénal, et nous pourrons cnsuite répondre i vos
question, monsieur le président. Par contre, si vous le voulez, nous
pouvons déja répondre a quelques questions sur les dispositions dc la
partie VI, et nous donnerons ensuitc des précisions sur les disposi-
tions du projet de loi C-109. A vous de décider.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Roy. Le probléme que nous avons
maintenant estqu’il 17h20. Normalement, nous levons la séancea 17
heures. Je vais demander aux membres du comité s'ils veulent
prolonger la séance ou s’ils veulent que les témoins revicnnent a la
prochaine réunion, qui est prévue pour mardi. Je dois dire que nous
avions déja invité d’autres témoins pour ce jour-1a.

M. Thacker: Pour ma part, monsicur le président, je dois dire que
nous avons regu des renseignements extrémement complets et qu’il
ne me parait pas nécessaire, pour le moment, d’en obtenir d'autres.
Peut—¢tre serait—il préférable de convoquer a nouveau les témoins
plus tard, et peut—étre de convoquer aussi lc ministre, lorsque nous
zliu.rons entendu des témoins nous dire ce qu’ils pensent du projet de
oi.

M. Lee: Pour ma part, je dois dire que je comprends assez bicn le
projet de loi et que je n’ai pas besoin d'autres explications pour le
moment. Il y a peut-étre d’autres membres du comité, comme M.
Russell MacLellan, mon collégue, qui n’est pas ici aujourd hui. . .

Mme Finestone: Tout cela dépassait ma compétence, ou mon
intérét.

M. Lee: J’accepte la proposition de M. Thacker.

Le président: De toute fagon, nous pouvons tou jours convoquer
@ nouveau les témoins si nous avons besoin d'autres précisions.
Etes—vous d’accord?

M. Nicholson: Ca me parait raisonnablc.

M.‘ Lee: Je rappelle, monsicur le président, qu’il y avait quelqucs
questions au sujetdesquelles le Ministére des communications devait
vous adresser une réponse par écrit. J'espére bien quc I'onne [’a pas
oublié.

Le président: Je remercie tous les témoins d’étre venus
aujourd’hui devant le comité donner des renscignements trés utiles
surun projetde loi qui est relativement compliqué. Nous reprendrons
peut-€tre contactavec voussinous avons besoin d”autres éclaircisse-
ments.

La séance est levée.




Bawiale P10 0 e _ ,
e 3 1.

b Cnmalitee oa h R LA R e e e e i e

L B

| o s e . . 4 ) o L Tk ¥
|

o o
| = RN RaLine




MAIL> POSTE

Canada Post Corporation/Sociéié canadicnne des postes

Postage paid Port paye
Lettermail Poste—lettre
K1A 0S9
Ottawa

If undelivered, return COVER ONLY to:
Canada Communication Group — Publishing
45 Sacré~Coeur Boulevard,

Hull, Québec, Canada, K1A 0S9

En cas de non -~ livraison,

retourner cette COUVERTURE SEULEMENT a:
Groupe Communication Canada — Edition
45 boulevard Sacré-Coeur,

Hull, Québec, Canada, K1A 0S9

WITNESSES

From the Department of Communications:

Elizabeth Gilhooly, General Counsel, Director, Legal Services;
Robert W. Jones, Director, General, Radio Regulatory Branch;

Darius Breau, Acting Manager, Operational Policies, Procedures
& Programs, Spectrum Management Operations Directorate,
Radio Regulatory Branch.

From the Department of Justice:

Michael Dambrot, Senior General Counsel, National Strategy for
Drug Prosecution;

Yvon Roy, General Counsel;

F. Bobiasz, Counsel.

TEMOINS

Du ministére des Communications:

Elizabeth Gilhooly, avocate générale, directrice, Services juridi-
ques;

Robert W.Jones, directeur général, Réglementationdes radiocom-
munications;

Darius Breau, gestionnaire intérimaire, Division des politiques,
desprocédures etdes programmes (opérationnels), Exploitation

de la gestion du spectre, Réglementation des radiocommunica-
tions.

Du ministére de la Justice:

Michael Dambrot, avocatgénéral principal, Stratégie nationale des
poursuites en matiére de drogue;

Yvon Roy, avocat général;

F. Bobiasz, conseiller juridique.

Available from Canada Communication Group — Publishing,
Supply and Services Canada, Ottawa, Canada K1A 059

En vente: Groupe Communication Canada — Edition,
Approvisionnements et Services Canada, Ottawa, Canada K1A 0S89



HOUSE OF COMMONS
Issue No. 2
Tuesday, March 23, 1993

Chairman: Derek Blackbum

CHAMBRE DES COMMUNES
Fascicule n® 2

Le mardi 23 mars 1993
Président: Derek Blackburn

Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of the Legislative
Committee on

BILL C-109

An Act to amend the Criminal Code,
the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act
and the Radiocommunication Act

Procés—verbaux et témoignages du Comité législatif sur le

PROJET DE LOI C-109

Loi modifiant le Code criminel,

la Loi sur la responsabilité civile de
I’Etat et le contentieux administratif
et la Loi sur la radiocommunication

RESPECTING: CONCERNANT:
Order of Reference Ordre de renvoi
WITNESSES: TEMOINS:

(See back cover)

Third Session of the Thirty—fourth Parliament,
1991-92-93

(Voir a I’endos)

Troisiéme session de la trente—quatriéme législature,
1991-1992-1993

e —

25493



LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON BILL C-109

Chairman: Derek Blackbum

Members

Sheila Finestone
Bob Homer

Bob Nicholson
George Rideout
Jacques Tétreault
Blaine Thacker
Scott Thorkelson
Ian Waddell —(8)

(Quorum 5)
Marie Louise Paradis

Clerk of the Committee
Pursuant to Standing Order 114(3):
On Monday, March 22, 1993:
Ian Waddell replaced Iain Angus;

George Rideout replaced Derek Lee.

Published under authority of the Speaker of the

House of Commons by the Queen’s Printer for Canada.

COMITE LEGISLATIF SUR LE PROJET DE LOI C-109
Président: Derek Blackbum

Membres

Sheila Finestone
Bob Homer

Bob Nicholson
George Rideout
Jacques Tétreault
Blaine Thacker
Scott Thorkelson
Tan Waddell —(8)

(Quorum 5)
La greffiére du Comité

Marie Louise Paradis
Conformément 2 I'article 114(3) du Réglement:
Le lundi 22 mars 1993:
Ian Waddell remplace Iain Angus;

George Rideout remplace Derek Lee.

Publié en conformité de I’autorité du Président de la Chambre
des communes par I'Imprimeur de la Reine pour le Canada.

Available from Canada Communication Group — Publishing,
Supply and Services Canada, Ottawa, Canada K1A 089

En vente: Groupe Communication Canada — Edition,
Approvisionnements et Services Canada, Ottawa, Canada K1A 059



23-3-1993 Projet de loi C-109 253
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL
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[Text] |Traduction]

The Legislative Committee on BillC-109, An Acttoamendthe
Criminal Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings Act and the
Radiocommunication Act, met at 3.35 o’clock p.m. this day, in
Room 308, West Block, the Chairman, Derek Blackburn, presid-
ing.

Members of the Committtee present: Sheila Finestone, Bob
Horner, Rob Nicholson, George Rideout, Jacques Tétreault,
Blaine Thacker and Tan Waddell.

In attendance: From the Legislative Counsel Office: Diane
McMurray, Legislative Counsel. Fromthe Research Branchofthe
Library of Parliament: Mollie Dunsmuir, Research Officer.

Witnesses: From the Office of the Information and Privacy
Commissioners of Canada: Bruce Phillips, Privacy
Commissioner; Julien Delisle, Executive Director; Gerard
vanBerkle, General Counsel. From Mobility Canada and for
Bell Cellular: Peter Barnes, Vice President, Government &
Regulatory Affairs; LindaOliver, National Director, Government
& Regulatory Affairs. From Rogers Cantel Inc.: George Fierhel-
ler,Chairman, Chief Executive Officer; Mr.Katz, Vice-President,
Government Relations.

The Committee resumed consideration of its Order of Refer-
encedated Monday, March 8, 1993, relating to Bill C-109, An Act
toamendthe Criminal Code, the Crown Liability and Proceedings
Actandthe Radiocommunication Act(SeeMinutes of Proceedings
and Evidence, Monday, March 15, 1993, Issue No. 1)

Bruce Phillips made a short opening comment and answered
questions.

Peter Barnes made an opening statement and answered ques-
tions.

George Fierheller made an opening statement and answered
questions.

On motion of Sheila Linestone, it was agreed, — That a list of
questions be sent to the Department of Communications.

On motion of Bob Horner, it was agreed, — That the Chairman
be authorized to reimburse reasonable travelling and living
expenses for two witnesses from the Canadian Association of
lChiefs of Police who will be appearing on Thursday, March 25,

993,

o At4.500'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call ofthe
hair.

Marie Louise Paradis

Clerk of the Commitlee

Le Comité législatif chargé du projet de loi C-109, Loi
modifiant le Code criminel, la Loi sur la responsabilité civile de
I ElatetleconlenueuxadmmlstranfellaLo:surlaradlocommum-
cation,seréunita 15 h 35,danslasalle 308 de 1’édifice de I’ Ouest,
sous la présidence de Derek Blacburn (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Sheila Finestone, Bob Horner,
Bob Nicholson, George Rideout, Jacques Tétrecault, Blaine
Thacker et Ian Waddell.

Aussi présentes: Du Bureau des conseillers législatifs: Diane
McMurray, conseillére législative. Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Mollie Dunsmuir, attachée de recher-
che.

Témoins: Des Commissariats a ['information et a la
protection de la vie privée du Canada: Bruce Phillips,
commissaire a la protection a la vie privée; Julien Delisle,
directeur exécutif, Gerard vanBerkle, avocat général. De
Mobilité Canada et pour Bell Cellulaire: Peter Barnes, vice—prési-
dent, Affaires gouvernementalesetréglementaires; Linda Oliver,
directrice nationale, Affaires gouvernementales et réglemen-
taires. De Rogers Cantel Inc.: George Ferheller, président-direc-
teur général; M. Katz, vice—président, Relations gouvernementa-

lesConformément a son ordre de renvoi du lundi 8 mars 1993, le
Comité reprend I’étude du projet de loi C-109, Loi modifiant le
Code criminel, la Loi sur la responsabilité civile de 1’Etat et le
contentieuxadministratifetlaLoisurlaradiocommunication(voir
les Procés—verbaux et témoignages du lundi 15 mars 1993, fascicule
n2l)s

Bruce Phillips fait un bref commentaire et répond aux ques-
tions.

Peter Barnes fait un exposé et répond aux questions.
George Fierheller fait un exposé et répond aux questions.

Surmotionde SheilaFinestone, il estconvenu, — Qu’une séric
de questions soit soumise au ministére des Communications.

Sur motion de Bob Horner, il est convenu, — Que des frais de
déplacement et de séjour jugés raisonnables soient remboursés
aux deux témoins de ]’ Association canadienne des chefs de police
qui comparaitront le jeudi 25 mars.

A 16 h 50, le Comité sajourne jusqu'a nouvelle convocation
du président.

La greffiere du Comité

Marie Louise Paradis
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[Technical difficulties— Editor)

Mrs. Finestone (Mount Royal): .. .or invade our personal
space in many ways. When this bill and the change to the
Criminal Code as well as the change in the Radio Act was
looked at a little bit more closely, I gave you a call, because I
really thought maybe I'm wrong, but in light of the fact this is not a
telephone, but a radio, in light of what the Wilhelmy affair did in
Quebec, I was really very concerned as to whether ornot we had gone
overboard and whether we had dealt with it in a serious way, firstly.

Secondly, a colleague sitting across from me, Mr. Horner, raised
a very interesting question that I hadn’t thought of. So 1 give it to you
as aquestion. Could a mischievous phone call, deliberately placed on
the airways, affect the stock market, the gold market, the bond
market? Could it cause a panic in industry? Could it cause a buy and
sell move, in your view?

A voice: Or World War [11?

Mrs. Finestone: Well, World War I1I—1I hadn’t gone that far in
my thinking.

A voice: But it’s possible.

Mrs. Finestone: I guess 1 would really like to stop at this point and
ask you, in a quite blunt way, in having taken a serious look at this
legislation, do you think it can set out to do what it is intended to do,
protect the privacy of youand me and everybody else ascitizens using
a cellular telephone?

Mr. Bruce Phillips (Privacy Commissioner): Well, the bill, as we
see it, Mrs. Finestone, essentially seeks to give to cellular telephonic
communication the same legal protection that is now afforded to
wired communications, which are protected by wiretap laws. Since
this material is easily listened to by scanning equipment, the wiretap
solution, of course, was not available.

e [540

So I’m speaking now for other people. It’s just the conclusion I
have drawn. They have seized the only remedy that seemed available
tothem, which was to make the disclosure of intercepted communica-
tions an offence.

At this stage of the game it’s impossible to say how effective it’s
going to be. Itis the first effort to deal with cellular communications.
The degree to which it’s enforceable or is going to be respected is
something [ don’t think I could possibly hazard a guess upon.

Mrs. Finestone: Thank you, Mr. Phillips. You will recall in
the Bill C-62 telecommunications hearings we were told there
are approximately 900,000 scanners out there while there are
over one million cellular radio phones. I don’t care to call them

[Enregistrement électronique)
Le mardi 23 mars 1993

[Difficultés techniques— Editeur)

Mme Finestone (Mont-Royal): .. .ou envahir notre espace
personnel de bien des fagons. Aprés avoir examiné d’un peu
plus prés cette mesure Iégislative, de méme que les
modifications apportées au Code criminel et 4 la Loi sur la
radio, je vous ai t€léphoné, car je pensais vraiment que jc me trompais
peut—¢tre. Etant donné qu’il ne sagit pas d’un téléphone, mais plut6t
d’un appareil radio, et étant donné les répercussions de I’affaire
Wilhelmy au Québec, je me demandais vraiment si nous n’avions pas
dépassé les bornes et surtout si nous avions abordé le probléme avec
tout le sérieux qu’il mérite.

Deuxiémement, I’un des colléguesd’en face, M. Homer, a soulevé
une question trés intéressante qui ne m’était pas venue a |'esprit. Je
vais donc vous poser la question. Est—ce qu'un appel téléphonique
délibérément transmis sur les ondes a des fins malveillantes pourrait
influencer la Bourse, le marché de I'or, le marché des obligations?
Pourrait-il engendrer la panique sur les marchés? Est—ce que cela
pourrait déclencher une multitude de transactions, selon vous?

Une voix: Ou la Troisiéme Guerre mondiale?

Mme Finestone: La Troisi¢me Guerre mondiale—eh bien, je
n’étais pas allée aussi loin dans mes réflexions.

Une voix: Mais c’est possible.

Mme Finestone: Je vais m’arréter ici et vous poser carrément ma
question. Aprésavoirexaminéattentivementcette mesure législative,
pensez—vous qu’elle permettra de faire ce qu'elle est censée faire,
c’est-a—dire protéger notre vie privée, la votre et lamiennc, ainsi que
celle de tous les Canadiens qui utilisent un téléphone cellulaire?

M. Bruce Phillips (commissaire a la protection de la vie
privée): Eh bien, madame Finestone, nous estimons que Ic projet de
loi vise essentiellement a accorder aux communications par télépho-
ne cellulaire la protection juridique dont jouissent actuellement les
communications par cable, qui sont protégées par la législation
relative al’écoute électronique. Etant donné que ces communications
peuvent étre facilement interceptées au moyen d’un balayeur, il
n’était évidemment pas possible d’utiliser comme solution la loi
relative a I’écoute électronique.

Je vous fais simplement part de la conclusion que j’ai tirée de ce
que d’autres ont fait. Ils ont opté pour la seule solution qui leur
semblait possible, c’est-a—dire stipuler que la divulgation des
communications interceptées constitue une infraction.

Pour I'instant, il est impossible de prédire 1'efficacité de cette
mesure. C'est la premiere fois qu’on s’attaque aux problémes des
communications faites par téléphone cellulaire. Je ne pense pas
pouvoirdevinerdans quelle mesure on pourra faire appliquercette loi
ni dans quelle mesure clle sera respectée.

Mme Finestone: Je vous remercie, monsieur Phillips.
Lorsque nous étions saisis du projet de loi C-62, sur les
télécommunications, on nous a dit qu’il existait environ 900 000
balayeurs et plus d’un million de radiotéléphones cellulaires. Je
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telephones because I think the misnomer is creating a great deal of
problem. What goes over twin copper wire is not the same, or even
fibre optic for that matter, as what’s used as bare, unfettered,
unencrypted airwaves.

Given there are 900,000 scanners, which I question, do you
think even trying legally to make the ownership of scanners an
offence could be an area into which we could move? We seemed
to ascertain from the experts who were here that their 900,000
scanners included those in a microwave and those in general
equipment that’s found, and they’re supposed to get back to tell
us. What kind and how many scanners are really capable of
capturing and listening in on a radio telephone. Do you think by
saying the scanner itself is illegal, we could be on the way to doing
something that might cover the twin copper apses?

Mr. Phillips: I have one or two observationsI'dlike tomake in that
respect. First, I share your skepticism about the 900,000 scanners. It
seems hard to get any verification for these numbers. I did read lhg
evidence given before this committee the other day and I noted it
covers a vast variety of pieces of equipment.

The argument was put to me a little while ago that it was not a
practical answer at this time because, so to speak, the horses were
already out of the bam. I'm not impressed particularly by that
argument. I don't see any reason why we should go on letting more
and more horses out of the barn.

We’re all prisoners of the technical experts, Mrs. Finestone,
myself as well as you and others. But I am informed tl_lc new
generation of cellular telephones coming out employs a dlfferent
process, a digital process. It would require a different kind of
scanner to listen in on conversations over the new digital phones, and
it would be possible to make a new start if they were to have another
look at banning digital scanners for the new generation of phones. So
I hope that’s being looked at.

Mrs. Finestone: 1 asked whether or not in this world of
ours, in this universe, the air is free. Therefore, the radio waves
are free. They belong to the people of Canada. Any
government, irrespective of colour, stripe or whatever, has a
responsibility for the interests of its people. In the interests of the
people of Canada—using the free air space that surrounds us—if
you’re going to have a business that will earn money from the use of
this free space, do you not have the obligation to ensure my privacy
and your privacy?

1d like to know whether or not you think it would be a rat!\er
strange view that the people who use the free space h?Vc anobligation
to make sure I’'m protected. If they're going to sell it asa telephone,
then they’re going to sell and protect me. Encrypt, do whatever you
have to do in the hub, the spoke, the cell, and so on.

Mr. Phillips: I'd like to come at thatina slight]yfliffercnl way. As
I'was saying at the outset of this meeting, Mrs. Finestone, cellular
telephones are now becoming as common in everyday personal and
commercial usage as ordinary wired telephones.

[Traduction)

ne veux pas dire que ce sont des téléphones, car le fait d’utiliser ce
nom mal approprié cause beaucoupde problemes. La transmission de
communications par cable a double fil de cuivre, ou méme par fibres
optiques, n’est pas la méme chose que la transmission sur les ondes
libres, sans entrave, sans encodage.

Etant donné qu’il existe 900 000 balayeurs, chiffre que je
mets en doute, pensez—vous que nous pourrions méme essayer
de rendre illégale la possession de balayeurs? Les experts qui
sont venus témoigner nous ont dit qu’il existait 900 000
balayeurs, si I'on compte toutes sortes d’appareils, y compris
ceux qui utilisent les micro—ondes, et ces témoins sont censés
nous dire plus tard quel genre et combien de balayeurs peuvent
vraiment capter les conversations transmises par radiotéléphone.
Pensez-vous que le fait de rendre le balayeur illégal constituerait une
premiére étape vers la protection des conversations transmises
autrement que par cable a double fil de cuivre?

M. Phillips: Je vais faire quelques remarques a ce sujet.
Premiérement, j’ai les mémes doutes que vous au sujet des 900 000
balayeurs. Il semble difficile de vérifier ce chiffre. J'ai lu le compte
rendu des témoignages présentés au comité l'autre jour et j'ai
remarqué qu'il était question d’une trés grande variété d’appareils.

Onm’aobjecté il y aquelque temps que ce n’était pas une solution
pratique en ce moment, car le proverbe le dit, il n’est plus temps de
fermer 1’étable quand les chevaux n'y sont plus. Je n’ai pas été
particuliérement impressionné par cet argument. Je ne vois pas
pourquoi nous devrions continuer de laisser les chevaux sortir.

Nous sommes tous a la merci des spécialistes en
technologie, madame Finestone, mais on m’apprend que la
prochaine génération de téléphones cellulaires utilise un
processus différent, un processus numérigue. Un type différent
de balayeur serait nécessaire pour €couter les conversations transmi-
ses par les nouveaux téléphones numeériques, ¢t il serait possible de
prendre un nouveau départ en examinant la possibilité d'interdire les
balayeurs numériques visant la nouvelle génération de téléphoncs.
Tespeére donc qu’on envisage cette possibilité.

Mme Finestone: J’ai demandé si dans notre monde, dans
notre univers, les ondes étaient bien libres. Si elles le sont, eh
bien, les ondes hertiziennes sont libres également. Elles
appartiennent aux Canadiens. Tous les gouvernements, quelle
que soit leur couleur ou leur affiliation politique, sont tenus de
s’occuper des intéréts de la population. Dans I'intérét des Cana-
diens—qui utilisent I’espace aérien libre qui nous entoure—une
entreprise qui gagnera de I'argent en utilisant cet espace libre
n’a—t-elle pas I’obligation d’assurer la protection de la vie privée et
de la votre?

Je voudrais savoir si vous jugez plut6t étrange I'idée que ceux qui
utilisent I’espace Jibre qui nous entoure ont I'obligation d'assurer la
protection de ma vie privée. S’ils veulent me vendre comme
téléphone un tel appareil, ils doivent assurer la protection de mes
conversations. Il faut encoder les transmissions, ou prendre toute
autre mesure nécessaire au central, & la périphérie, ou encore a la
cellule.

M. Phillips: J’aimerais aborder cette question d’un angle un peu
différent. Comme je I'ai dit au début de la réunion, madame
Finestone, les téléphones cellulaires sont en train de devenir aussi
courants que les téléphones ordinaires, qu'on en fasse un usage
personnel ou commercial.
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A few years down the road, in fact, it may be indistinguishable
whether you’re using one or the other. To acertain extent, even wired
telephones are no longer entirely wired because long distance
transmissions don’t always use wires. They use other forms of
transmission. In the end, we may be working with a mélange of
telephonic equipment. It will be very hard for people to know which
is which.

® |545

I notice that a few weeks ago the minister was talking about
a small phone. You would get a number for life, like British
automobile licences. You could carry the telephone around in
your pocket, and no matter where you went you'd always be in
communication with the rest of the world. If that kind of telephone
becomes that common a factor in our normal personal and commer-
cial communications, then I think it’s going to be very difficult tolive
with it unless we find some way of introducing an element of privacy
into its usage.

Mrs. Finestone: 1 guess a supplementary to that is you would
therefore agree that some form of encryption ought to be the régle du
Jeu.

Mr. Phillips: I would demur from advancing that one or the other
technical answer is necessarily the best or the only answer, Mrs.
Finestone. I don’t profess to be any more of an expert on this subject
than most of the members of this committee. I’ve only been able to
read the available material.

Mrs. Finestone: That’s fine. It didn’thelp us become experts, did
it? I agree with you.

Mr. Phillips: I would put it that if encryption were the only answer,
fine. If limitations on the manufacture and distribution of scanning
equipment were the answer, I would favour that too. In any event, I
favour a technical answer, if one can be found.

Mrs. Finestone: So you would say you favour a technical answer
rather than a criminal charge and a criminal fine?

Mr. Phillips: It would obviate the necessity of going around with
alotof people. Ifthey couldn’t dosomething in the first place because
the technical meansdid notexist for themtodoit, we wouldn’trequire
acriminal aspect to it. 1’m not suggesting, though, thatit’s not a good
idea to reinforce privacy with law. Absolutely not.

Mrs. Finestone: Because you are the Privacy Commissioner,
I guess I'd like to extend it to ask you if you have a concern
with the degree of invasion of our personal privacy as a result of
telecommunications, telemarketers, our VISA bank cards, our
health SIN numbers, all the various pieces of information which
taken together can almost make a perfect little picture of who [
am—all my boo-boos and scars and dodos, and everything
else. 1 wonder whether or not this is something that is
preoccupying you and whether you think this is something we ought
to be looking at, perhaps starting with this particular focus on
communications.

Mr. Phillips: If the committee has a couple of hours, I'd be happy
to digress on this.

|Translation)

Dans quelques années, il sera peut-étre méme impossible de
distinguer si ’on utilise I’un ou I'autre. Dans une ccrtaine mesure,
méme les communications par téléphone a fil ne sont plus transmises
uniquement par cable, car on n’utilise pas toujours les cibles pour
transmettre les appels interurbains. On utilisc d'autres modes de
transmission. En fin de compte, on se retrouvera peut-€tre avec un
mélange d’équipements téléphoniques. Il sera trés difficile de faire la
distinction.

Je remarque qu'il y a quelques semaines le ministre parlait
d’un petit téléphone. On obtiendrait un numéro pour la vie,
comme c’est le cas des plagues d’immatriculation pour les
automobile en Grande-Bretagne. On transporterait lc téléphone
dans sa poche et, quel que soit I’endroit ou I'on se trouverait, on
pourrait communiquer avec le reste du monde. Si ce genre de
téléphone devient courant dans nos communications personnelles et
commerciales normales, alors il sera d’usage difficile, 2 moins qu'on
ne trouve le moyen de rendre son utilisation plus privée.

Mme Finestone: Je supposc que I’on pourrait ajouter i cela que,
par conséquent, larégle du jeu devrait prévoir une sorte de chiffrage,
n’est-ce pas?

M. Phillips: J’hésiterais a choisir entre ['une ou I"autre de ces
solutions techniques pour affirmer qu'elle est la meilleure ou la seule
réponse, madame Finestone. Jc ne prétends pas étre plus expert cn la
matiére que la plupart des membres du comité. J'ai tout simplement
pris connaissance des documents qui existent sur la question.

Mme Finestone: Trés bicn. Et ce n’est pas en les lisant qu’on
devient expert, n'est-ce pas? Je le reconnais.

M. Phillips: Je vous dirais que si le chiffrage était la scule réponse,
d'accord. Sila solution était de limiter la fabrication et la distribution
des balayeurs, j'y serais favorable également. De toute fagon, je
préconise une solution technique, si on peut en trouver une.

Mme Finestone: Vous voulez dire que vous préconisez unc

solution technique plutét que I'inculpation ou une amende, n'est—ce
pas?

M. Phillips; Cela réglerait le probléeme dans bicn des cas. Si les
gens ne pouvaient pas, faute de moyens techniques. commettre unc
infraction, la question serait réglée. Toutefois, je nc dis pas que ce
n’est pas une bonne idée de protéger davantage la vic privée grice a
des mesures Iégislatives. Ce n'est pas ce que je dis.

Mme Finestone: Puisque vous étes lc commissaire a la
protection de la vie privée, je serais portée 4 vous demander si
vous vous inquiétez de I'atteinte & notre vie privée a causc des
télécommunications, du télémarketing, de nos cartes bancaires
VISA, de nos numéros d’assurance sociale et d’assurance-—
maladic et des divers renseignements qui permettent dans leur
ensemble de décrire parfaitement quelqu’un—avec toutes ses
particularités, ses idiosyncrasies. Est-ce que c’est une
préoccupation pour vous? Devrions-nous nous pencher sur la
question, commencer par cetaspect particulier des communications?

M. Phillips: 11 me faudrait quelques heures pour faire unc
digression ici, et je le fcrais avec plaisir.
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[Texte]

The answer to that is emphatically yes. Cellular phones are only
one element of a very broad attack on personal privacy. I'm not
suggesting there was anything sinister about the origins of this. It
usually flows from perfectly benign human activity —improving
technology, improving businessefficiency, and so on. Butthe onrush
of telecommunications and computer technology is reducing person-
al privacy to unacceptably low levels.

Your name and the name of every person at this committee
has probably been moved around in somebody’s data banks this
very day five to ten times without your knowledge or your
consent. There's hardly anybody alive who hasn’t transacted
some little bit of business whose name is not to be found in a
dossier somewhere, probably a fairly complete one, outlining
your shopping preferences, your age, your income, your religion,
all kinds of things. We’ve had many demonstrations from people
in the computer and private detective business who can essentially
find out all they want to know about you in 10 or 12 hours. It’s not
difficult.

Mrs. Finestone: So my husband can find out everything he wants
to know about me in 10 or 12 hours.

But I wantto know if the business world can be tumed around, and
can you really affect the market? Can you affect the gold standard?
Can you affect the sale of stocks and bonds?

Mr. Phillips: 1 don’t want to duck a hypothetical question, but I
would say almost any result is conceivable, depending on the
information put out over the air waves and who hears it. If somebody
inadvertently lets out a piece of useful or damaging or otherwise
startling information and it’s picked up by somebody who knows
how to use it, yes, interesting things can happen.

Mr. Waddell (Port Moody — Coquitlam): I was going to say,
Sheila, maybe your husband would just check the joint account.

Mrs. Finestone: Well, we’d be lucky if we had a joint account.
Mr. Waddell: Assuming you have one.
e 1550

First of all, I wanted to pay tribute to the chair. It’s not often—as
amatterof fact, it’s the firsttime in my 13 years—Ihave actually seen
a chair from my own party.

The Chairman: It happens.
Mr. Rideout (Moncton): It will be another 13 years before you see
it again.

Mr. Waddell: Welcome, Mr. Phillips, and the other two gentle-
men.

. Twoand a half years ago you said there would be what you galled
“'side—effects’* on cellulartelephones. Where did you say that? Was
1t testimony here?

Mr. Phillips: On page S of our annual report in 1990-91, it says:

[Traduction)

Je vous répondrais cependant, oui, absolument. Les téléphones
cellulaires ne sont qu’un élément d'une atteinte trés généralisée i la
vie privée. Je ne prétends pas qu’il y ait ici un complot. D’habitude,
cela est di 2 une activité humaine parfaitement banale—une
amélioration de la technologie, une meilleure efficacité en affaires,
etc. Mais I"avancement des télécommunications et de la technologie
informatique réduit effectivement la protection de la vie privée des
particuliers a des niveaux démesurément bas.

Votre nom ou celui de chacun des membres du comité a
sans doute €ét€ déplacé dans les banques de données de
quelqu’un cing ou 10 fois aujourd’hui sans que vous le sachiez,
sans votre consentement. Quiconque aurait procédé a une
transaction, méme la plus insignifiante, a déja son nom dans un
dossier quelque part, dossier probablement assez complet, od
figurent ses préférences d'achat, son dge, son revenu, sa
religion, et toutes sortes d’autres détails. Les informaticiens et
les détectives privés peuvent découvrirtout ce qu’ils veulenten 10 ou
12 heures. Ce n'est pas difficile.

Mme Finestone: Ainsi, mon mari peut découvrir toutce qu’il veut
sur moi en 10 ou 12 heures.

Je serais toutefois curieuse de savoir si le monde des affaires peut
étre bouleversé, si lemarché peutétre véritablement infléchi. Peut—on
porter atteinte a I'étalon-or? Peut—on influencer la vente d’actions et
d’obligations?

M. Phillips: Je ne veux pas éluder une question hypothétique,
mais je dirais que n'importe quel résultat est concevable suivant
I'information qui est transmise sur les ondes, suivant les personnes
qui reoivent cette information. Si, par inadvertance, quelqu’un
réveleunrenseignementutile, nuisible ou alarmant, etsice renseigne-
ment est recueilli par quelqu’un qui sait I'utiliser, je dirais qu’effecti-
vement des choses trés intéressantes peuvent en résulter,

M. Waddell (Port Moody— Coquitlam): Sheila, je voulais

ajouter que votre mari pourrait se contenter de vérifier le solde de
votre compte en commun.

Mme Finestone: Encore faudrait-il que nous en ayons un.

M. Waddell: A supposer que vous en ayez un.

Tout d’abord, je tiens a rendre hommage au président. Ce n’est pas
souvent—et en fait, c’est 1a premiére fois depuis 13 ans que je suis
ici—qu’une personne de mon propre parti préside.

Le président: Cela arrive.

M. Rideout (Moncton): Vous devrez attendre encore |3 ans pour
que cela se reproduise.

M. Waddell: Monsieur Phillips, bienvenue a vous et a ceux qui
vous accompagnent.

11y a deux ans et demi, vous avez parlé de ce que vous appeliez les
«effets secondaires» des téléphones cellulaires. Ou avez—vous dit
cela? Etait-ce lors d'un témoignage ici, devant les membres du
comité?

M. Phillips: A la page 5 de notre rapport annuel de 19901991, il
est dit, et je cite:
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Also needed is for Parliament to restore privacy to telephone
communications in Canada, now eroding with the spread of
cellular telephones.

We referred to it again in the next year’s annual report, Mr.
Waddell, and T have referred to it other places as well, in speeches and
interviews.

Mr. Waddell: You basically said you thought one should have the
same degree of privacy on these cellular phones as we should on the
common wire phone. Do you have any particular clauses of this bill
you want to refer us to or you want to see changed?

Mr. Phillips: No.

Mr. Waddell: | know you are busy with all sorts of things, buthave
you had enough time to look at it in detail? If you haven’t, I am sure
the committee will be pleased to receive any subsequent clauses you
may want us to look at in more detail. Have you looked at the clauses
and decided you don’t have any objections?

Mr. Phillips: I have discussed this bill at some length with Mr.
vanBerkle, Mr. Delisle, and others on my staff. It is an approach to
introducing privacy into telephonic communications. I have said
before that if this could be supported by a technical solution, in my
opinion that would be a good thing. But this is an approach written
in the absence of any agreed technical solution.

Mr. Waddell: I am not an expert on this. I didn’t understand a bit
of your answer to one of Mrs. Finestone’s questions.

In the United States they outlaw scanners. Why haven’t we done
that here?

Mr. Phillips: The only explanation offered to me is that it was not
a technically feasible approach. There were already too many
scanners in existence. | wouldn’t suggest we have had exhaustive
discussions withthe justice departmentorany of these otherfolks. We
have discussed this at some length with people in the Department of
Communications. They were not impressed with the technical
feasibility of that approach.

I remain unconvinced by that argument, less so in view of the
changing technology. I am informed, and I would like to hear
otherwise if itis notso, thatit will be possible with the new generation
of cellular telephones to bring in a scanner—banning approach.

Mr. Waddell: I won’t burden you or the committee with my
imitation of Bruce Phillips the journalist, which I did last time
you came before the committee, by saying the old Bruce Phillips
would have said this. Well, I am burdening the committee. . . In
one of those editorials on CTV, he would have asked questions about
freedom of the press. For example, shouldn’t the press be able to use
this, have access, if people are stupid enough to speak over the phone
and they know it goes on the public airwaves? Why shouldn’t the
press be able to use it?

[Translation)

Nous recommandons aussi au Parlement de prendre des mesures
pour établir la protection des communications téléphoniques
personnelles au Canada, qui tend 2 s’éroder en raison de la
prolifération des téléphones cellulaires.

L’année suivante, nous y faisions aussi allusion dans notre rapport
annuel, etj’enaiaussi parlé ailleurs, lors de diverses communications
et entrevues.

M. Waddell: Essentiellement, vous disiez qu’il faudrait pouvoir
disposer des mémes conditions de vie privée, qu’on utilise ces
téléphones cellulaires ou qu’on utilise les téléphones courants. Dans
ce projet de loi, y a—t—il des articles sur lesquels vous voudriez que
nous nous penchions ou que nous modifiions?

M. Phillips: Non.

M. Waddell: Je sais que vous étes trés occupé par ailleurs, mais
avez—vous eu le temps d’étudier ce projet de loi en détail? Si vous ne
1’avez pas fait, je suis sirque les membres du comité accepteraient de
recevoir des suggestions que vous souhaiteriez que nous examinions.
Vous avez étudié les articles du projet de loi pour en conclure que
vous n'y voyez pas d’inconvénient, n’est—ce pas?

M. Phillips: J'ai discuté longuement de ce projet de loi avec M.
vanBerkle, M. Delisle et d’autres personnes de mon équipe. Il s’agit
d’introduire la notion de vie privée dans les communications
téléphoniques. J'ai dit tout & I'heure que si cela passait par une
solution technique, ce serait 2 mon avis une bonne chose. Nous avons
cependant congu cette solution parce qu'on ne s’entend pas sur la
solution technique.

M. Waddell: Je ne suis pas expert en la mati¢re. Vous avez donné
une réponse 8 M™ Finestone que je n’ai absolument pas comprise.

Aux Etats—Unis, les balayeurs sont illégaux. Pourquoi ne les
avons-nous pas déclarés illégaux ici?

M. Phillips: La seule explication qu’on m’ait donnée, c'est qu’il
s’agit d’une approche qui n’est pas réalisable du point de vue
technique. Il existe déja trop de balayeurs en circulation. Je n’irai pas
Jjusqu’a dire que nous en avons longuement parlé avec les experts du
ministére de la Justice ou d’ailleurs. [Is n’avaient pas I'air trés chauds
quant aux possibilités techniques de cette approche.

Quanta moi, cetargument ne m’a pas convaincu, et I'argument de
la technologie en évolution ne me convainc pas non plus. On me dit,
et si je me trompe, qu’on me reprenne, qu’il sera possible avec la
nouvelle génération de téléphones cellulaires d’interdire les ba-
layeurs.

M. Waddell: Je ne vais pas vous imposer, ni a vous ni aux
membres du comité, mon imitation de Bruce Phillips, le
journaliste, a laquelle vous avez eu droit Ja demniére fois que
vous avez comparu devant le comité, et je ne dirai donc pas que
ce vieux Bruce Phillips aurait dit ceci. Qu'a cela ne tienne, toujours
est-il. .. Dans un des éditoriaux de la chaine CTV, Bruce Phillips
aurait posé des questions concernant la liberté de la presse. Par
exemple, il aurait demandé que la presse puisse avoir accés a ces
communications téléphoniques, et s’en servir, surtout si les gens sont
assez naifs pour dire certaines choses au téléphone alors qu’ils savent
bien qu’on peut les capter sur les ondes. Pourquoi la presse ne
pourrait—¢lle pas avoir acces a ces communications?
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As a matter of fact, during second reading of the debate I was
presented with an article by a woman who writes for The Lawyers
Weekly. I'm sorry, her name escapes me at the moment. She wrote a
good article on this. Presumably, she will be a witness for the
committee.

What is the answer to that? Do you consider privacy versus the
freedom of the press?

M. Phillips: It’s funny, Mr. Waddell, I thought you might ask me
that question.

Mr. Waddell: I figured that.

Mr. Phillips: The best way I can put it is I am certainly an ardent
advocate of freedom of the press, but I know of no responsible
journalist who would argue that eavesdropping, keyhole—peeping,
and peeping Tom—ism constitute a reputable or respectable way to
practise journalism. It is for that reason that I've never heard
journalists argue against the legitimacy of wiretap laws.

® 555

In the case of cellular telephonic communications, the argument
seems to me to be, if you're arguing that the press should have
unrestricted access to this, that your ethics are going to be determined
by technology. If technology will permit something that previously
was impermissible, then your ethics can be changed to accommodate
themselves to what can now be done.

I don’t accept that argument myself. I think that
eavesdropping, whether it’s surreptitious or detectable, is equally
objectionable in either case. I would not argue that the press in
certain circumstances might come by information gathered by
disreputable means that is of such great public importance that
it must be published anyhow. Normally, over the decades, when
journalists have been confronted with that kind of ethical
dilemma and felt they had to publish something, they would do
so knowing they would have to accept the consequences of whatever
laws were in force.

That has certainly been the case with protecting sources of
information, for example. There have been a number of occasions
when journalists have been cited for contempt of court because they
have declined to name a source. They have been between a rock and
a hard place in cases like that and have opted to defend a respectable
Jjournalistic practice.

I don’t see a freedom of the press issue here is what I guess I'm
saying, Mr. Waddell.

Mr. Waddell: Thank you. It’s an interesting answer.

Ill finish with a couple of little matters. Have you, your staff, or
your office had a chance to look at the constitutional legality of this
vis-a-vis the charter?

Mr. Phillips: No, I haven’t considered it in that context.

Mr. Waddell: Do you think there might be sufficient charter
issues, if you like, or freedom of information of the press issues that
we will need a review clause in this bill maybe after a few years?
Sometimes we do that. Have you considered that?

M. Phillips: No, I haven’t. I would assume that if a journalistic
enterprise felt that this offended the charter, they could seeka i
in front of the courts themselves. I don’t know that I'd have any more
comment to offer you.

[Traduction]

En fait, pendant le débat en deuxiéme lecture, on m’a transmis un
article dont I’auteur est une dame qui écrit pour la revue The Lawyers
Weekly. Excusez—moi, j'oublie son nom pour I’instant. Elle a écritun
bon article sur le sujet. On peut s'attcndre a ce qu’elle vienne
témoigner devant les membres du comité.

Quelle est la réponse a cela? Faites—vous la part des choses entre la
vie privée et la liberté de la presse?

M. Phillips: C’est étrange, monsieur Waddell, je m’attendais a ce
que vous me posiez cette question.

M. Waddell: C’est bien ce que je pensais.

M. Phillips: Tout ce que je puis vous dire, ¢’est que je suis un
fervent défenseur de laliberté de la presse, mais aucun journaliste qui
se respecte ne prétendra qu'il est de bonne guerre en journalisme
d’écouter les conversations privées, de fureter ou dc jeter des regards
indiscrets. Voila pourquoi je n’ai jamais entcndu de journalistes se
dresser contre les lois sur I’écoute électronique.

Dans le cas des communications par téléphonc cellulairc, j'ai
I"impression que si vous soutenez que la presse devrait y avoir acces
sans aucune entrave, c’est la technologie qui va dicter votre ¢thique.
Si la technologie permet de faire quelque chose qui ne pouvait pas
étre autorisé auparavant, votre code moral vas’adapter pour autoriser
ce qui peut maintenant étre fait.

Personnellement, je ne suis pas d’accord avec cet argument.
Je pense que I’écoute, quelle soit subreptice ou détectable, est
critiquable dans tous les cas. Je ne conteste pas que la presse
puisse obtenir dans certains cas, par des moyens peu orthodoxes,
des renseignements d’une importance publique telle qu'ils
doivent de toute fagon étre publiés. Normalement, au fil des
décennies, quand les journalistes ont €té confrontés a ce genre
de dilemme moral et ont jugé qu’ils avaient le devoir de publier
quelque chose, ils I’ont fait en sachantqu’ils devraienten accepter les
conséquences au regard des lois en vigueur.

Cela a certainement été le cas pour ce qui est de la protection de
I’information. Il estarrivé souvent que des journalistes soientaccusés
d’outrage au tribunal parce qu’ils refusaient de nommer une source.
Dans ce genre de situations, ils sont coincés entre |'arbre et I'écorce
et choisissent de défendre une pratique journalistique respectable.

Autrement dit, monsieur Waddell, je ne vois pas en quoi cela peut
étre une question de liberté de la presse.

M. Waddell: Merci. C’est une réponse intéressante.

Je vais terminer avec une ou deux petites choses. Votre personnel,
votre bureau et vous-méme, avez—vous eu I’occasion d’examiner la
légalité constitutionnelle de cette disposition par rapport a la Charte?

M. Phillips: Non, je ne Iai pas examinée dans ce contexte.

M. Waddell: Pensez—vous qu’il risque d’y avoir suffisamment de
contestations en vertu de la Charte et au nom de la liberté
d’information de la presse pour justifier I'inclusion dans ce projet de
Joi d’unarticle de réexamen au bout de quelques années parexemple?
Nous prévoyons quelquefois ce genre d’articles. Y avez—vous pensé?

M. Phillips: Non.J'imagine que si une entreprise de presseestime

que ces dispositions violent la Charte, elle pourra en appeler devant
les tribunaux. Je ne vois rien de plus a vous répondre.
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Mr. Nicholson (Niagara Falls): You indicated you knew of
no ethical journalist who would use information obtained
surreptitiously. I guess I'm trying to ask an unfair question. It
has certainly been discussed in this particular city that scanners
are in widespread use. Did you mean to indicate that to your
knowledge none of the major networks use scanners, on a regular or
irregular basis, to monitor conversations made by cellular telephones
in or around this place?

Mr. Phillips: Firstof all, | wanttodraw adistinction between using
and gathering. That is a very important journalistic distinction.
Sometimes a journalist may learn things from a third party. That
information may have been gathered by means that a journalist
himself or herself might not have employed but would regard as of
sufficient public importance that it would have to be published
anyhow.

Second, with respect to the practice of networks and other news
agencies here, I cannot say. I do not know of any that are using these
as a standard information-gathering tool. I hope they aren’t. I can
only answer for my own view of that. If I were still in the news
business, I wouldn’t allow one in my office.

The Chairman: Are there any other questions from the govern-
ment? Are there any supplementary questions? Mrs. Finestone.

Mrs. Finestone: Mr. Chairman—

Mr. Thacker (Lethbridge): Onapointof order, with great respect
to Mrs. Finestone, we do have a vote coming in 45 minutes. I have a
whole bunch of questions I would like to ask, but we have two more
sets of witnesses, so I think we really should try to keep it down.

e 1600
Mrs. Finestone: You have no more questions for Mr, Phillips
himself?

Mr. Thacker: No, it’s only because I want to move on to the two
other witnesses.

The Chairman: We have invited three sets of witnesses today, and
because of the bell coming shortly, we’re trying to get through as
quickly as possible.

Mrs. Finestone: He’ll have to come back, I guess.

Mr. Phillips: Mr. Blackburn, may I say I really did appreciate the
opportunity to come here. This is an important issue, and if you would
like us to come back I'd be only too happy to make the trip again.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Phillips. We may
indeed call you back later in our deliberations.

Mrs. Finestone: Mr. Chairman, while you’re saying goodbye to
our privacy commissioner and welcoming the new witnesses, I have
written you a letter that I hope will go on record—

The Chairman: Me?
Mrs. Finestone: Yes. You’ve received it, haven’t you?

The Chairman: No.

[Translation]

M. Nicholson (Niagara Falls): Vous dites que vous ne
connaissez pas un seul journaliste integre qui utiliserait des
renseignements obtenus de fagon subreptice. C’est un peu une
question piége que je vous pose. On a déja parlé de |'utilisation
abondante des balayeurs dans cette ville. Voulez—vous dire qu’a
votre connaissance aucun des grands réseaux n’utilise de balayeurs
réguliérement ou irrégulierement pour écouter les conversations par
téléphone cellulaire ici et dans les environs?

M. Phillips: Je voudrais tout d’abord établir la distinction entre
utiliser et recueillir. C’est une distinction journalistique trés impor-
tante. Un journaliste apprend quelquefois certaines choses d’un tiers.
Ces renseignements peuvent avoir été obtenus par des moyens que ce
journaliste n’aurait pas utilisés, mais peuvent lui sembler d’une
importance publique suffisante pour mériter de toute fagon d’étre
publiés.

Deuxiémement, en ce qui concerne la pratique des réseaux et
autres organismes d’information, je ne peux pas me prononcer. Je
n'en connais pas qui utilisent de fagon courante ces balayeurs pour
recueillir des informations. J'espére qu'ils ne le font pas. Je ne peux
vous donner que mon point de vue sur la question. Si j’étais encore
dans le secteur de I’information, je I'interdirais dans mon bureau.

Le président: Y a—t-il d’autres questions du c6té de la majorité?
Y a-t-il des questions supplémentaires? Madame Finestone.

M